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J extending life everyday™

To Our Stockholders April 10, 2007

Ladies and Gentlemen,

2006 was another year of solid progress for Endocare. We further estabhshed our minimally
invasive crvoablation technology as an!accepted and often preferred treatment for prostate cancer
and we made great strides in mcreasmé the acceptance of our cryoablatlon products among
urologists and interventional rad1ologlsts for treating renal or kidney cémcer We also continued
to develop our technology for tise in radtology and oncology for the tréatment of lung and liver
.cancers as well as for alleviating the i intense pain inflicted by tumors and cancers in bone.

As we look back on 2006, here are some of the highlights of the numerous accomplishments we
achieved during the year:

* We trained 151 new physicians to perform our cryoablation procedure

» We increased the number of prestlglous interventional radtology and oncology
cancer centers where our systems are used to more than 130 across the U. S.;

» We increased our gross margm on a quarterly basis to nearly|63 percent for the
fourth quarter of 2006 (a 24 percentage point increase from the 39 percent
recorded in the first quarter of 20035);

* On July 19, 2006, we annou:nccd a major milestone: our settlements with the
Securirties and Exchange Commission and the Department ofl]ustice. These
settlements brought to completion a process begun in 2003; ,

* We received 510{k) clearance from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration to
market our new Cryocare CN2 System, a potentially much fzjister and
easier-to-operate cryoablation system that uses nitrogen as the freezing and
tumor-destroying agent; and

» Most importantly, we mcreased the estimated number of domestic cryoablation
procedures by nearly 22 percent vear-over-year. This growthlconflrms that our
products are being accepted/more and more by physicians, payers and patients,

More recently, another significant highlight emphasizing the minimally invasive character of
cryoablation as it relates to post- treatment potency was featured in the February 2007 edition
of the journal Urology. The journal publlshed a new study from Dav1d S. Ellis, M.D. of Dallas,
Texas, which reported on 416 pattents and showed that patients wholare treated for localized
cancer with cryoablation and adopt a post—treatment penile rehablhtatlon program have a
greatly enhanced prospect of recaptunng their sexual potency. All of these patients in the study
chose cryoablation after being offered several other options including|radical prostatectomy
and radiation therapy.




| -
\ | -
| :
As [ have shared with stockholders and other interested parties, now for the first time in four
ested parties,
years Endocare is not a “company with issues” but a “company with great opportunities.”

] »

The value and trust our stockholders, physicians and patients place in'Endocare, as well as ‘
L o . . . « i
our employees’ continuing commitment, perseverance and dedication “to stay the course” to :

complete the successful turnaround of Endocare, is why we were, able to achieve all we did
during 2006.

With the past four yedrs behind us, we are writing a new chaprter in our history. As a “company

with gréat opportunities,” we can now be focused on our Strategic Plan and execuring our 2007

Operating Plan. As we move into ..007 we are focused on and will work diligently to accomplish

several important objectives: ,

| 1

¢ Continue to increase the adopnon and use of our products by physicians who
treat patients in the markets we serve;

» Work to increase revenues,'make further improvements to gross margins,
control expenses and thereby move closer to profitability; and

* Continue the important work of increasing interest in Endocare within
the investment community. |

|
We are excited about 2007 — our first full year where we are able to focus on executing our
Operating Plan instead of dealing wit"h the historical legal issues. -

Endocare is a “new” company, a c,o‘mpany of opportunities.” We are proud of the rolé we play
with our physician customers in treanng, in minimally invasive ways, panents who are suffering
from one of the most dreaded and feared diseases inflicting mankind - cancer. While proud of
the role we play, we are always aware that the trust and value physicians place in our products

must be earned with each and every patient. This is our challenge, day in and day out, and we
are dedicated to achieving it. i

|
. | .
On behalf of our Board of Directors and all of our employees, we thank you for your interest
, in our company. It is through your trust and support that we are better"able to assist physicians

and educate their patients regarding the unique advantages of our products for cryoablatlon
treatments for tumors and cancer and, in doing so,

we improve and extend so many lives, everyday!

Sincerely,

\
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‘ Craig T. Davenport

Chief Executive Officer, President
¢ Chairman of the Board
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports requ1red to be filed by Section 13 or lS(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding:12 months (or for such shorter.period that the Registrant was required to file such reports),
and .(2) has been subject to such ﬁ]mg requxrements for the past 90 days. (1) Yes M Nol (2) Yes @ No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of ‘Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not
be contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or mformauon statements mcorporated by reference in Part 111
of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O - '~ S : '

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated fileror'a 2 non-accelerated filer. See
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Certain portions of the Definitive Proxy Statement related to our 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which Definitive Proxy
Statement we expect to file under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended' within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006, are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Certain exhibits filed with our prior reglstratmn staternents, proxy statement and Forms 10-K,8-K and 10-Q are incorporated herein
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This Annual Report on Form lO K may contain forward-lookmg statements that involve risks and uncer-
tainties. Such statements typtcally mclude but are not limited to, statements ‘containing the words “believes,”
“intends,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “hopes estimates,” “should,” “could " “may,” “plans,” “planned” and words
of similar import. Our actual results could differ materlally from any such forward -looking statements as a result of
the risks and uncertainties, including.but not limited to those set forth1 below in “Risks Factors” and in other
documents we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q. Any such forward-locking statements reflect our management’s opinions only as of the date
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and we undertake no obligation to revise or publicty felease the results of any
revisions to these forward-looking étatements Readers should carefully rev:ew the risk factors set forth below in
“Risks Factors” and in other documents we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
1nc1udmg our Quarterly Reports oni Form 10-Q. . . :
AutoFreeze™ CGC Cryocare® Cryocare CS™, Cryocare Surglcal System® Crythsc® CryoGrid™,
CryoGuide®, Dlrect Access .. Endocare®, FastTrac®, Integrated UltrasoundTM SmartTemp™, Targeted
Cryoablation of the Prostaté TCAP® TEMprobe® Urethral Warmer™, R Probe™, V-Probe™, Cryocare CN,™,
Liquid Ice™, PerCryo®, CryoProbe CN2 are our trademarks and Rendl'Cryo Salvage Cryo Focal Ciyé™ ,
Primary Cryo are.our servicemarks. Thm Annual Report on Form 10-K may also include trademarks and trade
names owned by other parties, and all other trademarks and trade names mentioned in this Armual Report on
Form 10-K are the property of the1r respectwe owners. . ., . , oL
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Overview -

We are a specialty medical.device company focused on improving patiems’ lives through the development,
manufacturing and distribution of health care products for cryoablation. Our strategy is to achieve a dominant
position in the prostate and renal cancer markets, further developing and increasing the acceptance of our
technology in the interventional radiology and oncology markets for treatment of diver and lung cancers and
palliative intervention (treatment of pain associated with metastases); whlle achieving penetration across additional
markets with our proprietary cryosurg1cal technology. The term cryoablauon refers to the use of ice to destroy
tissue, such as tumors, for therapeutic purposes. The term “cryosurgical technology refers to technology relating to
the use of ice m surglcal proceduree including cryoablatlon procedures‘

Today, our Food and Drug Administration {FDA)-cleared Cryocare Surgical System occupies a growing
position in the urological market for treatment of prostate and renal Cance:r. Because of our initial concentration on
prostate and renal cancer, the majorily of our sales and marketing resources are directed toward the promotion of our
technology to urologists. In addition to selling our cryosurgical dlspoeal Iproduc:ts to hospitals and mobile service
companies, we also contract dlrectly with hospitals for the use of our Cryocare Surgical System and disposable
products on a fee-for-service basis. We believe our proprietary. eryosurgll:al technologies have broad applications
across a number of surgical markets, including the treatment of tumors in the lung and liver, and the management of
pain caused by tumors. To that end, we employ a dedicated sales team focused on selling percutaneous cryoablation
procedures related to kidney, liver, lung and palliative intervention (treatment of pain associated with metastases) 10
interventicnal rad1ology phys1C1ans throughout the Umted States. ‘ |

We were incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in May 1994, We maintain our executive offices
at 201 Technology Drive, Irvine, California 92618, and our telephone'm'lmber at that address is (949) 450-5400.
I[nformation regarding our financial condition and results of operations ejan be found in a separate section of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, begmmng on page F-1. We previously owned Timm Medical Technologies, Inc., a
company focused on erectile dysfunctmn products. We sold Timm Medical .to UK-based Plethora Solutions
Holdings plc on February 20, 2006 : :

' | 1
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cancer can metastasrze to the 1ung or bone and potentlally other srtes resultmg, in death

are typically performed on patients with elevated PSA readings to confirm the existence of cancer

v

Prostate Cancer and Urology Market Backgroundi ‘

The prostate is a walnut-size g]and surroundmg the male urethra, located below the bladder and ad_]acent to the
rectum. Prostate cancer consists of one or more mali gnant turnors that begin most often in the penphery of the gland
and hke other forrns ‘of cancer may spread beyond the prostate to other parts of the body. If left untreated prostaté

The number of men diagnosed with prostate cancer has risen steadily since 1980 and it is now the second most
common cause of cancer-related deaths among men in the United States. The American Cancer Society estimated
there would be 218,890 new cases of prostate cancer diagnosed and 27,050 deaths. associated with the disease in the
United States during 2007. Prostate cancer incidence'dand mortality increase with age. Prostate cancer is found most
often in men who are over the age of 50. According t to the American Cancer Society, more than 65 percent of men
diagnosed with prastate’ cancer are over the age of 63. Incidence rates are higher in- African ‘American men. In
addition to age and race, other risk factors are linked to prostate cancer, such as genetlcs diet and exposure to
environmental toxins such as Agent Orange.

[ .

_ The dramatic increase in prostate cancer dlagnoses has led to herghtened awareness of the drsease whlch in
turn, has led to increased rates of testrng and improved. dragnostrc methods The Amerlcan Cancer Socrety
recommends that men without symptoms, risk factors and a life expectancy of atleast 10 years should begm regular
annual medical exams at the age of 50, and believes that physrcrans should offer, as a part of the exam, the prostate-
specific antigen; or, PSA, blood test and a drgrtal rectal examinition to detect any lumps in'the’ prostate The PSA
blood test determines the amount of prostate spec1ﬁc “antigen present in the blood. PSA is found i ina protem secreted
by the prostate, and elevated levels of PSA can be associated with, among other thmgs prostantrs 4 noN-cancerous
inflammatory condition, or a proliferation of cancer cells in the prostate. Transrectal ultrasound tests and biopsies

~ Approximately 90 percent of all prostate cancers diagnosed in the United States are local or reglonal accordmg
to the American Cancer Society. Thus, approximately 200,000 patients per year are candidates for definitive local
therapies including cryoablation. In addition, it is estimated that approximately 55,000 patients formerly diagnosed
and treated for prostate cancer in the United States each year-are diagnosed with recurrent prostate cancer foltowing
previous radiation therapy. With the increasing utilization of radiation therapy, primarily brachytherapy and
external beam radiation for. initial treatment in prostate cancer, we believe that this number will increase., For

_recurrent tumors that are detected while still localized, we believe cryoablation is an appropriate procedure with

typically fewer side effects than salvage radical prostatectomy. . : ) . . .
v - ‘ . S i . e

+ Non-Cryosurgical Treatment Options. $a

Current treatment options for patients with prostate cancer include radical prostatectomy, radratron therapy,
hormone or other Lherapres “watchful waiting,” and cryosurgery. These options are evaluated using a number of
criteria, including the’ patrent s age, physrcal condmon and stage of the disease. Due to the slow progressron of the
disease, iowever, the decision for treatment is typrcally based upon the severity of the condrnon and the resultrng
quality of life. '

- Radical. prostatectomy has been used for over 30 years and is most ofien the therapy of choice due to the

- surgeon’s high degree of confidence in surgically removing the cancerous tissue. The procedure is dependent on the

skill of the surgéon and is often associated withjrelatively high incidence of:post-operative impotence and
incontinence.and can even result in operative mortality. Radical prostatectomy often requires a three- to five-day
hospital stay for patient recovery and therefore a hlgher cost to the medical facility than cryoablation.

Radiation therapy for prostate cancer includes ‘both external radranon beam and interstitial radloactrve seed
therapies. External beam radiation therapy emerged as one of the first altematlves to radrcal prostatectomy.
Interstitial radioactive seecl ‘therapy, also referred to as brachytherapy, is the permanent placement of radroactrve
seeds in the prostate

' . ks '
. FLE

| :

‘Other therapres primarily consisting: of hormone therapy and chemotherapy; are used to slow the growth of

cancer and reduce tumor size, but are-generally not intended to be curative. These therapies are often used during

advanced stages of the disease to extend life and to relieve symptoms. Side effects of hormonal drug therapy.include
- M .
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increased development of breasts and other feminine physical charactenstlcs hot flashes, impotence and decreased
libido. In addition, many hormone pharmaceutlca]s artificially lower PSA levels in patients, which can interfere
with the staging of the disease and the monitoring of i its progress. Side effects of chemotherapy include nausea, hair

“loss and fatigue. Drug therapy and chemotherapy requtre long-term, repeated administration of medtcatlon on an
outpauent basrs ‘ _ | -

i -

“Watchful waiting” ls.recommended by physicians in certain circumstances based'upon the severity and
growth rate of the disease, as well as the age and life expectancy of the ipatient ‘The aim of watchful waiting'is to
monitor the patient, treat some of the attendant  symptoms and determine ,when more active intervention is required.
_Watchfu} wamng has gamed populanty among those patients refusrng treatment due to srde effects assoc1ated with
radtca] prostatectomy. Watchful waiting requires periodic physician vrsns and PSA momtonng A study published
in the Journal of the Amencan Medical Association in l)ecember 2006, c}onsmtmg of 44,630 men between the ages
of 65 and 80, found that those panents who chose to treat their prostate cancer were 31 percent less hkely to die than
those who waited. This suggests that all pauents w1th locallzed disease regardless of age should consider deﬁnltwe
treatments rather than watchful wattlng t _

. I
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The History of Cryosurgery ‘ ‘ l !

-Cryosurgery, freezing tissue to destroy tumor cells, was first develdped in the 1960’s. During this périod, the
use of “cold probes,” or cryoprobes, was explored as a method to kill prostate tissue without resorting to radical
prostatectomy. Although effective in killing cancer cells, the inability to control the amount of tissué frozen during

 the procedure prevented broad, use and development of cryosurgery for prostate cancer. These initial limitations in

the application of cryosurgery ‘continue to contribute to"a lack of widespread acceptance of the procedure today.
i
In the late 1980’s,.progress in ultrasound imaging allowed for a revival in the use of cryosurgery. Using
ultrasound, the cryoprobe may be ghided to the targeted tissue from outside the body percutaneously. The physician
activates the cryoprobe and uses ultrasound to monitor the growth of ice in the prostate as it is occurring. When the
ice encompasses the entire prostate, the probe is turned off., This feedback mechanism of watchmg the therapy as it
is administered allows the phys1c1an more precnse control during apphcanon '

4 .
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Long term data suggest that prostate cryosurgery may be able 1o, deliver disease- free rates. comparable to
radical surgery and radlatlon but with the, beneﬁt of lower rates of incontinence and mortahty, shorter recovery
penods and relattvely m1mmal comphcatlons - o : \

l _ R
Endocare Cryosurgery Technology Development ‘

We have sought to develop our technology-over time to increase the safety and efﬁcacy of our products. In
1996, we developed our first generation eight-probe argon-based cryosurglcal system. Argon allows for room
temperature gas to safely pass through the cryoprobe to create a highly sculpted repeatable ice ball. In' 1997, we
incorporated temperature-monitoring software to allow for continual feedback from the thermocouple tips. In 1998,
we launched our CryoGuide intraoperative planning software, whichiallowed physicians better planning and
targeting technology for.use during a procedure. In 2000, we launched our 2.4mm Direct Access cryoprobe and
-CryoGrid which we believe shortened the time necessary to perform a procedure and added to the safety and ease of
the procedure. In 2002 we developed and launched AutoFreeze, our 1nnovauve software technology that provides
computer-controlled automated freeze/thaw cycles. In 2003, we launched our second generation Cryocare Surgical
System, which we refer to as “Cryocare CS,” which mtegrated all the past and latest technology, including an on-
‘board, 1ntegrated ultrasound device, into one complete system At the Annual Meeting of the American Urological
" Association in May 2006, we mtroduced the first’ variable cryoablatlon probe referred to as the V-Probe. The
‘V-Prove provides physrcrans the ab111ty to’ sculpt dtfferent sized isothérms (ice balls) to encornpass tumors and
tissues based 'on individual patient anatomy and needs As previously announced, we currently are in the planning
and design stage for the development of a mtrogen -based cryoablation s'ystem which we refer to as the Cryocare
CN2 System. Once development is complete, we expect to market the Cryocare CN2 System primarily to our

. interventional radiology and oncology customers and to customers in international markets where argon gas is not
widely available. . : , 1. : ' g
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Our System Solution: Cryocare CS S - ‘

We believe Cryocare CS is the most sophisticated prostate cryosurgery system currently available and
combines the latest technology to enhance the speed and effectiveness of the procedure. Exclusive features of the ,
Cryocare CS include an on-board training module, integrated color Doppler ultrasound desrgned spemﬁcally forthe
needs of prostate cryosurgery, CryoGuide our patented intraoperative planning module, and AutoFreeze our
patented treatment software that provides computer-controlled automated freeze/thaw cycles based upon target
endpoint temperatures and continual feedback from the thermocouple tips. :

The argon gas- based Cryocare CS accommodates up to eight independently operated cryoprobes and six
thermocouples to allow physicians to monitor temperatures of tissue adjacent to the prostate in real-time. Qur
' proprietary suite of cryoprobes is engineered to consistently produce sculpted ice conforming to the unique

anatomy of the prostate. Our vacuum-insulated DirectAccess CryoProbes help deliver lethal ice in a controliable
and repeatable fashion. Qur CryoGrid, which is similar to a brachytherapy grid, is affixed to the ultrasound stepper
and aids the physician with placement of the cryoprobes so that ice formation and lethal temperatures occur where
necessary to destroy cancerous tissue but do not affect areas where tissue damage could cause harm.

We believe cryosurgery is the first minimally invasive procedure that urologists can perform independently,
With radiation therapies, urologists must refer the patient for treatment to a radiation oncologist. Cryosurgery offers
the urologist both the opportunity to maintain continuity of patient care and to generate additional revenue.

Key Clinical Advantages of Our Cryocare CS System

Cryocare Cs prov1des the following potential e!rmcal advantages relative to other pnncrpal treatment opttons
for prostate cancer:

 High quality of life following treatment.  Our minimally invasive procedure typically offers patients a short
| recovery period for prostate cancer Lherapy and may result in a lower mmdenee of certain srde effects,
| 1ncludmg incontinence. :

. Trearmem of patients who have failed radiation therapy. Patients who have failed radiation. therapy have
limited options. Cryosurgery is an option that can be used to treat these patients effectively with potentially
fewer side effécts than radical surgery. .

» Treatment can be performed more than once. Regardless of what therapy is chosen there is always a chance
that the cancer will recur. Unlike radiation therapy Or Surgery, Cryosurgery can 'be repeated without increased
morbidity. :

» Focal or partial gland treatment.  Focal cryoablation is a prostate cancer treatment in which the ablatton is
confined to the known tumor location, thereby sparing surrounding tissue.’

Marketing and Strategy
Cryosurgical Products -

Our objective in urology is to establish cryosurgery as a primary treatment option for prostate and renal
cancers. Our earlier commercial efforts were focused on direct-sates to hospitals and distributor sales of systems to
third party service providers who would provide systems and techmetans to hospitals where cryosurgical proce-
dures were perfomted - :

In 2003, we redirected our urology strategy away from attempting to drive acceptance of cryoablation through
sales of capital equipment into the urology market. Qur primary objective for the urology portion of our business is
now to grow market share, measured in terms of procedures and revenues, by establishing cryosurgery as a primary
treatment option for prostate and renal cancers. In 2004, 2005 and 2006, we derived a significant percentage of our
revenues from recurring sales of disposable products used with the Cryocare Surgical System. - -

A cryoablation procedure requires the necessary disposable products usually provided in the form of a kit. In
addition to the disposable devices, there is a service component. This service component consists of transportation
and provision of equipment used in the procedure, plus the services of a technician to assist the urologist with use

4
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and monitoring of this equipment"! In addition to the use of a Cryocare Surgical System, an ultrasound device is
needed for visual monitoring of the prostate and ice formatton unless our Cryocare CS is used, since the Cryocare
CS includes an on-board, 1ntegraled ultrasotind unit. Tanks of argon and helium gas are needed for freezing and
warming during the procedure. rFrequently, this equipment is not stored on site hut is mobilized and brought into the
hosprtal for procedures by annndependent third: pany who performs the service component of the procedure

For urology procedures we typrcally sell the di sposable dev1ces to hosprtals cither as pan of a procedure f fee or
separately, that is, w1thout the servrce component ‘We also contrnue to sell our Cryocare Surgrcal Systems both to
hosp1tals and service provrders For mterventlonal radlology we will often place a system with a new customer

. under our p]acement program and sell cryoprobes dlrectly to the hosprtals or enter into an agreement 0 provrde
cryoablatron services to the hosp1tal which includes provrdmg the 'equrpment technicians 'and cryoablauon
disposable products necessary to perform the procedures. These agreements generally xnclude the sérvices 6f a third
party provider contracted by:us or.the hospital to provrde these services. .. . . Cet

An 1mportant challenge we face in the prostate ‘cancer rharket i is, to overcome ‘initial reluctance on the part of
urologists to embrace cryosurgery and to educate physicians so-that they are able to incorporate cryosurgery into
their primary treatment regimen. Part of this reluctance i$ due to clmlcal failures experienced during earlier efforts
to introduce the technology by other companies. See above under “The History of Cryosurgery In addition, we
compete wrth other therapres that have proven effective in treaung prostate cancer, Over 30 years of clinical data
exist documentmg the safety and’ efﬁcacy of radical prostatectomy for prostate cancer, There are 20  years of clinical
data supporting use of various forms of radiation treatment options shch as brachytherapy and beam radiation
treatments, which we estimate are used to treat over one third of all prostate cancer cases each year m the
United States. { . oo o

We believe cryoablation has clinical advantages for many patients dver both the current mostfpopular forms of
treatment. While there are long-term clinical data available on radrcal prostatectomy, | this treatment approach,
typical of surgery in general, is characterized by a long recovery period combrned with a relatlvely high incidence of
side effects, including 1rnpotence| and ,urinary incontinence. The appeal of radiation as a freatment alternative,
particularly to patients, is that it is less invasive than surgery. Like radiation, cryosurgery is less invasive and
therefore has potentially fewer side effects than radical prostatectordy Unlike radiation treatments ‘however,

" cryosurgical treatments.can be repeated on the same patient. In fact, our, 'initial clinical successes in prostate cancer
treatment were in treating patients who had failed radiation therapy We also believe that cryosurgery has significant
economic benefits for payers. These benefits include shorter hosprtal sta'ys for recovery and shorter procedure time
as compared to radical prostatectomy,: long term hormone treatment o{r radiation therapies, resulting in reduced
expense Lo the payer. ' '

s ... Keyelements in our strategy-for overcoming the challenges we.face in estabhshmg ¢ryosurgery as a primary
treatment option for prostate cancer are: -,. . - :

Coaeaet 1 P . ',,.

* Increasing awareness in the urological community regarding the t;:linical benefits of cryosurgery through our
presence at major technical meetings and trade shows, publicatiop of numerous scientific papers and articles
on cryosurgery and formation of a scientific advisory board to provide guidance and counsel 1o us regardmg

w, . clinical.matters and physrctan education; - . I "

SRR Conductmg chnrcal stud1es o further demonstrate the safety and efﬁcacy of cryosurgery as a pnmary
treatment of prostate cancer; )

e Lot v ' B -
e Conductmg «clinical studiegs to further demonstrate the safety Iand efﬁcacy of cryosurgery as a salvage
treatment for prostate cancer patients who have failed radiation treatments;

. Conductmg clrmcal studres to further demonstrate the safety and efﬁcacy of cryosurgery asa treatment for
renal tumors wh1ch 1s another rmportant component of the urology market for’ cryosurgery, o

» Creating a s1gmﬁcant number of new practicing cryosurgeons'each year through our physician education
program; , _ f oL PR
!

. Endeavoring: to ensure that reimbursement for-cryosurgery by Medicare and other payers-is appropnate
--piven.the costs and: beneﬁts of the treatment;: - - '~ . : . Lo
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* Driving patient awareness through our direct-to-consumer advertising programs; and

. Marketing our products to physicians and hos1pil;als through our direct séles force.

Because of.our initial concentration on prostate cancer, the majority of cur sales and marketing resources are
directed towards the promotion of cryoablation technology to urologists for the treatment of prostate and renal
cancers. However, we are also, however, expanding the reach of our technology across a number of other markets,
including ablation of tumors in the lung and liver, as well as for palliative intervention (treatment of pain associated
with metastases). Procedures for treatment of ‘these cancers are typically performed percutaneously, using
CT scannmg technology, and are provided by interventional radiologists. In order to better understand and address
the distinct needs of ‘this new market, we have formed a dedicated sales team to work in developmg these
opportumues for application of our cryosurglcal technology

Key elements in our strategy to establish new markets for cryosurgical treatment of tumors, specifically in the
interventional radiology and radiation oncology markets, are:

* Conducting key clinical studies to demonstrate the safety and efficacy of cryosurgery as a primary treatment
for lung and liver tumors as well as for palllatlve intervention (treatment of pain assoc1ated with
metastases), and o L . | :

* Formation of a dedicated sales group focused on the opportumtles for cry0<urg1cal treatment approaches in
these new markets. .

Products

We cirrently market the following products:

Prostate and Renal Cancer:

1

* Cryocare Surgical System — A cryosurg1cal system with eight Cryoprobe capability.
* Cryocare CS System — A Cryocare Surgical System with onboard ultrasound.

-+ CryoGuide — A computerized cryoprobe placement, simulation and guidance system for Cryosurgery
* Cryoprobes — Dlsposable probes used with the Cryocare Surgical System.

* FasTrac — Percutaneous access device that allows one-step insertion of cryoprobes.

Additional Cryosurgical Markets: , ,

+ Cryocare Surgical System — A cryosurgical systénl with eight cryoprobe capalaility specially configured
for interventional radiology and oncology. -

Raw Materials
N

We rely on third party suppliers to provide certain critical components for all of our product lines. In certain
cases, the suppliers are our sole source of supply for these components. Our policy is to enter into long-term supply
agreements that require suppliers to maintain adequate inventory levels and which contain other terms and
conditions protecting us against unforeseen interruptions in their production. We endeavor to maintain adequate
stock levels at our own locations to ensure an uninterrupted source of supply. We typically seek to establish
secondary sources of supply or other manufacturing alternatives. Nevertheless, despite these efforts, it is possible
that we may experience an interruption in supply of one or more of our critical components resulting in backorders
to our customers. However, we believe that we could locate alternative sources of supply upon such terms and
within such a timeframe as would not result in a malenal adverse effect on our business.

Patents aﬁd Inlellectual Prope'rty

- Asof December 31, 2006, we have rights to 41 issued United States patents relating to cryosurgical ablative
technology. Included within these 41 issued United States patents are 5 patents in which we have licensed-in rights.
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The remainder of the patents are.assigned to us. Most of these patent;s-relate to our cryoprobe technology for
creating the freeze zone and precisely controlling the shape of the freeze zone produced by the cryoprobes.
Additionally, certain patents relate to our computer guided system fdr assisting surgeons in properly placing
cryoprobes in a patient, a computer-controlled cryosurgery apparatus and method, a cryosurgical integrated control
and monitoring system and urethral warming technology. We also have rights to 17 pending United States patent
applications relative to cryosurgical ablative technology. Additionally, we have rights to 39 foreign patents and
pending foreign patent applications in this technology area. The earhest of our patents do not éxpire until 2011.

Most of the earliest palents in our core technology area do not explre until about 2016.

Our pohcy is to secure and protect intellectual ‘property rights relalmg to our Iechnology through patenting
inventions and licensing others when necessary. While we believe that the protection of patents and licenses is
important to our business, we also rely on trade secrets, know-how and continuing technological innovation to
maintain our competitive position. Given our technology and patent portfolio, we do not consider the operation of
our business to be materially dependent upon amny one patent group of patents or single technological innovation.

Our policy is to sell our products under trademarks and to secure trademark protecuon in the United States and

elsewhere where we-deem such protection important, - ,
. !

No‘ assurance can be given that our processes or products will not infringe patents or other intellectual property
rights of others or that any license required would be made available undér any such patents or intellectual property
rights, on terms acceptable to us or at all. In the past, we have receivedieorrespondenee alleging infringement of
intellectual property rights of third parties. No assurance can be given that any relevant claims of third parties would
not be upheld as valid and enforceable, and therefore we could be prevented from practicing the subject matter
claimed or could be required to obtain licenses from the owners of any 'such intellectual property rights to avoid
infringement. - ,

! .

We seek to preserve the confidentiality of our technology by entering into confidentiality agreements with our
employees, consultants, customers and key vendors and by other means. No assurance can be given, however, that
these measures will prevent the unauthorized disclosure or use of such technology. I8

Research Strategy' ' L Lo i
Our research goal is to develop innovative cryoablauon technology that dramatically improves patient
outcomes., Qur primary focus is on developing devices for the treatment of prostate, kidney, lung and liver tumors
and for palliative intervention (treatment of pain associated with metastases). To that end, we endeavor to develop’
innovations that improve the safety and efficacy of our Cryocare Surgical System, as well as to explore new
appllcauons for use of our techno]ogy plalforrn in the body R ' '

. :
[

We spent approximately $1.9 mllhon $2 3 mllllOl'l and $2 8 mllllon,for the years ended 2004, 2005 and 2006
respectively, on research and development actl\fltles from ,contmumg operatlons

.
IR 1

Sales ) . 1" . T e

o —— oy

. We sell our products-primarily to hospitals and third party service providers and have both domestic and
international customers. One of our customers, Advanced Medical Partm'ers Inc. (AMPI),-accounted for 28.8 per-
cent of our neét revenues in 2006. The following products and services account for 15 percent or more of total
revenues from eontmutng operations for each of the years ended December 31:

. [ X '

i [ 'R 2t

2004 2005 2006 |

. . . !
Cryoablation and urological products: : v T o
. - J

- Cryocare Surgical Systems? e e PR S * 0 %
Cryoprobes, disposables and procedures e e . ! .......... _ "91% 94% 94%
- Cardiac products (CryoCath) .............. e S o * *

[ e a

* These products account for less'than .15 percent of total revenues.
1

7




eSS

We currently sell our cryosurgical products domestically through our direct sales force, which, as of
December 31, 2006 consisted of 38 people, including 33 sales representatives and sales managers and 5 cryosurgical
field technicians. Our strategy is to continue to introduce the clinical benefits of cryosurgery to new physicians as
well as educating physicians already performing cryosurgery so that they are able to increasingly incorporate,

_cryosurgery into their practice. We also intend to create patient demand by providing education regarding the
benefits of cryosurgical therapy versus alternative treatment options and by using national advertising and other
programs targeted directly at prostate cancer patients. . : .

Internationally, our cryosurgical products are sold primarily through independent distributors. Our interna-
tional sales from continuing operations represented approximately 8.1 percent, 6.9 percent and 5.8 percent of our
total revenue in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, we had no long-lived assets outside of
the United States. G -

We derive our revenués from continuing operanons from the followmg geographlc regions for each of the years
ended December 31, based on shipping destination:

' . 20064 - 2005 2006
- (In thousands)

United States. .. ....... e e $22,234 . $26,322 $26,379
Intemational: 4 ) Co A . ' '

China ....................... e 556 567 . 451

Canada ....... e e T 760 1,015 796

Other. .. ... A A F S L e i 631 - 370 364
Total international . ... ... ... e B I e 1947 1,952 1,611
Tota[larevenues ....... R R R R R NSRRI $24,181  $28,274 527,990

Reimbursement

We sell ocur Cryocare Surgical System and related disposable products to hospitals and third party service
companies that provide services to hospitals. Procedures involving the Cryocare Surgical System are performed in
hospitals on an inpatient basis. While patients occasionally pay for cryosurgical procedures directly, most patients
depend upon third-party payers to pay for their procedures, including Medicare, Medicaid, Tricare and other federal
health care programs, as well as private insurers. ) '

" Accordingly, our revenue is dependent upon third- -party reimbursement, particularly Medicare, since the
majority of patients receiving prostate cryosurglcal treatments using our products are Medicare beneficiaries. The
mix of public/private payers for other cryosurgical procedures varies by type of procedure.

Medicare reimbursement for cryosurgical procedures using our products as a pfimary treatment alternative for
localized prostate cancer began in July 1999. Effective July 2001, Medicare coverage was approved for secondary
cryosurgical treatment of prostate cancer patients who have failed radiation therapy. :

When Medicare-reimbursedservices are provided on an inpatient basis, the hospital is reimbursed under the
Medicare prospective payment system, based on the appllcable dlagnosvs related gloup A single payment covers all

‘

facility services. . '

Outpatient reimbursement for cryosurgical preqedures for Medicare beneficiaries is in'accordance with the
Hospital Qutpatient Prospective Payment System, or HOPPS. Under HOPPS, the hospital is paid on a per procedure
basis, based on the ambulatory payment classification for the procedure. The payment to the hospital includes the
per procedure share of the cost for any depreciable equipment; such as our Crvocare Surgical System, and the
provision of disposable devices, such as our temperature probes and cryoprobes.

Clinical studies are underway regarding percutaneous cryoablation of cancerous tissue in the kidney, lung and
liver and palliative intervention for pain associated with metastases. After studies are complete coverage decisions
and unigue reimbursement codes will be sought from Medicare and private payers. As of December 31, 2006, no
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such codes were in place except for a tracking code established for percutaneous renal cryoablation. This tracking
code is a significant step towards' assignment of a Category [ CPT code and wider acceptance for payment.

Clearance to market a new device or technology by the FDA does not guarantee payment by Medicare or other
payers. Future devices and technology that we develop would have to be approved for coverage by Medicare after
we obtain FDA approval or clearance. The Medicare approval processr is lengthy and there is no assurance that
Medicare approval would be granted Each private insurer makes its own determination whether to ¢over a device or
procedure and sets its own reimbursement rate: L . Lo .

Backlog . l ' l )

vt A T L ’ 3 o1 - . .

Asof December-3l 2006 we had no backlog for our products. Our policy is to'carry enough i mventory to be
able to ship most orders within a few days of receipt of order. HlstoncallyE most of our orders have been for shipment
within 30 days of the placement of the order. Therefore we rely on orders placed dunng a given period for sales
during that penod i

| ;
Manufacturing 7 _ | L ;

We manufacture our Cryocare Surgical System and related disposables at our facilities-in Irvine, California.
Our facility has been mspected by the Callfom1a Department of Health Services and has been 1ssued a Device
Manufacturing License. : noo e :

Our current manufacturing facility has been subjected to Quality Slystem Regulation 'compliafice inspections
by the FDA most recently in June 2004, and also in February and March 2003 and September 2002. These audits
have been closed by the FDA, We most recently received 18O 13485:2003, CE Marking and Canadian CMDCAS
certifications, indicating compliance with European standards for a robust Quality Management System, quality )
assurance -and manufacturing process control. . '

e . 1

f . . e CEERA A
Government Regulation . i : . S !

~Governmental regulation in the United States ahd ‘other countries is'a mgmﬁcant factor affecting the research
and development manufacture and’ marketmg ‘'of medical devices, mcludmg our products. In the United Staies, the
+'FDA 'has broad authority under the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act ‘(the FD&C Act) to regulate the
distribution, manufacture, marketing and sale of medical devices. Fomlén sales of medicat devices are subject to
foreign governmental regulation and restrictions that vary from country; to country.

Medical devices intended for human use in the United States’ are cla551ﬁed into one of three categories,
~ depending upon the degree of regilatory control to Which they will be subject. Such devices are classified by
regulation into either Class I general controls, Class 11 special standards or Class 111 pre-market approval, depending
upon the Ievel of regulatory control requtred to provide reasonable assurance of the safety and effectlveness of the
device. . . . N . | )

v ' b [ . . A ) N L !

Most Class I devices aré-exémpt from'pre-market notification or approval. Class I1 devices are subject to the
pre-market notification requtrements «under Section 510(k) of the FD&C Act For a 510(k) to be cleared by the FDA,
the manufacturer must demonstrate to the FDA that a device is substantlally equivalent to another legally marketed

device that was either cleared through the 510(k) process or on the market prior to 1976. It generally takes four to
twelve months from the date of submrssron to obtam 510(k) cléarance although it may take longer in partlcular if
clinical trials are requ1red Class Ill devrces generally include the most risky dev1ces as well as devices that aré not
substanually equivalent to other legally marketed devrces To obtain’ approval fo market a, Class Il dev1ce a
manufacturer must obtaln FDA approval ofa pre- -market approval apphcanon or PMA, 'I‘he PMA process requlres.
more data, takes longer and is typically a 51gmﬁcantly more complex and expenswe process than the 510(k)
procedure.

Our Cryocare Surgical S'ystem’é haye l_')een clearéd for marketin_g through'the' 510(k) 't')r'ocess. .

[

We can provide no assurance that we will be able to obtain clearanc;es or approvals.for clinical testing or for
manufacturing and sales of our existing products for all applications in all targeted markets, or that we will be able to

) i
| |
| |




obtain clearances or approvals needed to introduce new products and technologies. After a device is placed on the
market, numerous regulatory requirements apply.

. These include: " ' o

+ quality system regulauon which reqmres manufacturers to follow design, Ieslmg, control, documentauon
and other quality assurance procedures durmg the manufacturing process;

» labeling regulations, which prohibit the promotion of products for unapproved or “off-label” uses and
impose other restrictions on labellng, and :

+ medical device reporting regulations, which require that manufacturers report to the FDA if their device may
have caused or contributed to a death or serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or
contribute to a death or serious injury if it were to recur.

Failure to comply with applicable regulaidry reqﬁirenients can result in enforcement action by the FDA, which
may include any of the following sanctions:

» fines, injunctions, and civil penalties;

+ recall er seizure of our products; ;

= operating restrictions, partial suspension or total shutdown of production; '

» refusing our request for 510(k) clearance or premarket approval of neyv prodﬁcts;
. w1thdraw1ng 510(k) clearance or premarket approvals that aré already granted; and
e criminal proseeuuon

Medical device laws are also in effect in many of the countnes outside of the United States in which we do
business. These laws range from comprehensive device approval and quality system requirements for some or all of
our medical device products to simple requests for product data or certifications. The number. and scope of these
requirements are increasing. In June 1998, the European Union Medical Device Directive became effective, and all
medical devices must meet the Medical Device. Directive standards and receive CE mark certification. CE mark
certification involves a comprehensive Quality System program, and subrnission of dataon a product to the Notified .
Body in Europe. '

a .
Pt ' . v

We have obtained the CE mark certification for distribution of our Cryocare Surgical System in Europe and
approval for distribution in Australia, Canada, New Zealand, China, Taiwan. Korea and Mexico,

TR t. . '.' . LI 1

Health Care Regulatory Issues

- Lot

1 y f JU

The health care industry is highly regulated and the regulatory environment in which we opérate may change
significantly in the future. In general, regulation of heallh care-related companies is increasing. We anticipale' that
Congress and state legislatures will continue to review and assess alternative health care delivery and payment
systems. We cannot predict what impact.the adoption of any federa] or state health care reform measures may have
on our business. .

We regularly monitor developments in statutes and regulations relating to our'business We may be reduir'ed to
modify our agreements, operations, marketing and expa.nsmn strategies from time to time in response to changes in
the statutory and regulatory environment. We plan to structure all of our agreerents, operations, marketing and
strategies in accordance with applicable law, although we can provide no assurance that our arrangements will not

" be challenged successfully or that required changes may not have a matenal adverse effect on our business,
ﬁnancnal condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We believe that the following discussion summarizes all of the material health care regulatory reqmrements to
which we currently are subject. Complymg with these regulatory requirements may involve expense to us, delay in
our operations and/or restructuring of our business. relatlonsh:ps Violations could potentially result in the
imposition of civil and/or criminal penalties. : ‘
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Anti-Kickback Laws o ! ) !
N ]

The federal health care program “anti-kickback™ law prohlbns the knowmg and willful offer paymem
solicitation or receipt of any form of remuneration in return for, or in order to induce, (i) the referral of a person for
services, (ii) the furnishing or arranging for the furnishing of items or serwces or (iii) the purchase, lease or order or
arranging or recommending purchasmg, leasing or ordenng any item or setvice, in each case, reimbursable under
any federal health care program. Because our products are relmbursable under Medicare, Medicaid and other
federal health care programs, the anti- kickback law applies. Many states have similar anti-kickback or anti-referral
laws, and in many cases these laws apply to all patients, not just federal health care program beneficiaries,
Noncompliance with, or violation of, the federal anti-kickback law can result in exclusion from federal health care
programs and civil and criminal andlllES Similar penalties are prowded for violation of state anti- klckback Taws.
Several federal courts have held that the anti-kickback law is violated if j ]l.lSI one purpose of payment is to induce the
referral of patients. To the extent that we are deemed 1o be subject to theée federal or similar state laws, we believe

that our activities and contemplated activities comply in all material re:spectq with such_statutes and regulations.
. f

Regulations to'the federal amiw-kickbeck law specify payment practices that will not be subject to prosecution
under the anti-kickback law. These are known as the “safe-harbors.” Failure to comply fully within a safe-harbor
does not mean the practice is per se illegal, and many common arrangements in the health care industry do not fit
with a safe harbor, yet are not violations of the anti-kickback law. Rdthér if a practice does not fit within a “safe
harbor,” no guarantee can be given that the practice will be exempt from prosecutlon it will be viewed under the
totality of the facts and c1rcumstances

Many of our relationships with customers, such as volume and other cl'iscounts fit within a safe harbor. However,
our service agreements with physwnan owned entities do not fit completely within a safe harbor. For example, the safe
barbor for equipment leases and the safe harbor for personal services both require that the aggregate amount of the rental
or service payment be fixed in advance for the term of the arrangement, whlch must be at least one year. However, where
the need for medical procedures is not known in advance, it is sometimes more appropriate to arrange for payment on a
per procedure basis, rather than determining a year’s total compensation in‘advance. For the reasons described below,
certain of our arrangements with physician-owned entities provide for payment on a per procedure basis.

In the case of cryosurgery, as well as other procedures that mvolve new or expensive technology, hospitals
often do not want to invest in the, required capital equipment. Rdther hospitals enter into arrangements with
specialty mobile service providers or equipment manifacturers to obtain the use of the necessary equipment and
disposable products (such as cryoprobes), as well as technician services, where applicable, on a per procedure basis.
In the case of cryosurgical equipment and disposables, some physicians hgve formed or invested in mobile service
providers that.provide cryosurgical equipment, disposables and services directly to hospitals. In such cases, our
relationship o the physician-owned entities is only as a seller of our prpducts, where discounts are provided in
accordance with the discount safe harbor. However, in some cases, we contract directly with hospitals to provide the
necessary equipment/disposables and technical 'support. These contracts generally provide for the hospltal to pay
for the equlpmenh’dlsposables and support package on a per procedure bams Since we are primarily in the business
of selling our equipment and disposable products, not providing services, when we contract 1o provide equipment to
hospitals we typically subcontract'with a mobile service provider or jother equlpment owner 1o furnish the
equipment as our subcontractor, A sngmr cant number of these businesses are owned entirely or in part by urologists
who purchase the equipment in order to make cryosurgery available in lheu; communities. Since the hospitals pay us
on a per procedure basis, we in turn pay our subcontractors on a per proced'ure basis pursuant to service agreements.
These service agreements do not meet a safe harbor since, as noted above, the safe harbors for equipment leases and
service arrangements require that the aggregate payment for the term of the arrangement must be set in advance,
Although the service agreements do not meet a safe harbor, our service agreements with physician-owned entities
include the fo!lowing elemems intended to address anti-kickback law concerns:

1
* Physician-owned subcontractors are not compensated or othenvlse! treated differently than non- physncnan-

owned entities; - %

: '
* The per procedure payments under the subcontracts are intended to reflect fair market value for the products
and services provided by the subcontractors;

i




| » Subcontracts are in writing and include a number of representations regarding health care regulatory

' compliance issues, including requiring the subcontractor to represent that dlsmbutlons to phy51c1an owners |
' of the subcontractor are not based on referrals; and

. Physicians must make significant investments in order to purchase our equipment. The fact that the
physicians have assumed bona fide business risk is an important factor in demonstrating that the arrange-
ment is not simply a way for physicians to profit from their referrals. RK

.

The Stark law prohibits a physician from refemng a Medicare patient for “designated health serv1ces *or DHS,
to an entity with which the physncnan has a direct or indirect financial relationship, whether in the nature of an
ownership interest or a compensation arrangement, subject only to limited exceptions. The Stark law also prohlblls
the recipient of a prohlbned referral from billing for the DHS provided pursuant thereto. DHS include inpatient and
outpauent hospital services. The enuty that bills Medicare for the DHS is considered to be the provider of the
DHS for Stark law purposes. Therefore, we are not providers of DHS. Rather, the hospitals where the procedures are
performed are the providers of DHS, because they bill Medicare for the cryosurgery procedures, and inpatient and
outpatient hospital services are DHS. . :

* Physicians who have an ownership or compensation relationship with the entities (such as mobile vendors) that
furnish our equipment to hospitals, and the hospitals that obtain equipment and services directly or indirectly from
such entities, are considered to have an “indirect compensation arrangement,” and therefore that relationship must
‘meet a Stark law exception in order for the physicians to make DHS referrals to the hosp1ta1 There is a Stark law
exception for indirect compensation arrangements. that applies if:

|
Pan ent Referral Laws ‘ '
|
|
|

(1) Fair Market Value Compensanon The compensation to the physician under the arrangement (or, if

- the first link in the chain of arrangements between the-parties is an ownership or investment interest by the

referring physician, the first entity up the chain that has a direct compensation arrangement with next liok in

the chain) represents fair market value and is not determined in a manner that takes into account the volume or
value of referrals or other business generated by the physician for the DHS entity;’ - : :

| (2) Written Contract. The arrangement is set out in wntmg 51gned by the pames and spec1ﬁes the
- services covered by Lhe arrangement; and e : .

3 Ann-K:ckbagk Law Comp_hance. The arrangemeﬁt does not violate the anti-kickback law.

Here, as noted above in connection with discussion of the anti-kickback law, our service agreements are in
writing, the per procedure payments are intended to reflect fair market value and are not determined in a manner that
takes into account referrals by owner-physicians to the hospltal and we believe that the arrangements do not violate

| the anti-kickback law. - :

4

. ) o
Many states also have patients referrals laws, some of which are more restrictive than the Stark law and
regulate referrals by all licensed healthcare practitioners for any health care services to an entity with which the
licenses has a financial relationship unless an exception applies. Such laws in particular states may prohibit us from
entering into relationships with physicians and physician-owned entities, which may limit business development.

HIPAA and Other Privacy Laws - “ T '

As of April 14, 2003, the privacy regulations devcloped under the Health Insurance Portability and Account-
ability Act of 1996, referred to as “HIPAA,” took effect The privacy regulauons place limitations ‘on a' ‘covered
entity’s” use and disclosure of identifiable patlent lnformanon incliding research data. While Endocare isnota
“covered entity” under HIPAA, Endocare’s relatlonshlps with covered entities, such as hospitals and physmans
sometimes implicate HIPAA. Accordingly, Endocare has adopted policies and procedures regarding confidentiality
and each employee who comes into contact with Protected Health Information (PHI or patient data) is trained in the
proper handling of such information. Endocare has also established procedures to determine when Endocare is
required to sign a “business associate agreement” with a covered entity in connection with receipt of PHI and when
such measures are not required. _ ‘ ‘ Ny i,
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|
.We believe that we have implemented appropriate measures to ensure that our relationships with covered
entities are appropriate and consistent with HIPAA. However, there are many uncertainties remaining about how
HIPAA applies to medical device companies, and no assurante can be given that HIPAA will not be interpreted in a

.
manner that will hamper our ab111ty to conduct medical research and receive medical information for other purposes
as well. ‘ : . i

. f
Other United States Regulatory Requirements

In addition to the regulatory framework for product approvals, we alj'e and may be subject to regulation under
federal and state laws, including requirements regarding occupational health and safety, laboratory practices and the
use, handling and disposing of toxi¢ or hazardous substances. We may also be subject to other present and future
local, state, federal and foreign regulations.

;
Seasonallty i

We believe that holidays, major medical conventions and vacatlonsl aken by physicians, patrents and patient
famrhes may have a seasonal impact on our sales of cryosurgical products because cryosurgical procedures can be
scheduled in advance We are continuing to monitor and assess the i rmpact seasonallty may have on demand for our
products : :

Competition | _ . -

The medical device industry is subject to intense competition. Signiﬁcant competitors in the area of prostate
cancer and other tumor ablation (renal, liver, lung and palliative mtervenuon) include companies that offer: surgical
devices (such as robotic surgery equipment); brachytherapy seeds and other forms of radiation therapy; and ablation
products, including cryoablation products and radiofrequency ablation; (RFA) products. Additional devices in
development such as high intensity focused ultrasound (HIFU}), microwave and others may be competitive devices

in the future. Many of our competltors have significantly greater ﬁnancxal and human resources than we do.
1

We beheve that currently only Galil Medical offers cryoablation products that compete with our cryoablatlon
products However, we beheve that our cryoablation products provide superlor technology and greater functionality,
at a price that is competltlve ' _ ‘ |

We believe the principal competitive factors in the cryoablation product market include:. .
* the safety and efﬁcacy of treatment alternatives; '

. acceptance of a procedure by physicians and patients;

4
« technology leadership and superiority; . ',
s price; . ' !
]
‘. avarlablhty of govemment or private insurance retmbursement and
‘ i .
’ speed to market. ! i . C o ,
I
|
Employees i
1

As of December 31, 2006, we had atotal of 123 employees Of these employees nine are engaged directly in
research and development activities, seven in regulatory affairs/quality assurance 23 in manufacturing, 57 in sales,
marketing, clinical support.and customer service and 27 in general and admlmstranve positions. We have never
experienced a work stoppage, none of our employees are represented by a'labor organization, and we consider-our .
employee relations to be good.

. L . . Iy

Avallable Information C _ i

| .
Our website address is www. endocare com. All filings we make withjthe SEC, including our annual report on
Form 10- K our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and our current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments thereto,
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are available at no charge through links displayed on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are
filed or furnished to the SEC. The reference to our website address does not constitute incorporation by reference of
the information contained on the website, and the information contained on the website is not part of this document.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties
not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our operations, The occurrence of
any of the following risks could harm our business, In that case, the trading price of our common stock could
decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.. . Co '

Risks Associated With our Business

We have a limited operating history with significant losses and expect losses to continue for the
foreseeable future. '

We have yet to establish any history of profitable operanons We have incurred annual operating losses from
continuing operations of $15.4 million, $16.6 million and $31.6 million, respectively, dunng the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. As a result, at December 31, 2006 we had an accumulated deficit of
$176.4 million. We have incurred net losses from continuing operations of $11.1 million, $14.8 million and
$31.9 million, respectively, during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. Our revenues have not
been sufficient to sustain our operations. We expect that our revenues will not be sufficient to sustain our operations
for the foreseeable future. We can give no assurances, when or whether we will ever be proﬁtable

We.may require additional financing to sustam our operations and without it we may not be. able to
continue operations. . : Y

We had an operating cash flow deficit of $13.6 mllhon for the vear ended December 31, 2006 and $14.7 mllllcm
for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The availability of funds under the $16.0 million ‘comn"non stock purchase égreer'ﬁent with Fusion Capital
Fund II, LL.C (Fusion Capital) and our $4.0 million credit agreement with Silicon Valley Bank is subject 0 many
conditions, some of which are predicated on events that are not within our control. Accordmgly, we cannot
guarantee that these capital resources will available or will be sufficient to fund our ongoing operations.

We only have the right to receive $100,000 every four business days under the agreement with Fusion Capital
unless our stock price equals or exceeds $1.50, in which case we can sell greater amounts to Fusion Capital as the
price of our common stock increases. Fusion Capital does not have the obligation to purchase any shares of our
common stock on any business day that the market price of our common stock is less than $1.00. Since we have
authorized 8,000,000 shares for sale to Fusion Capital under the common stock purchase agreement, the selling
price of our common stock to Fusion Capital will have to average at least $2.00 per share for us to receive the
maximum proceeds of $16.0 million. Assuming a purchase price of $1.75 per share.(the closing sale price of the
common stock on February 28, 2007) and the purchase by Fusion Capital of the full 8,000,000 shares under the
common stock purchase agreement, gross proceeds to us would be $14.0 million.

Under the credit agreement, funds available for borrowing are based on eligible trade receivables and inventory-
as defined. The credit agreement contains a subjective acceleration clause and a requirement 1o maintain a lockbox -
with the lender to which all receivable collections are deposited. Under the subjective acceleration clause, the lender
may accelerate repayment of amounts borrowed and/or cease making advances to us if it determines that a material -
adverse change has occurred in our business or our ability to meet our obligations under the agreement. In addition,
the proceeds from the lock box will be applied to reduce the outstanding borrowings upon an event -default
(including the occurrence of a material adverse change) or if trigger events occur. Qur ability to access funds under
the credit agreement will be subject to our ability to meet all restrictive covenants and comply with all repre-
sentations and warranties. T

- The extent to which we rely on Fusion Capital as a source of funding will depend on a number of factors
including the prevailing market price of our common'stock and the extent to which we are able to secure working
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capital from other sources, such as through the sale of our products. If sufﬁment financing from Fusion Capital were
to prove unavailable or prohibitively dilutive and if we are unable to sell, enough of our-products, we may need to
secure another source of funding in order to satisfy our working capital'needs. Even if we are able to access the full
$16.0 million under the common stock purchase agreement with Fusion Capital, we may still need additional capital
to fully implement our business, operating and development plans. Should the financing we require to sustain our
working capital needs be unavailable or prohibitively expensive when we require it, the consequences could have a
material adverse effect on our busmess, financial condition, results of operauons and cash flows.

- K beoo o jro -

Our independent auditor has issued an unqualified opmmn with an explanatory paragraph to the effect
that there is substantlal doubt about our ablllty to contlnue asa gomg concern. ~

Even despite the availability of funds from Fusion Capital and SlllCOIl Valley Bank, our 1ndependent auditor
‘has issued an unqualified opinion with an explanatory paragraph to the effecl that there is substantial doubt about
our ability to continue as a going concern due to, among other factors, thie subjective acceleration provisions and
conditions that must be met in order to access the funds under the Fusion Capital common stock purchase agreement
and the Silicon Valley Bank credit facility. This unqualified opinion with an explanatory paragraph could itself have
a material adverse effect on our, business, financial condition, results of operauons and cash flows. See “Liguidity
and Capital Resources” in Part II Ttem 7, “Management s Discussion and Analysis of Fmancml Condmon and

Results of Operations.” ‘ |
. [}

'i ‘ l , .
The sale of our common stock to Fusmn Capital may cause dilution;and the sale of the shares of
common stock acqmred by Fusmn Capltal could cause the prlce of our commen stock to dechne. ’

In connection with entering into the common stock purchase agreement with Fusion Capital, we authorized the
sale to Fusion Capital of up to 8,000,000 shares of our common stock, 1n addition 1o the 473,957 shares that we
issued to Fusion Capital as a commitment fee. The number of shares ultlmately offered for sale by Fusion Capital is
dependent upon the number of shares purchased by Fusion Capital under the agreement. The purchase price for the
common stock 1o be sold to Fusion Capital pursuant to the common stock Ipurchase agreement will fluctuate based
on the price of our common stock. All-8,473,957 shares that we have registered pursuant to our registration rights
agreement with Fusion Capital are freely tradable. It is anticipated that shmhs registered will be sold over a perioed of
up to 24 months. Depending upon market liquidity at the time, a sale of sh:ares by Fusion Capital at any given time
could cause the trading price of our common stock to decline. Fusion Capital may ultimately purchase all or some of
the 8,000,000 shares of common stock authorized for sale to Fusion Cafntal under the common stock purchase
agreement. After it has acquired such shares, it may sell atl, some or none of such shares. Therefore, sales to Fusion
Capital by us under the common stock purchase agreement may result in substantlal dilution to the interests of other
holders of our common stock. The sale of a substantial number of shares of our common stock by Fusion Capltal or
anticipation of such sales, could make it more difficult for us to sell equity or equity-related securities in the future at
a time and at a price that we might otherwise wish to effect sales. Howevel1 we have the right to control the timing
and amount of any sales of our shares to Fusion Capital and the agreement may be terminated by us at any time at
our discretion without any cost to us. Asof February 28, 2007, we had sold an aggregate of 566,978 shares to Fusion
Capital under the common stock purchase agreement, in addition to the 473 957 shares that we issued to Fusion
Capital as a commitment fee. ., { ., . . ‘

- . L e _:

Our business may be materially and adversely impacted by the loss of our largest customer or the ~-
reduction, delay or cancellation of orders from this customer; in addmon, our business may be
materially and adversely lmpacted if this customer delays payment or fails to pay for products sold to
this custnmer. ‘

For the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2006 our largest customer accounted for 39.8% and
28.8%, respectively, of our revenues, and as of December 31, 2006 this customer accounted for 45.7% of our
accounts receivable. Our sales to this customer may ‘be materially and.adversely impacted by various factors
relating to this customer’s business, financial condition, results of operationsf; and cash flows. Our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows may be materially and adversely impacted by the loss of this
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customer, or the reduction, delay or cancellation of orders. In addition, our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows may be materially and adversely impacted if this customer delays payment or fails to pay
for products sold. This customer is not obligated to purchase a specific quantity of our products or provide binding
forecasts of purchases for any period.

We may be required to make tax payments that exceed our settlement estimates.

As of December 31, 2005 and 2006 we esiimated that we owed $3.4 million and $2.8 million, respectively, as
of each balance sheet date in state and local taxes, primarily sales and use taxes, in various jurisdictions in the
United States. We are in the process of negotiating resolutions of the past due tax obligations with the applicable tax
authorities. While we hope that these obligations can be setiled for less than the amounts accrued, we cannot predict
whether we witl obtain favorable settlement terms from the various tax authorities, or that, after settling, we will
satisfy the conditions necessary to avoid violating the settlements. Our failure to obtain favorable settlement terms
or to satisfy the settlement conditions may result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

We may incur significant expenses in the future as a result of our obligation to pay legal fees for and
otherwise indemnify former officers and former directors. .

As described below under Part I, Item 3, “Legal Proceedings,” certain former officers and former directors
continue to be involved in investigations and related legal proceedings brought by the SEC and the DOJ. We are
contractually obligated to pay legal fees for and otherwise indemnify these former officers and former directors. We
may incur significant expenses in the future as a result of these obligations. The amount of these expenses is
unpredictable and outside of our control and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows,

'

Our success will depend on our ability to attract and retain key personnel.

t
In order to execute our business plan, we need Lo attract, retain and motivate a significant number of highly
qualified managerial, technical, financial and sales personnel. If we fail to attract and retain skilled scientific and
sales personnel, our research and development and sales and marketing efforts will be hindered. Qur future success
depends to a significant degree upon the continued services of key management personnel. None of our key
management personnel is covered by an insurance policy of which we are the beneficiary.

Our success is reliant on the acceptance by doctors and [:iatients of the Cryocare Surgical System as a
preferred treatment for tumor ablation.

Cryosurgery has existed for many years, but has not been widely accepted primarily due to concerns regarding
safety and efficacy and widespread use of alternative therapies. Because the technology previously lacked precise
monitoring capabilities, prostate cryosurgical procedures performed in the 1970s resulted in high cancer recurrence
and negative side effects, such as rectal fistulae and incontinence, and gave cryosurgical treatment negative
publicity. To overcome these negative side effects, we have developed ultrasound guidance and temperature sensing
to enable more precise monitoring in our Cryocare Surgical System. Nevertheless, we will need to overcome the
earlier negative publicity associated with cryosurgery in order to obtain market acceptance for our products. In
addition, use of our Cryocare Surgical System requires significant physician education and training. As a result, we
may have difficulty obtaining recommendations and endorsements of physicians and patients for our Cryocare
Surgical System. We may also have difficulty raising the brand awarcness necessary to generate interest in our
Cryocare Surgical System. Any adverse side effects, including impotence or incontinence, recurrence of cancer or
future reported adverse events or other unfavorable publicity involving patient outcomes from the use of
cryosurgery, whether from our products or the products of our competitors, could adversely affect acceptance
of cryosurgery. In addition, emerging new technologies and procedures to treat prostate cancer may negatively
affect the market acceptance of cryosurgery. If our Cryocare Surgical System does not achieve broad market
acceptance, we will likely remain unprofitable.
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We are faced with intense competition and rapid technological and industry change, which may make it
more difficult for us to achieve significant. market penetratlon. . S .

The medical device industry generally, and the cancer treatment luarket in particular, are characterized, by
rapid technological change, changing customer needs and frequent new product introductions. If our competltors
existing, products or new products are more effective than or considered superior to our products, the commercial
opportumty for our produc[s will be reduced or eliminated. We face mtense competition from companies in the
cryosurgical marketplace as well as companies offering other treatment’ opuons including radical prostatectomy,
radlauon therapy and hormone therapy If we are successful in penetratmg the market for treatment of prostate
cancer with our cryosurg:cal treatment other medical device companies may be attracted to the marketplace Many
of our potenual .competitors are mgmﬁcamly larger than we are and have greater financial, technical, research,
markeung sales, distribution and other resourccs than we do. We believe there will be intense price competition for
producls developed in our markets. Qur competitors may develop or rnarket technologies and products that are more
effecllve or commercrally attractive than any that we are developing orI marketifig. Our competitors may obtain
reguldtory approval and introduce and commercialize products before we do. These developments could have a
‘material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, restlts of operauons and cash flows. Even if we are able
to compete successfully, we may not be able to do soin'a proﬁtable manner.

. . . .- o LR
If we are unable to continue to ephance our Cryocare Surglcal Syslem, our business will suffér. '
PE ) . '

Our. growth depends in pan on continued ability to successfully develop, manufacture and commercialize
‘enhancements to our Cryocare Surgical System. We may experience dlfﬁculues that could delay or prevent the
successful development, manufacturing and commercialization of these products. Our products in development
may not prove safe and effective in clinical trials. Clinical trials may 1de.nlrfy significant technical or other obstacles
that must be overcome before obtaining necessary regulatory or reimbursement approvals. In addition, our
competitors may succeed in developing commercially viable products that render our products obsolete or less
attractive. Failure to successfully develop, manufacture and commerc1ahze new products and enhancements could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condmon, results of operations and cash flows.

A
a

1

|
‘There is uncertainty relatmg to third- party reimbursement, which is critical to market acceptance of

our products. . -, - v TR }

" Hospitals and othier health care providers in the United States generally rely on third-party payers, principally
federal Medicare, state Medicaid and private health insurance plans, to reimburse all or part of the cost of medical
procedures involving our products. While private health insurers in some areas of the Umted States provide
relmbursement for procedures in which our products are used, we can provrde no assurdnce 'that pnvale insurance
‘réimbursement w1ll be adopted nanonally or by additional insurers, Furthermore, those private insurance companies
'currently paying 'for procedures in which our products dre used may termmate such coverage. If reimbursement
levels from Medicare, Medicaid, other governmental health care programs or private ‘insurers are not sufficient,
physrcrans may choose not to recommerid, and patients may not choosel procedures usmg our products

¢

A

International market acceptance of our products may depend, in part upon the ava1lab|llty of reimbursement
+within prevailing health care payment sysiems. Reimbursement and health care payment systems in international
markets vary significantly, by.country, and include both government sponlsored health care and private insurance.
We may, not obtain international reimbursement approvals i in a timely rllanner if at all.” Our failure to receive
mternauonal reimbursement’ approvals may negatlvely 1mpact market acceplance of our products in the mtema-
tional markets in which those approvals are Sought l

From time to time significant attention has been focused on reformmg the health care system in-the
United States and other countries. Any changes in Medicare, Medicaid or ‘third- -party medical expense reimburse-
ment, which' may arise from health care reform, may have a material adverse effect on reimbursement for our
-products or procedures in which our products are used and may reduce the price we are able to charge for our
products. In addition, changes to the health care systemn may also affect the commercial acceptance of products we
.are currently developing and products we may develop in the future, Potential changes that have been considered
include controls on health care spendmg and price controls. Several propos}zﬂs have been made in the United States
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Congress and various.state legislatures recently that, if adopted, would potentially reduce health care spending,
which may result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

oy ] v

If we fail to protect our intellectual property rights, our competltors may take advantage ol' our ideas
and compete dlrectly agamst us.

] .
4 . .

Our success will depend to a'significant degree on our ability to secure and protecl intellectual property rights
and to enforce patent and trademark protectlons relating to our technology From time to time, litigation may be
advisable to protect our intellectual property posmon However, these legal means afford only limited protection
and may not adequately protect our rights or permit us to gain or keep any compelitive advantage. Any litigation in
this regard could be costly, and it is possible that we will not have sufficient resources to fully pursue litigation or to
protect our other intellectual property rights. Litigation could result in the rejection or invalidation of our existing
and future patents. Any adverse outcome in litigation relating to the validity of our patents, or any failure to pursue
litigation or otherwise to protect our patent position, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows. Also, even if we prevail in litigation, the litigation would be costly in
terms of management distraction as well as in terms of money. In addition, confidentiality agreements with our
employees, consultants, customers, and key vendors may not prevent the unauthorized disclosure or use of our
technology. It is possible that these agreements could be breached or that they might not be enforceable in every
instance, and that we might not have adequate remedies for any such breach. Enforcement of these agreements may
be costly and time consuming. Furthermore, the laws of foreign countries may not protect our mtellectual property
rights to the same extent as the laws of the Uﬂltt,d ‘States: ‘ : -

Because the medical device industry is litigious, we may be sued for allegedly violating the intellectual
property rights of others.

The medical technology industry has in the past been characterized by a substantial amount of litigation and
related administrative proceedings regarding patents and intellectual property rights. In addition, major medical
device companies have used litigation against emerging growth companies as a means of gaining or preserving a
competitive advantage. _ L L . o

Should third parties file patent applications or, be issued patents claimmg technology also clalmed by us in
pending apphcatlons we may be required to partic1pate in 1nterference proceedings in the United States Patent and
Trademark Office to determine the relative priorities of our mvemions and the third parties’ inventions. We could
also be required to part1c1pate in interference proceedings mvolvmg our issued patents and pending applications of
another entity. An adverse outcome in an interference proceeding could require us to cease using the technology or
to license rights from prevailing third parties.

Third parties may claim we are'using their patented inventions and may go o court to stop us from engaging in
our normal operations and activities. These lawsuits are expensive to defend and conduct and would also consume
and divert the time and attention of our management. A court may decide that weare infringing a third party’s
f)ateiits and may order us to ‘cease the infringing activity. A court could also order us to pay damages for the
infringement. These damages could be substantial and could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. - : ‘

| , . ! . .
. If we are unable to obtain any necessary license following an adverse determination in litigation or in
interference or other administrative proceedings, we would have to redesign our products to avoid infringing a third
party's patent and could temporarily or permanently have to discontinue manufacturing and selling some of our
products. If this were 1o occur; it would negatively 1mpact future sales and, in turn, our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.
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If we fail to obtain or maintain’'necessary regulatory clearances ori- approvals for products, or if
approvals are delayed or withdrawn, we will be unable to commercially distribute and market our
producis or any product modifications. l

[

Government regulation has'a'significant impact on.our business. Government regulation in the United States
and other countries is a significant factor affecting the research and development manufacture and marketing of our
products. In the United States, the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has broad authority under the federal
FD&C Act to regulate the distribution; manufacture and sale of medical devices. Foreign sales of drugs and medical
devices are subject to foreign governmental regulation and restrictions, which vary from country to country. The
process of obtaining FDA and other required regulatory clearances and: approvals is lengthy and expensive. We may
not be able to obtain or maintain necessary approvals for clinical testmg or for the manufacturing or marketing of
our products. Failure to comply with applicable regulatory approvalsican, among other things, result in fines,
suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approvals product recalls, operating restrictions and criminal prosecution.
In addition, governmental regulations may be established whlch could prevent, delay, modify or rescind regulatory
approval of our products Any of these actions by the FDA, or change in FDA regulauons could have a matenal
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operatrons and cash flows.

3

' Regulatory approvals 1f granted may 1nclude srgmﬁcant lrmltauons on the mdlcated uses for whrch our
products may be marketed. In -addition, to obtam such approvals, the FI?A and forelgn regulatory authorities may
impose numerous other requu'ements on us. FDA enforcemem policy prohrbrts the marketing of approved medical
devices for unapproved uses. In addmoa product approvals can be wnthdrawn for failure to comply with regulatory
standards or unforeseen problems followmg initial marketing. We may not be able {0 obtain or maintain regulatory
approvals for our products ona tlmely basis, or at all, and delays in recelpt of or failure to receive such approvals, the
loss of previously obtained approvals or failure to comply with exlstmg or future regulatory requirements could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our products may be subject to product recalls even after recewm‘g FDA clearance or approval which
would harm our reputatlon and our.business. - . coo b ] o -

The FDA and similar governmental authonues in other countries have the authonty to request and, in some
cases, require the’ recall of our products in the event of material deﬁcneneres or defects in des1gn or manufacture. A
governmental mandated or voluntary recall by us could occur as a result of component failures, manufactunng
errors or design defects. Any recall of product would divert managenal and ﬁnancral resources and harm our
reputation with customers and our-business.

We could be negatively impacted by future mterpretatlon or lmplementatlon of the federal anti-kickback
and Stark Iaws and other federal and state anti-self-referral and ant:-kickback laws. .

4

" The federal Stark law prohibits a physician from referrmg Medlcarci: patlents for cenaln services (o an entrty
with which the physrcran has a ﬁnancnal relationship. A financial relationship mcludes both investment interests in
an entity and compensatron arrangemems with an entity. The federal anti- krckback law pl‘OhlbltS the offer or receipt
of any.remuneration in order to 1nduce referrals of federal health care prégram busmess Many states have similar
and often broader laws. These state laws generally apply to services reimbursed by both governmental and private
payers. Violation of these federal and state laws may result in prohibition of payment for services rendered, loss of
licenses, fines, criminal penalties and exclusion from govemmental and private payer programs, among other
things. We have financial relationships with physicians and pny51c1an-0wned entities, which in turn have financial
relationships with hospitals and "other providers of desrgnated health servrces Although we believe that our
financial relationships with physicians and physician-owned entities, as well as the relationships between phy-
sician-owned entities that purchase or lease our products-and hospitals; are not in violation of applicable laws and
regulations, governmental authorities might take a contrary position, If our financial relatronshlps with physicians
or physician-owned entities or the relationships between those entities ar_rd hospitals weré found to be illegal, we
‘and/or the affected physicians and’ hospitals could-be subject to:civil and criminal penalties, including fines,
exclusion from participation in government and private payer programs and requirements to refund amounts
-previously received from government and private payers. In . addluon}r expansion of ‘our operations to new
jurisdictions, or new interpretations of laws in our existing jurisdictions; could require structural and organizational
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modifications of our relationships with physicians, physician-owned entities and -others to.comply, with .that
jurisdiction’s laws. For a further description of these laws see above in Part [, Item 1, under “Health Care
Regulatory Issues.” PP

We believe that the arrangements we have established with physician-owned entities-and hospitals comply
with applicable Stark law exceptions. However, if any of the relationships between physicians and hospitals
involving our services do not meet a Stark law exception, neither the hospital nor we would be able to bill for any
procedure resulting from a referral that violated the Stark law. Although in most cases we are nol the direct provider
and do not bill Medicare for the designated health services, any Stark law problem with our business arrangements
with physicians and hospitals would adversely affect us as well as the referring physician and the hospital receiving
the referral. . o Yl o

Many states also have patient teferral laws, some of which are more restrictive than the Stark law and régulate
referrals by all licensed health care practitioners for any health care service to an entity with which the licensee hasa
financial relationship unless an exception applies. Such laws in particular states may. prohibit us from-entering into
relationships with physicians and physician-owned entities, which may limit business development. ‘ '

We believe that our business practices comply with the Stark law, the federal anti-kickback and applicable state
anti-kickback angl anti-self-referral Jaws. No assurance can be mad_e,.howéver, that these practices w'(_')uld not be
successfully challenged and penalties, such as civil money penalties and exclusion from Medicare and Medicaid,

‘and/or state pénalties, imposed. And again, mere challenge, even if we ultimately prevail, could have a material

]

adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

If we become subject to product liability claims, ;we may be required to pay damages that exceed our
insurance coverage. : R _ _ ’

Our business exposes us to potential product_'li_ability claims that are inherent in the testing, production,
marketing and sale of medical devices. While we believe that we are reasonably insured against these risks, we may
not maintain insurance in amounts or scope sufficient to provide us with adequate coverage. A claim inexcess of our
insurance coverage would have to be paid out of cash reserves, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, any product liability claim could
harm our reputation in the industry and our business. ' - .

-

Our iniangible assets could become impaired.

Intangible assets acquired in a purchase, such as intellectual property or developed technology, are generally

-amortized over various periods depending on their anticipated economic benefits or useful lives. Long-lived assets,

including amortizable -intangibles, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in. circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset, Following a review, if such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment 1o be
recognized is measured by the amount by which the E;arrying value of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.
Significant estimates, including assumptions regarding future events and circumstances' that cannot be easily
predicted, are required to perform an analysis of the value of intangible assets. These estimates and,a'ssﬁfnptio'ns

‘may differ materially from actual outcomes and occurrences.

Our facilities and systems are vulnerable to natural disasters or other catastrophic events.

T

Our headquarters, cryosurgical products manufacturing facilities, research facilities and much of our infra-

structure, including computer servers, are located in California, an area that is susceptible (o earthquakes and other

natural disasters. A natural disaster or other catastrophic event, such as an earthquake, fire, flood, severe storm,
break-in, terrorist attack or other comparable probtems could cause interruptions or delays in our business and loss
.of data or render us unable to accept and fulfill customer orders in a timely manner, or at all. We have no formal
disaster recovery plan and our business interruption insurance may not adequately compensate us for losses that
may occur. In the event that an earthquake, natural disaster or other catastrophic event were to destroy any part of
our facilities or interrupt our operations for any extended period of time, or if harsh weather conditions prevent us
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from delivering products in a timely manner, it could have a material adverse effect on-our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows. .

Risks Associated with an Investment in Qur Common Stock |

The market price of our common stock is highly volatile, o

, 1
The market price of our common stock has been and is expected to continue to be highly volatile. Various

factors, including announcements of technological innovations by us or other companies, regulatory matters, new or
existing products or procedures, concerns about our financial position, operating results, litigation government

_ regulation, developments or disputes relating to agreements, patents or propnetary rights, may have a significant
impact on the market price of our stock, If our operating results are bclow the expectations of securities analysts or
investors, the market price of our common stock may fall babmplly and significantly.

Future sales of shares of our common stock may negatively affect (lur stock pnce

Future sales of our common stock, mcludmg shares issued upon | lhe exercise of outstanding options and
warrants or hedging or other denvatwe transactions with respect to our, stock, could have a significant negative
effect on the market price of our common stock. These sales also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity
securities or equity-related securities in the future at a time and price that we would deem appropriate.

We had an aggregate of 30,679,176 shares of common stock outslf'lm'ding as of December 31, 2006, which
includes 5,635,378 shares of our common stock that we issued on March 11, 2005 in connection with the financing
described in the Form 8-K that we filed en March 16, 2005, Investors in'that financing also received warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 1,972,374 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $3.50 per share and
1,972,374 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share In addition, on October 25, 2006,
under the terms of the common stock purchase agreement with Fusion Capital, we issued 473,957 shares of our
common stock to Fusion Capital as a commitment fee. We may sell up to 8,000,000 additional shares to Fusion
Capital pursuant to the common stock purchase agreement. As of February 28, 2007, we had sold an aggregate of
566,978 shares to Fusion Capital under the commeon stock purchase agreement, in addition to the 473,957 shares
that we issued to Fusion Capital as a commitment fee. The warrants issued on March 11, 2005 have an anti-dilution
clause that in certain circumstances reduces the effective exercise price of the warrants and proportionately
increases the number of shares underlying the warrants to preserve the own!ership of the warrant holders. As aresult
of the issuance of the 473,957 plus an additional 30,242 shares to Fusion capital in 2006 the exercise price of the
warrants decreased to effectively provide holders an additional 47,769 shares. Additionally, through February 28,
2007 we issued an additional 536,736 shares to Fusion Capital, which decreased the warrant price to effecuvely
provide holders an additional 54,862 shares. :

We entered into registration rights agreements in connection with these financings pursuant to which we
- agreed to register for resale by the investors the shares of common stock issued. Sales of shares covered by these
registration statements could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our shares.

Our common stock was delisted from the Nasdaq Stock Market and, as a result, trading of our common
stock has become more difficult. % )

Our commen stock was delisted from the Nasdaq National Market on J" anuary 16, 2003 because of our failure
to keep current in filing our periodic reports with the SEC. Trading is now conducted in the over-the-counter market
on the Nasdag OTC Bulletin Board Market, Consequently, selling our common stock is more difficult because
smaller guantities of shares can be bought and sold, transactions can be delayed and security analyst and news media
coverage of us may be reduced. These factors could result in lower prices andlarger spreads in the bid and ask prices
for shares of our comnmon stock as well as lower trading volume. We hope that our common stock will eventually be
relisted with the American Stock Exchange (AMEX), the Nasdaq Capital Market or the Nasdaq Global Market, but
we cannot assure you that our common stock will be relisted within any particular time period, or at all. As noted
below, we may effectuate a reverse stock-split in order to qualify our stock for relisting. .
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In order to qualify our stock for rélisting, we may effectuate a reverse stock split, which could adversely
affect our stockholders. _ . . .

In order to qualify our stock for relisting, we may effectuate a reverse stock split. AMEX requires a minimum
bid price of $2.00, the Nasdaq Capital Market requires a minimum bid price of $4.00 and the Nasdaq Global Market
requires a minimum bid price of $5.00. As of February 28, 2007, the closing price for our common stock as reported
on the Nasdaq OTC Bulletin Board Market was $1.75 per share. ' ) )

o ‘Any reverse stock split requires the prior approval of our stockholders at a stockﬁqlders meeling, because our
charter prohibits stockholder action by written consent. Our stockholders have authorized us to effectuate a reverse
stock split at any time until May 18, 2007. The authorization allowed for the combination of any whole number of
shares of cogn,mon‘sllock between and including two and five into one share of common stock, i.e.,-each of the
following combination ratios: one for two, one for three, one for four and one for five. If our Board of Directors
decides to proceed with the reverse stock split, then the Board will determine the exact ratio within the range
described in the previous sentence. In many instances historically the markets have reacted negatively to the
effectuation of a reverse stock split. The trading price of our stock may be négatively affected if our Board decides to
proceed with a reverse stock split. If the Board of Directors does not implement a reverse stock split prior to May 18,
2007, then stockholder approval again would be required prior to irfaplementing any reverse 'sltock split. We expect to
ask our stockholders at our 2007 :armua] meeting to authorize a reverse stock split for another two years.

We could be difficult to acquire due to anti-takeover provisions in our charter, our stockholders rights
plan and Delaware law. ' C ’ .

‘Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have the effect of making it more difficult for a
third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire control of our company. In
addition, we have adopted a stockholder rights plan in which preferred stock purchase rights were distributed as a
dividend. These provisions may make it more difficult for stockholders to take corporate actions and may have the
effect of delaying or preventing a change in control. These provisions also could deter or prevent transactions that
stockholders deem to be in their interests. In addition, we are subject to the anti-takeover provisions of Section 203
of the Delaware General Corporation Law. Subject to specified exceptions, this section provides that a corporation
may not engage in any business combination with any interested stockholder during the three-year period following
the time that such stockholder becomes an interested stockholder. This provision could have the effect of delaying
or preveriting a change of control of our company. The foregoing factors could reduce the price that investors or an
acquirer might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our ‘common stock. '

1 teow v

IR . *
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

[ 1

Item 2. Properties o ' ' ‘ S o oo " '
. Our e)iiecutive offices, as well as our principal _mam‘lfacturing and research facilities, are located in,a
28,000 square foot facility in Irvine, California. The lease for this” facility 'e'}pires in‘2019,_wil.h'h an option to
extend the lease for an additional five years. We believe that our property and equipment dre generally well
maintained, in good operating condition and are sufficient to meet our current needs.
1. . A . : o E .J' . T, N H it
Item 3. Legal Proceedings ' a et R
N o O . L P . ot L. L.
. We are a party to lawsuits in the normal course of our business. Litigation and governmental investigation can
be expensive and disruptive to'normal business operations. Moreover, the results of complex legal proceedings are
difficult to predict. Significant judgments or settlements in connection with the legal proceedings described below
may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Other

than as described below, we are not a party to any legal proceedings that we believe to be material.: .-
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'Lawsuit with KPMG LLP

|
|
1
}
Governmental Investigations E

As reported in the Form S—K that we filed on July 20, 2006, we executed aconsent to entry of judgment in favor
of the Securities and ‘Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on July 14 2006 and entered into a non-prosecution
agreement with the Department of Justice (the *DOJ™) on July 18, 2006 These two agreements effectively resolve
with respect to the Company the investigations begun by the SEC and by the DO} in January 2003. The

‘ mvesttganons and legal proceedmgs related to certain former ofﬁc‘ers and former directors remam ongoing.
T We' remain contractual]y obhgated to pay legal fees for and otherwise mdemmfy these former officers and former

directors. On August 9, 2006 the{ SEC filed civil fraud charges in federal dtstnct court agmnst two former ofﬁcers

+ ‘l.. Lol

|
Given the recent announcements by numerous compames and the SEC’s current focus on stock optron plan
adrmmstratton, our Audit Commtttee requested that rnanagement conduct an internal review of our historical stock

'optton practices, the timing of stock optron grants and related accounung and documentation. Based on this revietw,

management identified several stock option grants made between 1997 and 2002 for which the actual measurement
dates appeared to differ from the recorded grant dates. Managementlanalyzed the potential accounting impact,
assuming that the measurément dates for these option grants differ from the recorded grant dates, and concluded that- .
the financial impact did not necessitate adjustment to or restatement of our prthously-tssued financial reports.
Management reported the results. of its review to our Audit Comrntttee and Board of Dtrectors at their regularly
scheduled meetings on July 26, 2006. Following these meetings, we contacted the SEC and the DOJ and reported
our findings. On August 1, 2006, 'we met with the SEC staff to d1scuss our findings and later feceived a subpoena
from the SEC requesting additional option-related information, We have responded to this subpoena and will |
continue to fully cooperate with the SEC and DOJ and with their ongc;ung investigations related to certain of our :

former officers and former dtrectors . i

~After receiving the subpoena irom the SEC, management 1denuﬁed certain stock option grants made in 2003
for which the actual measurement dates may differ from the recorded grant dates. However, similar to the grants
between 1997.and 2002 prevrously identified, management concluded that the financial impact, individually and in
the aggregate, of the 2003 grants did not necessitate adjustment to or restatement of our previously-issued financial
reports.

ot
iy

i o
i

On October 26 2006 we ﬁled a lawsmt w1th the Supenor Court of the State of Cahforma for the County of
Orange against our former 1ndependent auditor, KPMG LLP, for professmnal negltgence and breach of contract,
seeking damages in an amount totbe determined at trial. Previously, we had entered into a Mediation and Tolling

Agreement with KPMG pursuant to which KPMG agreed that the statute lof limitations would be tolled to provrde an

" opportunity for mediation betweer the parties. We engaged in mediation\with KPMG on September 27,2006 but the

' parues were unable to reach settlement ‘Accordingly; we proceeded with the filing of the lawsuit. In response to our

claims against KPMG, KPMG filed'a cross- complaint agairist the Comﬁany and certain former officers. Under the

Teross“Gomplaint,- KPMG 'makes clatms against: the Company for breach of -contract, 'violations of the federal

racketeering statute and consp1racy to violate the federal racketeering statute; seeking damages in an amount to be
determined at trial. We are not able to predict the outcome of this lawsuit.

J . -
Item 4. | Submission, of Matters.to a Vote of Security Holders, | . .
Not applicable. :
; ' “ - TR
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Cammon Equtty, Related Storkhalder Maiters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information

. OnJ anuary 16, 2003, our common  stock was dehsted from the Nasdaq Nauonal Market and began to trade on
the Plnk Sheets. On October 21, 2005 our stock began to trade on the Nasdag OTC Bulletin Board Market or
“OTCBB " The symbol under which we trade on the OTCBB is ENDO.

The following table sets forth for the ﬁscal quarters indicated, the high and low sales pnces for our common
stock as reflected on the Pink Sheets.or OTCBB, as applicable. Such prices represent inter-dealer prices without
retail mark up, mark down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

e ' - | ~ High  Low -

'Year Ended December 31, 2006: . . .. .. S T LLo.. $3.50 $2.68
First Quarter. . ... .... P . 385 235
Second Quarter........... e e P e .. 280 150
Thitd QUATTET . . .« -+ v s e e eeee e [ 205 . 157 .

.+ Fourth Quarter . . ... e et U .

Year Ended-December 31, 2005: i : SR

 FirstQuarter. .. ............ P P o000 $3.700 08225

cas Second QuUArter. . ... i e e s 44D 2.98

* Third Quarter . . ... N S L DUUIPRP e w515 2.89

' "FourthQuarter ..... T e ... 329 235
Holders

As of February 28, 2007, there were 239 hoelders of record of our common stock. This number was derived
from our stockholder records and does not include beneficial owners of our common stock whose shares are held in
the names of various dealers, clearing agencies, banks, brokers, and other fiduciaries. .

Dividénds

+

- We have never paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We ant1c1pate that we w1]l retain any future
.~ earnings to support operations and to finance the growth and development of our business. Therefore, we do not
expect to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on existing conditions, “including our financial condition,
contractual restrictions, capital requirements and busmess prospects ) T ,

. I : L, :
Recent Sa]es of Unregistered Securltles ‘ ,

None, except as previously reported in a Quarterly Report on Form’ IO-Q or Culrrent Report on Forn 8-K.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Not applicable.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with Part II, Item 7 “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations” and our consolidated financial
statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The selected financial
data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 were previously restated. Detailed
information regarding these restatements is disclosed in Notes 3 and 16 to our consolidated financial statements

24
i




-t

+

filed in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and Note 2 to our consolidated
. financial statements filed in our annual report on Form 10-K (as amended) for the year ended December 31, 2004.
As dlscussed below is Part II, Item 7 “Managements Discussion and Anaiyﬂs of Financial Condition and Results of
Operanons effective January 1, 2006 we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (rewsed
2004), Share Based Paymenr whlch changed the way we account for our stock-based compensation. Our hlstorlcal
results are not necessarlly mdlcauve of operatmg results to be cxpected in the future.

t

A 002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Revenues from continuing operations . . ........ $17,901 . §$19.604 $24,181 $28274 §27990
Loss from continuing .operations :............ © (26, 492) $(24, 963) $(31,901) $(14,838) $(11,076)
Net 'loss per share of common stock — basic and '
" “diluted (continuing operations) . ............ % (113 (1 03) $§ (3D % 5 $ (037
‘Weighted-average shares of common stock ' ‘

outstanding .. .. ... L oL 23,822 24,1|62‘ 24,263 28,978 30,253
Balance Sheet Data: 7 ' j
Total'assets . . - .. ... ... i $92628 $ 71,?97 $34374 $32237 $16,246

Common stock warrants . (.. ... e I L8 — 3 — % — % 5023- % 1,307

e . . * | .
Item 7. Mapagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Candition and Results of Operations

The following d:scusswn should be read in conjunction with “Iftem I — Business,” “Item 1A — Risk Factors,”
“Item 6 — Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and “Item 8 — Fmancza! Statements and Supplementary Data,”
as well as our consolidated fi nanciél statements and related notes comamed elsewhere in thrs Annual Report on
Fonn 10°K. This discussion contains forward-looking statements bas‘ed on our current expe(:!anons There are

“various factors — many beyond our control— that could cause our actual results or the occurrence ‘or timing of
expected events io differ materially from those annc:pated inthese farivard lookmg statements. Some of these
, factors are descnbea‘ below and other factors are descnbed elsewhereq in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

’ mcludmg ‘above under' “Risks Factors” in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition, there are
factors not described i in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that could cause our actual results or the'occurrence or
rrmmg of expecred events 10 differ matenally from those anuc:pated in ‘these forward-looking statements. All
forward looking statements included i in ‘this Annual Reporr on Form 10-K are based on information available to us
as of the date hereof ana’ we assumie no obligation to update any such farward looking staremems k

i

. Overview

We are an 1nnovauve ‘medical device company focused on the development of minimally invasive technologies
for tissue and tumior ablation through cryoablation, which is the use of i 1ce to destroy tissue, suchas tumors, for
‘therapeutic purposes. We develop and manufacture devices for the reatment of prostate and renal cancer and we
believe that our proprietary technologies have broad applications across a number of markets, including the ablation
of tumnors in the lung and liver and palliative intervention (treatmem of pam associated with metastases),
Y Co o o
Today, our FDA-cleared Cryocare Surgical System occupies a growmg position in the urological market for
treatment of prostate and renal cancers. Because of our initial concentration on prostate and renal cancers, the
majority of our sales and marketing resources are directed toward the prombtion of our technology to urologists. In
addition to selling our cryosurgical disposable products to hospitals and mobile service companies, we contract
directly with hospitals for the use of our Cryocare Surgical System and disposable products on a fee-for-service
basis. Since 2003, we maintain a dedicated sales team focused on selling’ percutaneous cryoablation procedures
related to liver and lung cancer and palliative intervention (treatment of pain associated with metastases) to
interventional radiology physicians throughout the United States. We intend to continue to identify and develop new
markets for our cryosurgical products: and technologies, particularly in the area of tumor ablation.

We previously owned Timm Medical Technologics, Inc. (“Timm Medical”), a company focused on erectile
dysfunction products. We sold Timm Medical to UK-based Plethora Solutions Holdings plc on February 10, 2006.
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- Strategy and Key Metrics . ' , : . .

Our strategy is to ‘achieve a dominant position in the prostate and renal cancer markets, and further develop and

. mcrease the acceptance of our technology in the interventional radiology and oncology markets for treatrnent of

liver and lung cancers and palliative intervention (treatment of pain associated with metastases) At the same tlrne,
we seek to achieve penetration across addmonal markets with our proprietary t.ryosurgtcal technology )

Our primary objective is to grow market share, currently measured in terms of the number of procedures

‘ performed with our Cryocare Surgical System, which we calculate using two primary components. The first

component is that we include the actual number of cryoablation cases for which we are responsible for performing
the service element on behalf of the healthcare facility. In the second, we compute a procedure case equrvalent based
on sales of our cryoablation disposable products by using the expected disposable product usage fora procedure for

_ those sales. Procedure growth has been an important metric to which we have referred during the past. ‘'several years

in order to measure the success of our strategy. In the past several years, we have been successful in 1ncreasmg the
- estimated number of domestic cryoablation procedures on a year-over-year basis. Most recently, in 2006 estimated
procedures increased 21.8 percent to 7,802 from 6,407 in 2005 which increased 35.9 percent from.4!7l3 in 2004.

* In addition to being a key business metric, procedure growth is an important driver of revenue growth, because
a.significant percentage of our revenue consists of sales of the disposable supplies used in procedures performed
with the Cryocare Surgical System, as shown below under “Results of Operations.” In 2003 we redirected our
strategy for our cryosurgtcal business away from emphasizing sales of Cryocare Surgtcal Systems and instead
towards seeking to increase recurring sales of our disposable products. Over the past séveral years, a significant
percentage of our revenue consists of sales of the disposable supplies either separately or in conjunction with
procedures performed with the Cryocare Surgical System, as shown below under “Results of Operations.” In
addition, beginning in 2004, we changed our business model to emphasize our strength as a medical device
manufacturer and strategically reduced the amount of revenues attributable to the service model where we are
responsible for performing the service element of the procedures on behalf of the healthcare facrllty fora procedure
fee. By the fourth quarter of 2006, we have achieved our goal of having the substantial ma_]orlty of our procedures
compnsed of sale of cryoablation disposable products without the service element. The percent of procedures for
which we perform the service element declined from 79.4% in the fourth quarter of 2004 to 19.5% in the f0urth
quarter of 2006. This change in revenue mtx between cases for which we provide the servrce element and cases for
which we merely sell d1sposable products has :mpacted our gross margin. Revenues from a case for whxch‘we
merely sell disposable products are less than the revenue from a case for which we are responsrble for prowdtng the
service element. As the percentage of cases from product sales increases relative to procedure fees, our incremental
revenues grow at a slower rate than our overall procedures growth, However, the gross profit realized is generally
equivalent since we do not incur fees to third party service providers for product sales. For cases for which we are
responsible for providing the service element, we typically subcontract with a third party service provider to provide
the service element of a procedure on our behalf and thereby incur services fees. Asa result, our gross margin (gross
profit as a percent of revenues) increases as we shift from procedure fees to sales of dlsposable products

The factors driving interest in a.nd uuhzanon of cryoablation by urologists include mcreased awareness and
acceptance of cryoablation by industry thought leaders, continued. publication of clinical follow up data on: the
effectiveness of cryoablation, including 10-year data published in 2005, increased awareness among patients of
cryoablation and its preferred outcomes as compared to other modalities, the efforts of our dedicated cryoab]anon
: sales force and our connnued expend1ture of funds on pattent education and advocacy.'* -

-

! . : R T . B &
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Results of Operatlons o . : .
i
1

N Revenues and cost of revenues from contmumg operatlons related: to the followmg products and services for
the three- -year period ended December 31 2006 are as follows -

ri

\’ear Ended December 31,

v PR - l 2004 2005 - 2006
: [ L .o St E e - - {In thousands)
Revenues: - e _ ’
Product sales: B o o _ ) _
. Cryoablation disposable products ... ........... e . §4584 $6790 $13948
Cryocare Surgical Systems . ................. P - 1,403 743 1,096 .
., Other (Urohealth) ... e Q- 49 72 M
| " © 6036 7,605 15088
) Cryoablatlon procedure fees. R P ... 17516 ¢ 19,780 - 12,298
. Cardiac royalties (CryoCath) . ... .. T D 629 889 604
' o S $2481  $28274 27990
Cost of revenues: ‘
Cryoablation disposable products and procedure fees. . . . . . L 8133300 $15.278 11,541

Cryocare Surgical Systems. . . ........... .. ... .. ..... . 255 460 802
' . L $13585 $15738  $12,343

Costs of revenues for cryoablation disposable products and procedure fees are combined for reporting
purposes. Sales of cryoablation disposable products and procedure fees incorporate similar inventory when sold and
we do not_separately track the cost of 'disposable products sold direct'ly to customers and those consumed in
cryoablation procedures. Procedure fees retate to services which are provided to medical facilities upon request to
facilitate the overall delivery of our technology into the marketplace. ' )

We recognize revenues from sales of Cryocare Surgical Systems and disposable cryoprobes when persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed and determinable, and collectibility is
reasonably assured. Revenues are deferred when we have continuing obligations until those obligations are
fulfilled. We also contract with medical facilities for the use of the Cryocare Surgical Systems in cryoablation
treatments for which we charge a per-procedure fee. Cryoablation services generally consist of rental and transport
of a Cryocare Surgical System as well as the services of a technician to assist the physician with the setup and
monitoring of the equipment.

Costs of revenues consist of fixed and variable costs incurred in the manufacture of our preducts in addition to
depreciation of Cryocare Surgical Systems placed in the field with customers under our placement program or with
our sales and service personnel. We incur an-additional cost of revenues in the form of a fee for equipment usage and
other services when a procedure is performed on a system owned by an unrelated service provider. The fee paid to
- the third-party service provider is charged to costs of revenues when the procedure is performed and billed.

Research and deve]opment expenses include expenses assoc1ated \\‘uth lhe design and deve]opmenl of new
products as well as enhancements to existing products. We expense research and ‘development cost$ when incurred.
Our research and development efforts are occasionally subject to srgmﬁcanl non- recurnng expenses and fees that
can cause some varlabrllly in our quarlerly research and development EXPenses.

. 1 . LA
Sellmg and marketlng expenses pnmanly consist of salaries, commissions and related beneﬁts and overhead
costs for employees and activities in the areas of selling, marketing and customer service. Expenses associated with
advertising, trade shows, promotional and training costs related to markelmg our products are also classified as
selling and marketing expenses. . - + - T o e :

P

- 0 ! '
-General and administrative expenses primarily consist of salaries and related benefits and overhead costs for
{ s ew . .. . L .
employees and activities in the areas of legal affairs, finance,  information technology, human resources and
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administration, Fees for attorneys, independent auditors and certain other outside consultants are also included
where their services are related to general and administrative activities. This category also includes reserves for bad
debt, and litigation losses less amounts recoverable under our insurance policies. Litigation reserves and i insurance.
recoveries are recorded when such amounts are probable dnd can be reasonably estimated.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004)
Share Based Payment (SFAS No. 123R) using the modified-prospective transition method. Under that transition
method, compensation cost recognized in the year ended December 31, 2006 includes (a) compensation cost for all
share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006 based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123 “Accounting for, Stock-Based Compensation”
and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the
grant-date fair value estimate in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Results for prior periods have not
been restated. As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R, our net loss for the three month period and year ended
December 31, 2006 was $0.8 million and $2.6 million, respectively, preater than if we had continued to account for
stock-based compensation under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and its related interpretations. As of December 31, 2006, there was $3.4 million of total unrecognized
compensation costs related to unvested stock-based compensation arrangements granted under the stock option
plans. That cost is expected to be amortized on a straight-line basis over a weighted average period of 1.2 years less
any stock options forfeited prior to vesting. . '

Costs, expenses and other results of operations from continuing operations for the three-year period ended
December 31, 2006 are as follows: '

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
(In thousands)

Cost Of TEVENUES . . . v o ittt it it e i e e $13.585 §$15,738  $12,343
Research and development. . ............. e 1.856 2283 - 2,781
Selling and marketing .. .......... .. ... . oo 13,354 13,001 - 15,195
General and adminmistrative. . . . ...t o i e e . 16,379 13,858 13,107
Goodwill impairment and other charges . . ................... 9,900 26 —
Loss on divestitures, net. . ... ............ [P 7il — —

Total costs and expenses . ........... B e $55,785  $44.906  $43.426
Interest INCOME . . . . oot e e e e raa e .. % 293 $ 308 - % 452 .
INTETEST EXPENSE. o vt v vt e e e et et e $ (N $ 657 $ 3,716

Minority interests . ................ R $ (8 $ — S —

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

N

Revenues. Revenues ‘for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased to $28.0- million compared to -
$28.3 million in 2005. The revenue decrease resulted from a rapid shift in mix from procedures for which we
are responsible for providing the service element to those for which we solely sell our cryoablation disposable
products. Total procedures increased 21.8 percent to 7,802 for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 6,407 in the -
comparable period of 2005, while the related revenues decreased by 1. 2 percent. Of the total procedures performed
during the year ended December 31, 2006, 31.7 percent were those for which we provided cryoablation services and
68.3 percent were from the sale of cryoablation disposable products. This compares to 62.7 percent for cryoablation
services and 37.3 percent for sales of cryoablation disposable products during the year ended December 31, 2005.
While our total procedures increased significantly, the lower average sales price from selling direct dlsposable
products as compared to our average service price from providing the service elementhad the effect of slightly
decreasing our revenues year over year. However, direct product sales also have lower cost of revenues and produce
much higher gross margins as discussed above. The shift in our revenue mix was faster than expected but in line with
our overall strategy to shift our business to become a more traditional medical device manufacturer.-

¥

.Cardiac royélty revenue decreased to $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $0.9 million for
the same period in 2005 mainly because the contractual rate CryoCath is obligated to pay us as percentage of related
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‘Tevenues decreased from 9.0 percent to 5.0 percent in 2006. Revenue f]rom the sale of Cryocare Surgical Systems
increased for the year ended December 31, 2006 from the comparable perlod in 2005 10 $l 1 mllhon from
$0.7 million primarily due 10 increased sales of our sysiems mtemauonally :

Costs of Revenues. Costs of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased 21.6 percent to
‘$12.3 million compared to $15.7 million for the same period in 2005. The decrease was driven mainly by the rapid
shift in revenue miix resulting in a decrease in the number of cryoablation procedures for which we bear
responsibility for providing the service element of the procedure as opposed to solely selling our cryoablation
disposable products. This mix shift led to.a decrease in fees we paid to third party service providers. Costs for
. materials, labor and overhead per,cryoablation case also decreased as we achieve manufacturing efficiencies and

improve producl design. Fees to service providers were $8.0 mllllon in 2005 and $4.7 million in 2006 This decrease
- was offsert slightly by a $0.3 million increase in cost related to Cryocare Surglcal Systems.

. Gross Margins.  Gross margms on revenues increased to 55.9 per?em for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to 44.3 percent for the same period in 2005. The positive trend in our gross margins relates primarily to
the shift in our business model to a muich larger percentage of total procedures are from the sale of our cryoablatlon
disposable products as opposed to procédures where we are respomlble for providing the service element of the
procedure, which generates a lower gross margin as a percent of revenues. Also contributing to the increase in gross
margin were continued reductions’in manufacturing costs for our cryoablatlon disposable products. Gross margins
were negatively affected during the year ended December 31, 2006 by transactions where we allowed certain ~
customers to upgrade to our Cryocare CS System from a previous generzlmon of our Cryocare Surgical System with
nominal additional, payment, resultmg in a net loss of $0.5 million, ' ¢

Research and Development Expenses Research and development expenses for the year ended December 31,
2006 increased 21.8 percent to $2. 8 million compared to $2.3 million for the comparable period in 2005. The
increase was primarily attributable to increased compensation costs of $0.1 million and costs assocnated with
several new development projects we have undertaken to reduce the manufactunng costs of Cryocare disposables
and broaden the application of cryoablation outside of our current markets in urology and interventional radiology.
Included in research and development expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 is $0.1 million in non-cash
stock-based compensation expense. As a percentage of revenues, research and development expenses increased to
9.9 percent during the year ended December 31, 2006, from 8.1 percent durmg the year ended December 31, 2005.

Selling and Marketing Expemes Selling and marketing expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006
increased 16.9 percent or $2.2 million to $15.2 million as compared to $13.0 million for the same period in 2005.
Driving the increases were proctor fees and related cost increases 0le $0.4 million, increased travel costs of
$0.2 million, non-cash stock- based compensation expenses relating to the implementation of SFAS No. 123R in the
amount of $0.6 million and mcreased .compensation related expenses m our sales organization of $0.8 million.

General and Administrative Expenses General and ao:iministl"atlvel expenses for the year ended December 31,
2006 declined 5.4 percent or $0.8 million to $13.1 million as compared to $13.9 million for the same period in 2005.
We had decreases in several areas including legal and accounting costs olf $1.7 million as a result of establishing in
house legal counsel and marked efforts to reduce accounting and consultmg fees, specifically those related to
comphance with section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes -Oxley™). We had $0.5 million in
reductions in insurance premiums due to concerted efforts to reduce premiums without compromising coverage. -
During the second quarter of 2006 the statute of limitations expxred on $0 9 million of potential payroll tax liability
pertaining to employee loans forgiven and stock option exercises that occurred in 2002 and prior, compared to
$0.2 million of similar reductions in 2005, In 2005 we paid $0.6 million in liquidated damages related to our
common stock warrants, which did not recur in 2006. )

“These reductions were partially offset by $2.2 million in additional co]'mpensation expense including $1.8 million
of non-cash stock-based compensation expenses relating to the implementa'tion of SFAS No. 123R. Additionally in the
fourth quarter’of 2006, we reserved a total of $0.7 million on notes receivable. Of this amount $0.4 million relates to
the write off of a note with a refated party. The $0.3 million remaining amount is related to a possible arrangement with
the purchaser of Timm Medical which we may offer a payment dlscoum in exchange for acceleration of payment of
the remaining balance of the purchase note. [ <o
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o . Interest Income. Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased to $0.5 million from
$0.3 million in 2005. This increase is due to interest income on a note receivable for the 2003 sale of our urtnary
incontinence product line and interest income eamned from the investment of our cash balances.

Interest Expense. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was a negative expense of
$(3.7) million compared to $(0.7) million in negatwe expense for the same period in 2005. The negative interest
expense for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were due to the decreases in the fair value of common
stock warrants issued in connection with our private placement in March 2005.

Loss from Continuing Operations. Loss from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2006
‘was $11.1 million or $0.37 per basic and diluted share on 30.3 million weighted average shares outstanding .
compared to a loss from continuing operations of $14.8 million or $0.51 per basic and diluted share on 29.0 million
weighted average shares outstanding for the same period in 2005. Includéd in the loss from continuing operations
during the year ended December 31, 2006 is an aggregate of $2.8 million of non-cash stock-based compensation
expense in accordance ‘with SFAS No. 123R, a reduction in accrued payroll taxes of $0.9 million which were no
Jlonger statutorily due and the reduction in interest expense of $3.7 mlllron from the change in the fair value of
common stock warrants.

Income from Discontinued Operations. Income from discontinued operations for the year ended
December 31, 2006 represents the operating results of Timm Medical through the date of sale on February 10,
2006. Income for the 2006 period was $0.3 million, net of income taxes or $0.01 per basic and diluted share on
30.3 million weighted average shares outstanding. The 2006 income inclided $0.5 million gain on sale of Timm
Medical and a tax provision of $0.2 million. Income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31,
2005 was $1.2 million, net of income taxes of $0.8 million or $0.04 per basic and diluted share on 29.0 million
weighted averdge shares outstanding. The 2005 period includes income of $0.6 mitlion as a result of the elimination
of the estimated costs 10 sell, which was previously reported as a component of a 2004 impairment charge when
Timm Medrcal was mmally rnarketed for sale. :

- Net Loss Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $10.8 mitlion or $0.36 per basic and diluted
share on 30.3 million weighted average shares outstanding, compared to a net loss of $13.7 million, or $0.47 per
basic and diluted share on 29.0 million weighted average shares outstanding for the same period in 2003.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

. Revenues.. Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased $4.1 million to $28.3 rmlllon from
$24.1 million in 2004 representing an increase of 16.9 percent. The increase in revenues was primarily attributable
to growth in sales of disposables and procedure fees. .

The number of cryosurgical procedures performed‘ and related sales of disposable products used in these
procedures, increased 35.9, percent to 6,407 in 2005 from 4, 713 in 2004, while the related revenues increased
20.2 percent to $26.6 mllhon in 2005 from $22.1 miltion in 2004. Contributing 10 growth in sales of cryosurgical
products was an increase in direct sales both in urology and interventional radiology. Since the revenue for a sale of
cryoablatlon dlsposable products is less on average than a cryoablation procedure fee, as the percentage of cases
derived from sales of cryosurglcal disposable products increases relative to cases derived from cryoablation
procedure fees (where we are responsible for providing the service element of the procedure), our incremental
revenues grow at a slower rate than our overall pmcedure growth. However, the gross profit realized is equivalent
'smce we do not incur fees, to third party service provnders for a sale of cryoablation disposable products

CryoCath royalty revenues also increased 41.3 percent or $0.3 million compared to 2004 while revenues from
Cryocare Surgical Systems decreased by 47.0 percent or $0.7 million due to our strategy of promoting adoption of
~our technology through emphasns on growth in cryoablation procedures, rather than Lhrough sales of capital
“equipment.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues for 2005 increased 15.9 percent to $15.7 million compared to
_$13.6 million for 2004. Cost of revenues related to our cryosurgical probes and procedures increased 14.7 percent
to $15.3 million for 2005 from $13.3 million in 2004. The increase in cost of revenues resulted primarily from
growth in sales of cryosurgical probes and procedures. In addition, this increase was driven by an increase in the
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number of cryoablation procedures for which we bill a procedure fee 'and subcontract the service to third party
service providers at an additional cost. While the frequency of fees paid to third party service providers increased,
the percentage of total cryoablation procedures requiring these services declined and the average service fee per
procedure was reduced by 15.3 percent. Cost of revenues increases were also partlally offset by the contmued

reductlons in manufacturing costs for our cryoablation’ drsposable products.
¥

Gross Margins. * Gross margins on revenues increased to 44.2 percent for 2005 compared t043.7 percent for
2004 as a result of the cost of revenues factors outlined above. I S S

Research and Development Expenses.  Research and development expenses for 2005 increased 23 0 percent
to $2.3 million compared to $1.9 million for 2004. The increase was primarily attributable to increased costs
associated with several new development projects that we have undertaken in our efforts to reduce the manufac-
turing costs of the disposable components used in cryoablation surgical procedures as well as efforts to broaden the
application of cryoablation outside of our current markets in urology and interventional radiology: As a percentage
of revenues, research and development expenses increased to 8.1 percent in 2005 from 7. 7 percent for 2004,

Se!img and Marketing Expenses. Selling and marketing expenses’ for 2005 decreased 2.6 percent to
$13.0 million compared to $13.4 million for 2004. The decrease in salés and marketing expenses were primarily
due to improved management of our proctoring program which reduced expenses by $0.3 million by being more
selective in the physicians wé allow (o be proctored as well as reducing the cost of each individual proctoring event..
The decrease in selling and: marketing expenses was also due to redriced severance expense-in the amount of
$0 2 million, offset by an increase in commissions’ expense of $0.2 mrllron L L

e -

‘ General and Admrmsrranve Expenses . General and admrmstratlve tl,xpenses for 2005 decreased 15.4 percent to
$13.9 million compared to $16.4 million for 2004. Legal and accounnng costs mcurred during 2005 in connection
with our historical accounting and, financial reporting declined to $3.6 mllllOn from $7.1 million. Included i in the
$3.6 million were $1.3 million of costs related to our efforts to comply wrth Sectron 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley. Included
in the $7.1 million from 2004 were $2.3 million of costs related to our Sarbanes-Oxley comphance efforts. The
rediictions in legal and accdunting expenses-were partially offset by $0.6 mrlhon of liquidated damages related to the
delay in the SEC declarmg effectlve our Form'S-2 registration'statement related to our March 2005 private placement

Goodwrll Impatrment and Other Charges During the year ended 2i(}05 we recorded $26 000 to wnte down a
partnership interest in the,mobilé prostate treatment business to farr value. During 2004, we had recorded
-$9.9 million in impairment-charges to write down the goodwill and amortlzable intangibles in conjunctron with
our ownership interests in certain mobile prostate treatment businesses. We also recorded a charge of $5.9 million to
write down the .goodwill and intangible assets of Timm Medical in 2004, which is .included in_ loss from
discontinued operations. Lo . . o l e a ot s :

: ' i :

Interest Income. rInterest‘income for 2005 was unchanged-at $0.3 million compared to 2004, and represents
interest income on- interest-bearing cash accounts as well as interest received on the promissory. note from SRS
Medical Corp. in connection with the sale of the urodynamrcs and, ur1na1y incontinence products lines by Timm
Medical in 2003. L o - f ‘

-~ Interest Expense - Interest expense was negatwe for 2005 in the amount of ($0 7) million and relates to the net
decrease in the fair market value of common stock warrants issved in connectlon with our March 2005 private placement ,

Loss from Commumg Operartons Loss from contmurng operanons for 2005 was $14.8 million or $0.51 per
basic and diluted share on 29.0 million weighted average shares outstandmg compared to a loss of $31.9 million, or
$1.31 per basic and dlluted share on 24 3 mrlhon welghted average shares outstandmg for 2004 )

Income (Loss) from Dlscontmued Operations. On February-10, 2006, we closed the sale of our wholly-
owned subsidiary, Timm Medical,!to UK-based Plethora Sclutions Holdmgs plc. Proceeds from the sale were
$9.5 million, consisting of $8.1 million in cash and a 24-month convIerttble promissory note of $1.4-million.
Revenues for Timm Medical for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $9.3 million. Income before taxes was
$2.0 million and net income was $1.2 million for 2005 In 2004 Tiromy Medrcal reported a loss of $5 7 mllllon after
the $5.9 million impairment charge. ' - .

x
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Off Balance Sheet Financing {

Other than lease commitments, Iegal contingencies incurred in the normal course of business, and employment
contracts, we do not have any off-balance sheet financing arrangements or liabilities. In addition, our policy is not to
enter into derivative instruments, futures or forward contracts. Our business is iransacted solely in U.S. dollars and,
while future fluctuations of the U.S. dollar may affect the price competitiveness of our products, there is no known
significant direct foreign currency exchange rate risk. Finally, we do not have any majority-owned subsidiaries or
any interests in, or relationships with, any material special-purpose entities that are not included in the consolidated
financial statements. : '

Liquidity and Capital Resources ' ”

Since inception, we have incurred losses from operations and have reported negative cash flows. As of
December 31, 2006, we had an accumulated deficit of $176.4 million and cash and cash equivalents of $1.8 million.

We do not expect to reach cash flow positive operations in 2007, and we expect to continue to géneréle losses
from operations for the foreseeable future. These losses have resulted in part from our continued investment to gain
acceptance of our technology and investments in initiatives that we believe should ultimately result in cost reductions.
In addition to these continued investments, although we recently resolved the investigations by the SEC and DOJ of
our historical accounting and financial reporting (see above under Part I, Item 3, “Legal Proceedings™), we still have
obligations to indemnify and advance the legal fees for our former officers and former directors in connection with the
ongoing investigations and legal proceedings related to those individuals. The amount of those legal fees may exceed
the reimbursement due to us from our directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, and the excess may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and liguidity. We also face large cash
expenditures in the future related to past due state and local taxes, primarily sales and use tax obligations, which we
estimate to be approximately $2.8 million and which was accrued as of December 31, 2006. We are in the process of
negotiating resolutions of the past due state and local tax obligations with the applicable tax authorities.

On October 25, 2006, we entered into an agreement with Fusion Capital Fund 11, LLC (“Fusion Capital”)
pursuant to which we have the right to sell to Fusion Capital up to $16.0 million of common stock over a two year
period at prices determined based upon the market price of our common stock at the time of each sale without any
fixed discount (in $100,000 increments every fourth business day, with additional $150,000 increments available
every third business day if the market price of our common stock is $1.50 or higher), subject to our ability to comply
with certain on-gomg requirements. These requirements include, among others, maintaining effectiveness of the
registration statement covering .the sale of the shares purchased by Fusion Capital, and maintenance of trading
prices at or above $1.00. The $150,000 increment can be increased if the market price of our common stock
increases. The SEC declared the registration statement effective on December 1, 2006.

+ We will use existing cash reserves, as well as future proceeds from sales, if any, of common stock to Fusion
Capital, to finance our projected operating and cash-flow needs, along with continued expense management efforts.
In addition, we may borrow funds under our line of credit with our bank as long as we remain in compliance with the
representations, warranties, covenants and borrowing conditions set forth in the agreements goveming the line of
credit. The funds we can borrow are based on eligible trade receivables and inventory as defined. The credit facility
includes a subjective acceleration clause and a requirement to maintain a lock box with the lender, the proceeds
from which will be applied to reduce the outstanding borrowings upon our default or if other conditions are met. We
were not in compliance with the minimurn tangible net worth covenant under our bank line of credit for the months
September to November 2006. On December 22, 2006, we signed an amendment to the Loan and Security
Agreement. Among other things, the amendment (i} modifies the. borrowmg base to increase the eligible accounts
receivable from 80 percent to 85 percent and modifies the definition of accounts that are ineligible under the
borrowing base calculation; (ii) modifies the loan margin as defined to 1.50 percent, and (iii) waives non-
compliance with the minimum tangible net worth requirement at September 30, 2006, October 31, 2006 and
November 30, 2006, as well as modifies the terms of the covenant. At December 31, 2006, we were in compliance
with all covenants and had no borrowings outstanding under the line of credit. On February 23, 2007, the credit
agreement was amended to further modify the minimum tangible net worth provision and to extend the maturity
date to February 27, 2008. As of February 28, 2007 we had $1.9 million outstanding on the line of credit.
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Our cash needs are not entirely predictable and the availability of funds from Fusion Capital and our bank are
subject to many conditions, including certain subjective acceleration c]zlnuses and other provisions, some of which
are predicated on events that are not within our control. Accordingly, we cannot guarantee the availability of these
capital resources or that they will be sufficient to fund our ongoing operatllons to the point where our operations will
generate positive cash flows. In assessing whether to enter into the Fusion Capital financing and renew the bank line
of credit, we considered these factors in light of our circumstances and !tkely cash requirements. After comparing
the Fusion Capital financing and bank line of credit to other financing alternatives potentially available to us, we
made a business decision that the Fusnon Capital financing and bank iu;e of credit represented the best financing
alternatives then available lo us.

I

We continue to believe that the Fusion Capital financing and bank: line of credit should provide us with the
capital resources that we need to reach the point where our operations will generate positive cash flows. However,
primarily because of the subjective acceleration clauses and other conditions referred 10 above, the audit report of
our independent auditors contained in this Annual Report on Form 10- K contains an unqualified opinion with an
explanatory paragraph, to the effect that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
This opinion could itself have a matenal adverse effect on our busmese financial condmon results of operations
and cash flows.

Contractual Obligations '

In the table below, we set forth our contractual obligations as of De’cember 31, 2006. Some of the figures we
include in this table are based on mdnagement s estimates and assumpllons about these obligations, including their
duration, the possibility of renewal, anticipated actions by third parties, and other factors. Because these estimates
and assumptions are necessarily subjective, the contractual obllgauons we will actually pay in future penods may
vary from those reflected in the tdble

l Payments Due b;' Period

A ' ' Total | 2007 2008-2009 ©  2010-2011
: ) {In thousands) ‘
. Non-cancelable operating leases(l) ..... e $1,785  $.587  $1075  S$I23
.. Purchase commltments(2). e e e .. 620 620" — —
‘ ‘ - $2,405 $l,207 $l,075 $123

| e :

(1) Weenter mto operatmg leases in the normal course of business. We lease office space as well as other property

and equipment under operating leases. Some lease agreements prowde us with the option to renew the lease at

the end of the original term. Our futuire opérating lease obligations would change if we exercise these renewal

options and if we enter into additional operating lease agreements For more information, see Note 13
“Commitments and Commgenc:es to our Consolidated Fmanmai Statements.

(2) These purchase commitments relate to agreements to purchase goods or services. These obligations are not
recorded in our consolidated financial statements until contract payment terms take effect. We expect to fund
these commitments with cash flows from operations and from cash balances on hand. The obligations shown in
the above table are subject to change based on, among other things, our manufacturing operations not operating

“in the normal course of business, the demand for our products and the ability of our suppllers to deliver the
products or.services as promlsed "

- |

Additionally, under a commercialization agreement, we are obligaled'to make monthly advances of $42.500 to
our collaboration partner beginning the fourth quarter of 2003, This obllgatlon continues until either we or our
partner enter into a llcensmg agreemient sufficient to reimburse us for all pnor payments and fund the partner going
forward. * '

.

We are also obligated to indemnify certain former officers and directors and advance legal fees to them in
connection with continuing investigations and legal proceedings lnvolvmg these individuals by the SEC and DOJ.
Legal fees under these obligations cannot be estimated.
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Critical Accounting Policies - = . . s U o

The foregoing discussion and analy51s of our ﬁnancral condmon and results of operatlons are based on our
consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with US. generally accepted account-
ing principles. The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptlons
in applying certain critical accounting pohcres Certain accounting estimates are pamcularly sensitive because of
their significance to our consolidated financial statements and because of the p0551blltty that future events affectmg
the estimates could differ significantly from current expectatlons Factors that could poss1b1y cause actual amounts

to differ from current estimates relate to various risks and uncertainties inherent in our business, including those set

forth under “Risks Factors” in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Management believes that the
following are some of the more critical judgment areas in the application of accounting policies that affect our
financial statements. _ ' : o

" Revenue Recognmon We follow the provnsmns of Staff Accounting Bulletin 104 “Revenue Recogmtlon in
Financial Statements” (“SAB 104”") and Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrange-
ments with Multiple Deliverables” for revenue recognition. Under SAB 104, four conditions must be met before
revenue can be récognized: (i) there is persuaswe evidence that an arrangement exists, (u) delivery has occurred or
service has been rendered, (iii) the price is fixed or determinable and (iv) collection is reasonably assured.

We reduce our revenues for customer concessions, and defer revenue reco;,muon for m1n1mum procedure
guarantees, contingent payment arrangements and when we have continuing performance obltgauons until a future
date when the contingencies are resolved and obligations met. . . K :

Where we own the equipment used in the procedure, we bill the medical facility and retain the entire' procedure
fee. In many mstances however, the equlpment isownedbya thlrd—party who contracts with us to perform the service

component of the procedure Third-party service provrders areé at times entities owned or controlled by urologlsts who'

perform cryosurgical procedures. In the latter case, we still invoice the medical facility but we pay a fee to the third-
party service provider. The procedure fee is recorded as revenue in the period when the procedure is performed and,
where applicable, the fee.paid to a t}urd-i)afty service provider is included in cost of revenues for the same period.

From time to time we prov1de loaner equipment to customers as part of a strategy aimed at promotmg broader
acceptance of our technology and driving saJes of disposable products faster than would be possible if we restrtcted
use of the device only to customers w1llmg to make a significant capital investment ina Cryocare Surgical System
In these situations, we either loan a mobile Cryocare Surgical System to a hospital or consign a stationary Cryocare
Surgical System with the hospital under our placement program and charge a fee for each procedure in which the
equipment is used. Cost of revenues.includes depreciation on the Cryocare Surgical Systems we own over an

estimated useful tife of three years. We have also reduced the sellmg price of our (“ryocare Surglcal System toator,

near cost to promote sales of our ¢ryoablatien dlsposable products.. - . R

Under certain cucumstances we will upgrade our older modé] Cryocare Surgtca] Systems for our new model
with select customers. The terms of the upgrade can include the (rade-in of an older system for a fefurbished system
at no additional cost to the customer,:or a trade-in for an older system plus cash for a refurbished or new Cryocare
Surgical System: These upgrades are not part of a bundled arrangement conditioned.upon past or future purchases of
our products. They are offered at our election-as a means to introduce our latest technology to the market place. The
older systems received in the trade are then redeployed for interventional radiology procedures or sold in secondary
markets. When these upgrades take place, we invoice ' the customer for the upgraded Cryocare Surgical System and
expense the cost of the system upon shipment. If we determine that there will be a loss on the trade, we may record
the loss at the time the commitment is made. We recognize revenue to the extent of the cash consideration upon
shipment. We do not assigri‘a value to the older trade-in system since they generally have ‘exceeded our estimated
useful life of three years . K

v aon . -

We routinely assess the financial strength of our customers and asa consequence beheve that our accounts
receivable credit risk exposure is limited. Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less all
discounts and allowances, and less an estimate for doubtful accounts and sales returns based on a periodic review of
outstanding receivables. Allowances are provided for known and anticipated credit losses as determined by

management in the course of regularly evaluating, individual customer receivables. This evaluation takes into

b
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consideration a customer’s financial condition and credit history as well as current economic conditions. Accounts
receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable’ prevmusly wnttcn off are
recorded when received, bt ‘ : '

v

. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. 'We have a significant amount of property, equipment and amortizable
intangible assets primarily consisting of purchased patents and acquired technology. In accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived
Assets, ;we review our long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of long-lived and amortizable intangible assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of
the carrying amount of an asset to the undiscounted future operating cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured as the amount by .
which the carrying .value of the assets exceeds their fair value, In 2004 we recognized impairment charges of
$2.1 million and $80,000 to reduce the carrying value of intangible assets acqmred in the Timm Medical acquisition
and equity interests in the mobile prostate treatment businesses, respectively.

Legal and Other Loss Contingencies. In the normal course of businéss, we are subject to contingencies, such
as legal proceedings and claims arising out of our business that cover a wide range of matters, including tax mattets,
product liability and workers’ compensation. In accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, we
record accruals for such contingencies when it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount of loss can.
be reasonably estimated. A significant amount of management estimation is required in detenmmng when, or if, an
accrual should be recorded for a contingent matter and the amount of such accrual, if any. Due to the uncertainty of
detemumng the likelihood of a future event occurring and the potential ﬁnanc1al statement impact of such an event,
it is poss1ble that upon further development or resolution of a contmgent 'matter, a charge could be recorded in a
futuré period that would be material to our consolidated resiilts 'of operations, financial position or cash flows.

., .Other Investments. 'We review our equity investments for impairment based on our determination of whether
a declme in the market value of the investment below our canymg value is other than temporary. In making this
detemunauon we consider Accounnng Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 18, The Equity Method of Accounting
of Investments-in Common Stock, and EITF 00-31, The Meaning of Othgr-Than -Temporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investments, which set forth factors to be evaluated in determining whether a loss in value
should be recognized, Factors include the investee’s operational performance, indicators of continued viability,
financing status, liquidity prospects and cash flow forecasts. We also consider our ability to hold the investment
until we recover our cost, the market price and market price fluctuations of the investment’s publicly traded shares
and the ability of the investee to sustain an earnings capacity which would justify the carrying amount of the
investment. In addition, we assess if these equity investees constitute variable interest entities and are required to be
consolidated under FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003) Consoltdat:on of Variable Interest
Entities, an interpreration of ARB No. 51,

Income Taxés. In the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, we are requiréd to estimate
income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate, including estimating both actual current tax exposure
and assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes.
Assessment of actual current tax exposure includes assessing tax strategies, the status of tax audits and open audit
periods with the taxing authorities. To the extent that we have deferred tax assets, we must assess the likelihood that
our deferred tax assets will be recovered from taxable temporary differences, tax strategies or future taxabte income
and to the extent that we believe that recovery is not likely, we must establish a valuation allowance. As of
December 31, 2006 we have established a valuation allowance of $66.4 million against our deferred tax assets. In
the future, we may adjust our estimates of the amount of valuation allowance needed and such adjustment would
impact our provision for income taxes in the period of such change. Effective January 1, 2007, we will adopt the
provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of
SFAS No. 109 (FIN 48). FIN 48 prescribes a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before
being recognized in the financial statements. !

Stock based compensation. As a normal practice, we compensate employees and non-employee directors
through stock-based compensation. Effective January 1, 2006, we account for our stock-based compensation under
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the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payments. SFAS No. 123R eliminates the use of the intrinsic value ‘
method, of accounting under Accounting Principles: Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to

Employees (“APB 25’) and requires companies to recognize in the financial statements the cost of employee

services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of those awards.

The estimation of stock-based compensauon requires the use of complex option pricing models and application of

judgment in selecting the appropriate valuation assumptions, as such volatility, forfeiture rates'and expected term. - ‘
We value our stock-based compensation using the Black-Scholes option pricing madel and the sinigle option award’
approach, in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 123R and Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 107,
Share-Based Payment. We reduce our compensation expense for estimated forfeitures based on historical forfeiture
behaviot, excluding unusual events or behavior that is'not indicative of future expectations! We will re-assess the
appropriateness of the valuation assumptions, mcludmg our calculated forfeiture rate, on a semi-annual basis or
when events or changes in circumstances warrant a re;t.valuanon In addition, we monitor equity instruments with -
non-standard provisions, such as performance-based vesting conditions, accelerated vesting based on achlevemem
of performance milestones and features that requ1re mstrument to be accoumc,d for as liabilities. ‘

+ ‘ . e
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Inflation

The impact of inflation on our business has not been mgmﬂcant to date. .
' v, . L

Item ’7A Quantttauve and Quahtatwe Dzsclasures About Market Risk I : Tt

The primary objective of our mvestment actlvmes is to preserve principal while at ‘the same time mammlzmg
the income we receive from our invested cash without sngmﬁcantly increasing risk of loss. Our financial instruments
include cash, cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable, mmonty investments, accounts payable and accrued “
liabilities and common stock warrants Asof December 31 2006, the carrying values of these financial meruments
approxlmated their fair values.

Our policy is not to enter into derivative ﬁnancml instrumerits. In addition, we do not enter into any futures or
forward contracts and therefore, we do not have 51gn1ﬁcant market rlsk exposure with respect to commodity pnces :

'

Although we transact our business in U.S. d_ol_lars, future fluctuatlons in the value of the U.S. dollar may affect‘ .
the price competitiveness of our products. However, we do not believe that we currently have any significant direct
foreign currency exchange rate risk and have not-hedged exposures denominated in foreign currencies or any other
derivative financial instruments. 3 oo s

' . - Lo I .. . . i ' : ’ .
Item 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ' ‘ L

Our financial statements and schedules, as llsted under Item 15, appear ina ‘separate SCCthIl of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1. ' .
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.
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t
Item 9A. Contro[s and Procedures : K '

.
t., . o fr.

¢

(a) Evaluation of Dtsclosure Controls and Pmcedures We mamtam disclosure controls and procedures that
are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our r'eports pursuant to the Securities Exchange -
Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including
our-chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to-allow for timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes '
that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated can provide only reasonable assurance
of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its _]udgment in evaluatmg the cost-
benefit relanonshlp of possible controls and procedures o

As requlred by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Secunnes Exchange Actiof 1934, as amended, we carried out an
" evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on the foregoing, our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure contro]s arid procedures were effectlve at a reasonable -
assurance level S
(b)'Managemem's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Ft:nancial Reporting. Management of.the :
company is responsiblé’ for establishing and maintaining adequate mtemal control over financial reporting as -
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Our internal control over:
financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reportmg and
the: preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounung
pnnmples Our internal control over financial reporting includes those! p011c1es and procedures that!

v T 1.

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and falrly reflect the
transactlons and dispositions of the assets of the Company, : . . - v

+(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit préparation of
“financial statements in accordance with generally accepted acc'ounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company ‘are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Company; and e o t : < '
! (iii) provide reasonable' assurance regarding prevention or tlmely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use or disposition of the Company s assets that could have a material effect on the ﬁnancnal statements,

+ * .

Because of its mherent llmltauons, internal control over financial reporting ‘may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness tonuture periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become madequate because of changes in condmons or that the degree of comphance with the
pohmes or procedures may detenorate i _

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s interﬁa] control’ over financial reporting as of -
December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsonng Orgamzanons of the Treadway Cornmtssmn (CQSO) in Intemal Control — Integrated Framework. .

¢

1 .
Based on our assessment and those criteria, management beheves that the Company mamtamed effecdve
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, ; ' e
. f :

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has is:sued an attestation report on management’s
assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. That report appears below in this Item 9A.

[
(c) Changes in Internal Controls. There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting
during our fourth fiscal quarter for 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materlally affect our "
internal control over financial reporting.

I

|

‘7 ]
3 |
|

|




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM: * . ‘. - "J
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

.
+ '

To the Board of Directors o ST - ST - S
Endocare Inc. B UEREAR I ‘ -

. - ¥ . : . T : . . Tt 1

r 'We have audited management § assessment, tncluded in the accompanymg Management's Annual Report on ,
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Endocare, Inc. (Endocare) maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Qrganizations of the: Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). Endocare’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting -
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management’s assessment and an optnton on the effecnveness of Endocare’s internal control
over ﬁnanual reportmg based on our audit. . b : e

¢y, L e :

We conducted our, audlt in accordance with the, standards of the Public Compan) Accountmg OverStght Board .
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about .
whether. effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal  control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We bcheve that our audit provides a 1

reasonable basis for our optmon S Iyt . Lo , .,

A company s mternal control over ﬁnanc1al reportmg is a process desrgned to provrde reasonable assurance
rcgardtng the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in.,
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use; or dtsposmon of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. L oy

- Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect .

misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the de.gree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may detenorate oo e Y e

i, o ! .

) 'In our opinion, management ] assessment that Endocare mamtamed effectlve tnternal control over ﬁnancxal .
reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all matenal respects, based on the COSO cntena Also, in our
opinion, Endocare maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of '

December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria. - . . o . .

* We have also audlted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Over51ght Board

' (Umted States) the consolidated balancé sheets of Endocare as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, and the related

consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2006 of Endocare, Inc. and our report dated March 8, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon, _

' Lo . "- ' i . H T e T

1o - . i ] . . .- |
*/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Ce . - . o . <, .‘ Vo
Los Angeles, California TR T S 2 , o
March 8, 2007 ‘ N L T
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Item 9B. Other Information . .

Not applicable.

:
|
b o
1
PART III |
|

Item 1¢. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

L

The information required by this Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the Definitive Proxy Statement
relating to our 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we expecl ‘o file within 120 days after the end of our
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

i - . i
Item 11. Executive Compensatwn S : v

i Vo, W
1

Thie information required by this Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the Definitive Proxy Statement

- relating to our 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we expect | to file within 120 days after the end of our
fiscal year ended Decémber 31, 2006:. : |

: .
Item 12. Secunty Ownership of Certain Beneﬁcral Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
’ Matiers !

“The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the Definitive Proky Statement

relating to our 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we expect to file within 120 days after.the end of our
ﬁscal year ended December 31 2006

s i A ot “u

[} '

Item 13. Certain Relatwnshrps and Related ’bansacnons, and drrecl'ror mdependence I o

. ., - &

The mformanon required by thls Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the Deﬁmt_we Proxy Statement-

relating to our 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we ‘expect to file within 120 days af_'ter the end of our
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. : Cw

4 5
[l

. . { oAty ! N - i
Item 14. Principal Accountam Fees and Servwes . i vooor poell o, IR

The information required by this Ttem 14 is incorporated by reference to the Definitive Proxy Statement
relating 1o our 2007 Annval Meeting of Stockholders, which we expect 10 file within 130 days after the end of our
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.. + : e |

ri

It o 7T
| .
- )
P T o, ’ NI an Ve T l“;r‘ . : -
3.
!
1
|
'
!

| |

]
v e— e L e = -
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) Financial Statements: ' i

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are included in a separate section of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K commencing on the pages referenced below: -

| Page
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. ... F-1
- Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and’

2006 .. -t e e e SR g F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 3! 2005 and 2006 ... ... F-3
Consotidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2004 2005

AN 2006 & .ttt e e e e e e e F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiows for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and :

D006 - e e s F-5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ... . ... ... oo F-6 to F-37

v . .

(2) Financial Statement Schedules: . g

Schedule 11 — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements at page F-38. All other schedules have been omitted because they
are not applicable, not required or the mformatlon is included in the consolidated financial statemems or the notes

thereto. T

(3) Exh!bus

A list of exhibits to this Form 10-K is found in the Exhibit Index immediately followmg the Signature Page of
this Form 10-K, which is hereby incorporated by reference herein.

oy R

Supplemental Inl‘drmatibn ' o
We have not sent an annual report or proxy materials to our stockholders as of the date of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. We intend to provide our stockholders wnh an annual report and proxy materials after the filing of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K, and we will furnish the annual report to the SEC at that time.
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- | SIGNATURES |
’ i

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Secunues Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned lhereunto duly authorized.

ENDOCARE, INC.

i/ Craig T. Davénport

i
|
]
‘ ! By: E
Date: March 16, 2007 . y:
' IJ Craig T. Davenport
Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President

|
POWER OF ATTORNEY l

Know all men by these presents, that each person whose signaturla appears below constitutes and appoints
Craig T, Davenpon and Michael R. Rodriguez, and each or any one of thelm, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and
agent, with full power of substitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any
and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the‘same with all exhibits thereto, and other
documents in connection therewith, with the SEC, granting unto said attomeys in-fact and agents, and each of them,
full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thlng requisite and necessary to be done in
connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or,could do in person, hereby ratifying and
confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his substitutes or substitute, may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. '

1

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exbhéhgé Actof'l 934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and ('lm the dates indicated.

Signature ' ile| 'lﬂ
. s }
fs/ CralG T. DAVENPORT Chairman, Chief Executwe Officer and March 16, 2007
Craig T. Davenport President (principal executive officer)
/s/  MicHAEL R. RobRIGUEZ ' Senior Vice President, Fmance and Chief March 16, 2007
Michael R. Rodriguez Financial Officer (pnnc1pal financial and

accounting ofﬁcer)

/s/  Jonn R. DanieLs, M.D. Dlrectch March 16, 2007
|

John R. Daniels, M.D. |
' {

fs!  Davib L. GOLBSMITH Director March 16, 2007
David L. Goldsmith ' }

/s/  Ewic S. KENTOR : Director March 16, 2007
Eric S. Kentor ' I

i
/s/  TERRENCE A. NOONAN Director March 16, 2007
Terrence A. Noonan

s/ THomas R. TESTMAN | . Directo!r March 16, 2007

Thomas R. Testman
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ENDOCARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS .
Years Ended December 31

Productsales ............oviviiinnnnn. e e
SEIVICE FEVEIUES, . o o, v it e v et v e o e e oo et
11111~ T U

Costs and expenses: -
Costof revenues. ............. e e
Research and development . ............. .. .ciiiinieinnonn. e
. Selling and marketing . . . . ..o oottt PR
General and administrative . . . .. e e e
~Goodwill impairment and other charges. . ................... .0

“Loss on divestitures, net .. .......... .. . e e

- Total costs and EXPENSES . . . ...t r et e

Loss from operations ....... . ................ SR
INterest iNCOME. . . ..ottt et e e e e e ee e PR
INtErest EXPENSE . . .ottt i e e e e

Loss from continuing operations before minority interests . . ...........
MInOTItY INLErESIS . . o ittt e e e

Loss from continuing operation$ before taxes .. ....................
Tax benefit on continuing operations. .. ............. PP P

Loss from continuing operations . . .., ..., ... e
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes . .. ...........

Netloss .............

Net income (loss) per share of common stock — basic and diluted
Continuing operations . .. .. .......covumn. ... e e

- Discontinued operations . ............0 .. ... an.
Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding . . .............

¢ .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-2

2004 2005 2006

{In thousands, except per share data)
$ 6036 $ 7605 § 15088
17,516 19.’780 12,298
629 889 604
24,181 28,274 27,990
13,585 15,738 - 12,343
1,856 2,283 2,781
13,354 13,001 15,195
16,379 13,858 13,107
9,900 26 —_
711 — —
55,785 44906 . 43426
(31,604) (16,632)  (15,436)
293 308 452

(7) 657 3,716
. 7(31,318) (15,667) (11,268)
(583) . — —
(31,901)  (15,667) (11,268)
— 829 192
(31,901) (14,838) . (11,076)
{5,718) . 1,159 311
$(37,619) $(13,679) -3$(10,765)
$ (31 $ (051 % (03D
$ (024y-8% 004 $ 001
24263 30,253

28,978




ENDOCARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
1
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2008

2006

{In thousands, except share

i und per share data)
ASSETS |
Current assets: |
Cash and cash equivalents . . .. ..... ... ... ... ... .......\ L $ 8108 F 1811
Accounts receivable less allowances for doubtful accounts and sales' returns of $70
and $84 at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. ... .. .. I ........... 3,549 4,161
INVEROTIES . . ...\t DU 2,462 2,260
Prepaid expenses and other current assets. . .. ................ ' ........... X 1,2.13 1,284
Assets of discontinued operations . .. ... ... Lo L : ...... R 9,624 —
Total CUITENE ASSELS. . o v oot e i et et e e e i e e ae e S 24,956 9,516
Property and equipment, net .. .............0..oun.. . RS R 1,794 1,040
Intangibles, net .. .. ... ... ... b - 4,167 3,613
Investments and other assets .. ... ........... oL £ ..... . 1,320 2,071
Tola) A8SELS & . vt e I $ 32,237 § 16,246
; o
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER‘S’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: ! o | . .
Accounts payable. . .. ... ... . $ 4384 §- 37393
A(:(:ruedgompensa[ion......i...........................f ........... 3,614 3,000
Other accrued liabilities . . .. ............... e ! ........... . 4925 3594
Liabilities of discontinued operations . . . .. A P ; ........... 1,461 —
Totalcurrentliabi]ities................................; ........... © 14,384 9,987
Commonstockwam:mts......:.....................'...‘...:' ........... 5,023 1,307
Deferred compensation .. ............c...cieie.... R .. — 74
Stockholders’ equity: Co
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; donc}, issued and
outstanding .. .. ... — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 30,:089,144 and
30,679,176 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 20035 and 2006,
respectively ... .. : ........... 30 31
Additional paid-incapital. . . ... . ... e 178477 181,289
Accumulated deficit. ... ... ... L L L. e e ' ........... (165,677) (176,442)
Total stockholders’ equity.......... P .. * ........... 12,830 4,878
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .. ................ ERRRRRREREE $ 32237 % 16,246
t.
{
| b :
a !. B .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements,

F-3
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ENDOCARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

' <t ‘ For the Years Ended December 31,
| 2004 2005 2006
. ! .. (Inthousands) ..,
Cash flows from operating activities: |
Netloss ............0...... T L Y O $(37,619) $(13,679) . $(10,765)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to,net cash used in operaung activites: . | ] .. PR .

' Depreciation and amortization . . .+ ... . . .\ .. i ST PP P ¥ )| 3,054 1,576
Reserve for uncollectible notes ... ............. PSP S — —., 1 695,
(Gain) loss on divestitures, net. .-...... e e e e oo 711 (609) +, (524)
Compensation expense related to issuance of options, warrants and restncted . o

SOCK L. e 136 51 2,845
Goodwill impairment and other charges ... .......... e e 15,810 - 26, -

* Loss on sale of placement units and-other fixed assets .............. e o139 - 107 .47
Minority interests. . ... ....., [ e T v e IR . 584 . (214) . —
Exungulshment of payroll tax llablllues ........ S e l ...... 117) - (182) o (891).
Interest expense on common stock warrants ..................... e —_ {657) (3,716)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from purchases and | ‘
divestitures: - iy Pl T ‘
Accounts receivable . ... ..... e ’ ...... (248) (354) 407y

“Inventories .. ............ o .'.‘. ............ [P (1,516) (318) 112
Prepaid expenses-and other current assets . . L { 1,132 ' (454) (83)

. Accounts payable . ..\, ... e L ST S S, (675) (337)  (1,409)

v Accrued CoOmpensation ... .. it SRS S . (33) 429 .. 281
Other accrued liabilities .. ... ...oovtuerer it 1,127 (1,581) " {1,364)
Net cash used 1n operatmg activities e R R R RS RPN (17,088  (14,718)  (13,603)
Cash flows from investing activities: " . e
quchaseslof property and equipment. . . . . o e e (456) (423) (158)
.Purchases of intangibles .. ... ..... e e N I J— @30
Partnership distributions.to minority interests .. ........ ... ... b . (739) - -
Proceeds from divestitures ,.......... e [P D 2,388 850 7,480
Other'assets .,........ D PP b . 315 — —
Net cash provnded by mvesung acuv:tlcs ........... I PN - } sa o 1,508 97 - 7,322 .
Cash flows from financing activities: .- oL ey i
Stock options-and warrants exercised . . ... .. e e b e, 92 116 108
Borrowings on line of credit ... . . fere e e T el = —_ 250
Payments on line of credit ... ... e e e S P - — (250)
Proceeds from sale of stock and warrants, net. . .. ... ... ... L., . — . 14,596 +{92)
Repurchase of treasury stock. . . . . e P et ] ....... (504) .. — —
Net cash provided by (used in) ﬁnancmg activities . .. ........ .. . ... . ........ (412) 14,712 v 16
Net mcrease/(decrease) in c\:ash and cash equlvalems ..... EEREEEEERETEE f Ceea (15,992_) . 91 (6,265)
Cash and cash equwalents, beginning of yéar. ... ... .. AR 23,977 7, 985 8,108
Less: Cash of dlscontmued operaﬂons ............ . e ' f A o (155) kP2 (32)
Cash and cash eqmvalents end of yea: e e ; p z . . 8 7,830 § _8.108. $ 1811
Non cash activities: } o . vy

Transfer of inventory 10 property and equipment for placement at customer snes o 3951 532 % 587

Transfer from property and equ:pment o mventory for sale of Cryocare Surgxcal - v
SHSIBINS . .. s i e e e e e i e b— —_ 470,

Other supplemental mformanon. o ‘ o O £

Interest paid . ... . . .ro o .n L e e e e e e LA RE 8; ,36 - % 19.

Income taxes paid-..: J.......... T 0SS TR . 3 2 2 % 55

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these Consolldated Financial Statements. -
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ENDOCARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular numbers in thousands, except per share data)

1. Organization and Operations of the Company

Endocare (“we” or “Endocare”) is a medical device company focused on developing, manufacturing and
selling cryosurgical products with the potential to improve the treatment of cancer and other tumors. We were
formed in 1990 as a research and development division of Medstone International, Inc. (“Medstone”), a manu-
facturer of shockwave lithotripsy equipment for the treatment of kidney stones. Following our incorporation under
the laws of the state of Delaware in 1994, we became an independent, publicly-owned corporation upon Medstone’s
distribution of our stock to the existing stockholders on January 1, 1996.

Through February 10, 2006 we also offered vacuum therapy systems for non-pharmaceutical treatment of
erectile dysfunction through our wholly-owned subsidiary Timm Medical Technologies, Inc. (Timm Medical),
which was sold to a third party effective February 2006 (see Note 7 — Dispositions and Discontinued Operations).
The operating results of Timm Medical are included in discontinued operations.

2. Recent Operating Results and Liquidity

+ Since inception, we have incurred losses from operations and have reported negative cash flows. Losses from
continuing operations were $31.9 million, $14.8 million and $11.1 million for the three years ended December 31,
2006. Operating cash flow deficits were $17.1 million, $14.7 million and $13.6 million during this three year peried.
As of December 31, 2006 we had an accumulated deficit of $176.4 million and cash and cash equivalents of
$1.8 million.

We do not expect to reach cash flow positive operations in 2007, and we expect to continue to generate losses
from operations for the foreseeable future. These losses have resulted in part from our continued investment to gain
acceptance of our technology and investment in initiatives that we believe should ultimately result in cost
reductions. In addition to these continued investments, although we recently resolved the investigations by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) of our histerical accounting
and financial reporting (see 12 - “Commitments and Contingencies” — Government Investigations), we still have
obligations to indemnify and advance the legal fees for our former officers and former directors in connection with
the ongoing investigations and legal proceedings related to those individuals. The amount of those legal fees may
exceed the reimbursement due to us from our directors’. and officers’ liability insurance, and the excess may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and liquidity. We also face large
cash expenditures in the future related to past due state and local tax obligations primarily sales and use tax, which
we estimate to be approximately $2.8 million and was accrued as of December 31, 2006. We are in the process of
negotiating resolutions of the past due state and local tax obligations with the applicable tax authorities. However
there is no assurance that these obligations will be reduced as a result of the negouauons or that we will be allowed
to pay the amounts due over an extended period of time.

We also intend to continue investing in our sales and marketing efforts to physicians in order to raise awareness
and gain further acceptance of our technology. This investment is required in order to increase physicians’ usage of
our technology in the treatment of prostate and renal cancers, lung and liver cancers and palliative intervention
(treatment of pain associated with metastases). Such costs will be reported as current period charges under generally
accepted accounting principles.

Since we do not currently have sufficient financial resources to fund our ongoing needs, we will require
additional equity financing or borrowings in order to continue operations. Our funding sources include a $16 million
common stock purchase agreement with Fusion Capita! Fund II, LLC and our $4 million credit agreement with
Silicon Valley Bank. The availability under both agreements is subject to many conditions, some of which are
predicated on events that are not within our control. Accordingly, we cannot guarantee that these capital resources
will be available or will be sufficient.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

As more fully described in Note 6 — “Private Placement of Comdwn Stock and Warrants”, on,October 25,
2006, we entered into an-agreement with Fusion Capital Fund I, LLC (“Fusion Capital”).pursuant to which we have
the right to sell to Fusion Capital up to $16:0 million of common stock over a two year period at prices determined
based upon the market price of our common stock at the time of each sale without any fixed discount. However we
only have the right to sell $100,000 every fourth business day, with additilonal $150,000 increments available every
third business day if the market price of our common stock is $1.50 or higher, subject to our ability to comply with
certain on going requirements. This $150,000 increment can be further increased at graduated levels up to
$1.0 million if the market price increases from $1.50 to.$6.00. Fusion Capital’s obligation to buy shares from us is
automnatically suspended if the trading share price decreases below $1.00. We are also subject to certain on- going
requirements, which include maintaining effectiveness of a registration statement filed in Novermnber 2006 covering
the sale of the shares purchased by Fusion Capital, listing of the shares on the- principal market on which they are
traded, timely issuance of purchased shares and maintenance of trading Ipr1ces at or above $1.00. Our inability to’
comply with these and other requirements (an event of default) willt.allow Fusion Capital to terminate the
agreement. We sold $50,000 of shares to Fusion Capital in December 2006 and-an-additional $1.0 million through
February 28, 2007. Although we are in compliance with these requirements at December 31, 2006, there is no
assurance that we will continue to comply in future periods. In addition, the extent to which we rely on Fusion
Capital as a source of funding will depend on a number of factors mcludlng' the -prevailing' market.price of our
common stock. Since we have authonzed 8,000,000 shares for sale under the stock purchase agreement, the selling
prrce of our common stock to Fusron Capttal wrll have to average at least $2. 00 per share for us to receive the
maximum proceeds of $16.0 mllhon Assummg a purchase pnce of $l 75 per share (the closmg sale pnce of the
commort stock on February 28, 2007) and thé purchase by Fusron Capltal of the full 8, 000 000 shares under the
common stock purchase agreement gross proceeds to us would be $l4 0 million. '

... under our credit facility wrth Silicon Valley Bank, we can borrow up to $4 million based on the amocunt of
ehgrble inventory and trade recelvables as deﬁned under the credit agreement, but is ultlmately subject to, the good
faith business Judgment of the lender The agreement contarns restnctr\;e covenants and subjectrve acceleratlon:
clauses that permrt the lender to accelerate payment of all outstandmg balances and/or cease, to make further
advances to us if an event of default occurs or if the lender determmes in 1ts Judgmem that a matenal adverse change
has occurred As more ful]y dlscussed in Note 13— "Lme of Credu” our tanglble net worth decreased below the
requrred level at September 30, October 31 and November 30 2006 [n December 2006 the lender amended the'
credit facility to waive these defaults and to modrfy the minimum tangrble net worth provision, In February 2007
we further amended the minimum net tangible net worth provrsron and exten,ded the ¢ exprratlon date 'of the credit
facility, Although we are in compliance with the modified covenants at December 31, 2006 there is no assurance
that we will be able to comply with all the requirements in future penods that we can'obtain’ a waiver. if another
default occurs or that the lender; will not exercise the subjective acceleratlon clause to terminate the agreement. We
have no amounts outstandmg under this line of credit at December 31 2006 though we, had $l .9 million in
outstanding borrowmgs through February 28, 2007. As amended ‘the crec1ht dellrty expires on February 27 2008, .

Our continuing losses, cash flow deficits, and our obligations, along with the contingencies in‘our findihg
sources, together raise substantial doubt about our. ability to continue,as a,going concern, ,The accompanying
financial statements have been prepared assuming that;we will continue as a going concern and do not include any,
adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and
classification of liabilities that nlnay;result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

We will use existing cash reserves, working capital through the sale of our products, as well as future proceeds
from sales, if any, of common stock to Fusion Capital, to finance our projedted operating and cash flow needs, along
with continued expense management efforts. We have reduced operating cash use over the past five years by
streamlining our corporate structure, focusing resources on our core products and strategic initiatives,
re-engineering our products to lower manufacturing costs, reducing use of consultants and professional services
and delaying or eliminating non-essential spending. We have also mstrtuted additional equity incentive programs to
reduce cash compensation outlays. l

i
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ENDOCARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
“

We may borrow.funds under our line of credit with our bank for short term needs as long as we remain in
compliance with the representations, warranties, covenants and borrowing conditions, We believe that the financing
with Fusion Capital and our line of credit with our bank should provide us with the capital resources that we need to
reach the point where our operations will generate positive cash flows. We will continue to endeavor to reduce
expenses, defer or eliminate lower priority research, clinical and marketing activities to conserve cash and garner
manufacturing efficiencies through product re-engineering and sourcing our product compenents o overseas or to
lower cost suppliers. However, our cash needs are not entirely predictable and the availability of funds from Fusion
Capital and our bank are subject to many conditions, including certain subjective acceleration clauses and other
provisions, some of which are predicated on events that are not within our control. Even if we are able to access the
full $16.0 million under the common stock purchase agreement with Fusion Capital, we may still need additional
capital to fully implement our business, operating and development plans. In addition, if financing from Fusion
Capital were to prove unavailable or prohibitively dilutive and if we are unable to sell enough of our products, we
may need to secure another source of funding in order to satisfy our working capital needs. Accordingly, we cannot
guarantee the availability of these capital resources or that they will be sufficient to fund our ongoing operations to
the point where our operations will generate positive cash flows. Should the financing we require to sustain our
working capital needs be unavailable or prohibitively expensive when we require it, the consequences would be a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

In assessing whether to enter into the Fusion Capital financing and renew the bank line of credit, we considered
these factors in light of our circumstances and likely cash requirements. After comparing the Fusion Capital
financing and bank line of credit to dther financing alternatives poten‘tially available to us, we made a business
decision that the Fusion Capital ﬁnancmg and bank line of credit represented the best financing alternatives then
available to us.

We continue to believe that the Fusion Capital financing and bank line of credit should provide us with the
capital resources that we need to reach the point where our operations will genératé positive cash flows. However,
primarily because of the subjective accelération clauses and other conditions referred to above that may limit our
access 1o these funding sources, the audit report of our independent auditors contained in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K contains an unqualified opinion with an explanatory paragraph, to the effect that there is substantial
doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. This opinion could itself have a matenal adverse effect on
our busmess fi nanc1al condmon results of operatlons and cash flows.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies '
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent and all majority owned and controlled
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
v g r . T
Comprehensive Income .

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard, or SFAS, No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, requires
reporting and displaying comprehensive income (loss) and its components, which, for Endocare, is the same as the
net loss reflected in the consolidated statements of qtockholders equity.

v
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NOTES TOQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL-STATE‘MENTS — (Continued)
: |

I
t
Use of Estimates . ] S . I

The preparation of consolidatéd financial statements in 'conformity‘;wi_th U.S. gederally acceptéd accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities’ and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses durmg the reportm'g period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates. Principal areas requiring the use of estimates include: determmauon of allowances for uncollectible
accounts and notes receivable and sales returns, warranty obligations, re§ewee for excess and obsolete inventory,
valuation allowances for investments and deferred lax assets, impairment of long-lived and intangible assets,
determination of stock-based compensation 10 employees and consultants valuanon of the warrants and TESErves
for litigation and other legal and regulatory matters, among others. ; : ‘

Revenue Recognition J . .

Revenues from sales of Cryocare Surgical Systems and cryoablation ;disposable products are recognized when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has-occurred, jthe fee is fixed and determinable, and
collecublllty is reasonably assured: We also contract with medical facilities to provide cryoablation disposable
products and services for which we charge a per-procedure fee. The cryoablatlon services provided generally
consist of rental and transport of a Cryocare Surgical System, as well as, "the services of a technician to assist the
physician with the set-up, use and monitoring of the equnpmenl and mc]ude the necessary disposable products and

“supplies, The medical facilities are billed for procedures performed using Cryocare Surgical Systems owned either

by us or by third parties who perform the service component of the procedure We receive procedure fee revenue

 from the medical facility and, where a third-party service prowder is mvoived pay a fee to the service provider. The

fee billed to the medical facility is recorded as revene in the period when the procedure is performed. Cost of
revenues includes the cost of the necessary disposable products and supplies and, if applicable, third party service
provider fees which are recorded at the time of the procedure. Cost of reverf:ues also includes depreciation related to
Endocare-owned Cryocare Surgical Systems over an estimated useful life of three years.

We have continued to experience year over year growth in'cryosurgic'g}] disposable product sales and procedure
fee revenues. In the past two years, we have placed increasing emphasis on direct sale of our products rather than
procedure fee revenues. As a result.of the shift in revenue mix from cryoablauon procedure fees to sales of
cryoablation disposable products, which have a lower average selling pnce and cost of sales per procedure, we have
experienced an increase.in gross margins as a percentage of revenues although the gross proﬁt dollars per case
generally are the same, Our gross margin has also increased due to reclonﬁgurétlon of our products to reduce’
manufacturing costs, sourcing products and components to lower cosl suppllers We have also reduced operating
expenses through streamlining our corporate organization, elimination or deferral of some Ionger-lerm research,

development, clinical and marketmg activities, and in general better. control of our operating expenses.
Iz

[ - '
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ENDOCARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Revenues and the related cost of revenues from continuing operations consist of the following for the three
years ended December 31, 2006: - : .

Year Ended December 31,

! Co . I N . 2004 2005 . 2006
Revenues:

Product sales: ‘ ' ‘ ) . '
Cryoablation disposable products. . . . . . e . $ 4584 56,790 $13,948 .
Cryocare Surgical Systems . ... .. ... ... .o, . 1,403 743 1,096 -
Other (Urohealth). . .............: L e . .49 - 72 - 44

6,036 7,605 15,088

Cryoablation procedure fees . .. ... .......... .. ... ..., 17,516 19,780 ° 12,298

Cardiac royalties (CryoCath) ... ... .. P O T 629 889 604

o Coe L .. $24,181  $28274  $27,990
* Cost of revenues: v : : | ‘ ' »
Cryoablauon dlsposable products and procedure fees ..... Loe.. $13,330 0 815,278 811,541
Cryocare Surgical Systems ....... e A © 255 7 460 802
' . R $13.585 $15,738  $12,343

. , . Cer ‘

Cost of revenues for cryoablation disposable products and procedure fees are combined for reporting purposes.
Sales of cryoablation disposable products and procedure fees incorporate similar inventory when sold and we do not
separately track the cost 'of disposable products sold directly to customers and those consumed in crycablation
procedures. Procedure fees relate to services which are provided to medical facilities upon request to facilitate the
overall delivery of our technology into the marketp}:{ce. '

O

We provide customary sales incentives to customers and distributors in the ordinary course of business. These
arrangements include volume discounts, equipment upgrades and rent-to-own programs. These transactions are
accounted for in accordance with Emérgi_ng Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with
Multiple Deliverables, when ipplicable. We defer the recognition of certain Cryocare Surgical System revenues
where we have continuing performance obligations. Deferred revenues are adjusted in future periods when
remaining obligations have been met. Deferred revenue as of December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006 is not significant
and were included in other accrued liabilities. From time to time, we may agree to provide equipment upgrades for
free or at significant discounts to select customers who purchased Cryocare Surgical Systems in the prior years.
These offers to upgrade are at our discretion and intended to facilitate the delivery of our iatest crycablation
technology into the market place. The loss on equipment provided for upgrades is expensed at the earlier of the
commitment or shipment date. In 2006, we recorded net expense of $525,000 for the cost of 18 Cryocare Surgical
Systems provided to customers as free or discounted upgrades pursuant to commitments made in the current year.
We have has also reduced the selling price of Cryocare Surgical Systems to at or near cost to promote the use of
cryoablation as a preferred treatment option. These initiatives have decreased the gross margin on sale of Cryocare
Surgical Systems.

No customer accounted for more than 10 percent of total revenues in 2004 or 2005. In 2006 one customer
accounted for 28.8 percent of total revenues. This customer accounted for 45.7 percent of our accounts receivable
balance as of December 31, 2006, We derived 91.9 percent, 93.1 percent and 94.2 percent of revenues from sales in
the United States during this three-year period.

We routinely assess the financial strength of our customers and believe that our accounts receivable credit risk
exposure is limited. Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate for doubtful
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

accounts and sales returns based on a periodic review of outstanding receivables. Intemational shipments are billed
and collected by Endocare in U.S. dollars. Allowances are provided for known and anticipated credit losses as
determined by management in the course of regularly evaluating mdmdual customer receivables. This evaluation
takes into consideration a customer’s financial condition and credit history as well as cutrent economlc conditions.
Accounts recewable are written off when deemed uncollecnble Recc;venes of accounts recewable prev1ously
written off are recorded when received. . ‘ { AR

t

._-L\ I . Tu 1
[ Fn r
. ! A

Inventories, consisting of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost or
market, with cost determined by the first-in, first-out method. Reserves for slow- -moving and obsolete inventories

are prowded based on historical experience and product demand We*evaluate the adequacy of these reserves
periodically. |

.

Inventories

- g =

|
The foltowmg is a summary of inventory (excluding assets of dlsconlmued operauons)
I

' . : , © 2005 2006

‘ 1 (In thousands)
Raw materials ........... * e e $1,646 $1,750
Work in process . . ... .. ' R R 3 ........... .25 300
Finished goods . ... ... F PR EUTETD TR U ceeeee. o1 718

Total inventories . . . ..o v oo e g AP ‘ T ........ . . 2,832 2828 .
Less inventory reserve ... ......... S e o e (370) _ (568)
\ |
Inventories, net”, . .. ... ... SRR SRR AT I LU T 82,462 ¢ $2,260
’ ' . . i O . + .
Property and Equipmeit . ' L o - : . R

‘. Properly and equnpment are slated at cost and are deprer:lated ona stralght-lme baS|s over the estlmated useful
lives of the respective assets, which range from three 10 seven years. Leasehold improvements ‘are amortlzed over
the shorter of the estlmated useful lives of the assets or the related lease{term Cryosurgical equ1pment placed at
customer sites for use with our disposable cryoprobes is depreciated into cost of revenues over estimated useful lives
of three years. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as mcurred' Depreciation expense from | contmumg
operations was $2.0 million, $1.7 million and $1.0 million in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

The following is a summary of property and equipment (excludmg!assets of discontinued operations):

! December 31,
. ! 2005 2006

o : L {In thousands)
Equipment and COMPULErs . . .................... e e e e $1,697 $ 1,825
Cryosurgical systems placed at customer sites. ... ........... ¥ .......... 5,746 5,019
‘Fumniture and fixtures. . ... o : .......... - 905 908
Leasehold improvements . ..."......... e e g’ 321 - 321
Total property and equipment, at cost . ................... L 8,669 8,073
Accumulated depreciation and amortization . ... ............. L (6,875) (7,033}
Property and equipment, net,. ... .......... PR S ;' $1.794 $1.040




ENDOCARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Long-'Lived 'Assers, Goodwill and Intangible Ajseis 'Subjecr to Amortization Lo

* We acquire goodwill and amortizable mtanglble assets in business combinations and asset purchases The
- excess of the purchase price over the fair va]ue of net assets acqunred are allocated to goodwill and identifiable
intangibles. We do ‘not amortize goodwill which is consistent with the provnsmns of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and other Intangible Assets as more fully described in Note 5
“Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Goodwill and indefinite !ived assets are reviewed annually
for impairment and on an interim basis if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be
impaired. . ' "

Intangible assets that are deemed to have finite useful lives are'recorded at cost and dmortlzed using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful llVeS as follows: )

Trade names (discontinued operations) . . . .. e PO 135 years

Domain names . . ... ...t ' ............... P e ' lSyea'rs'

Covenants not to compete. . . ... . [ e e 3 to 5 years
eveloped technology (dlscommued operauons) .......................... “.. 15 years

SPatents. ... e I T 3o 15 years

ln accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, we review
long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
such assets may not be recoverable. We consider assets to be impaired and write them down to fair value if estimated
undiscounted cash flows associated with those assets are less tha their carrying amounts. Fair value is based upon
the present value of the associated cash flows. Changes in circumstances (for example, changes in laws or
regulations, technological advances or changes in our strategies} may also reduce the useful lives from initial
estimates. Changes in the planned use of intangibles may result from changes in customer base, contractual
agrecments, or regulatory requirements. In such circumstances, we will revise the useful life of the long-lived asset
and amortize the remaining net book value over the ddjusted remaining useful life. There were no changes in
estimated useful ‘lives during 2004, 2005 and 2006. In thé third quarter of 2004, we recorded a $9.9 million
‘impairment charge relating to the mobile prostate treatment partnerships (included in continuing operations) and an
impqii‘rﬁem charge of $5.9 million related to Timm Medicql (included in discontinued operations) (see Notes 5 —
“Impairment of Goodwill and other Intangible Assets” and Note 7 — “Dispositions and Discontinued
‘Operations™). No impairment charge was recorded in 2005 or 2006. '

Amortization .expense for each of the years ending December 31 will consist of the following amounts:

2007 © o e $ 489
D008 © oot e et e e e 483
2009 . . e e e e 483
2010 . e e e 483
2011 e e | 483
Thereafter ........ e e D SR 1,192

| $3613

Amortization expense from continuing operatlons totaled $0.7 m11110n 50.6 m:lhon and $0.6 mllllon in 2004
2005 and 2006, respectively.
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The following is a surnmary of intangible assets (excluding disco}ntinued operations):

o ' December 31,
i . o . t L2005 . 2006
' | : (In thousands)
Domain name . .. . .. P PP i e L% 435 $ "435
‘Covenant not .to"'compéte'. e T U L. 352 352
Patents. ..\ .. ........ L b 8205 6205
Total intangibles. ... ... : ........... 6,992 6,992
Accumulated amortization . ... ....... ... ..t ertrnanan e .. (2,825 (3,379
i
Intangibles, met. " .. ... .. ... e e $4,167 $3,613

Investments

We hold other investments which primarily consist of strategic investments of less than 20 percent equity
interest in certain companies acqu1red in CO[lJLlI'lC[IOI‘l with various strategic alliances. These represent minority
interests in start-up technology compames We do not have the ability to exercise significant influence over the
financial or operational policies or administration of any of these compam‘es therefore, they are accounted for under
the cost method. Realized gains dnd losses are recorded when related investments are sold, Investments in privately-
held companies are regularly assessed for impairment through review of operations and indicators of continued
-viability, including operating performance financing status, liquidity prlospects and cash flow forecasts. Impair-
ment losses are recorded when events and circumstances indicate that such asséts might be lmpalred and the decline
in value is other-than-temporary, These investments are included in mv';:stments and other assets.

'
’ |

Product Warranties ' ) : *l
Certain of our products are covered by warranties against defects in matenal and workmanship for periods up
to two years afterthe sale .date. The estimated warranty cost is recorded at the time of sale and is adjusted
periodically to reflect actual experience. Factors that affect our warranty llablhty include the number of units sold,
histerical and anticipated rates of warranty claims, and cost per claim. Ou'r warranty costs and llab]]l[y (included in
other accrued liabilities) were not significant for 2004, 2005 or 2006. | : , N

Research ahd, De"velopmem o 1 L L

Research and development actmues are performed primarily inthouse. Expendxturcs primarily include
personnel, cllmcal studies, and malenal expenses incurred to design, creaté, and test prototypes. These expenditures
are ¢harged to operauom as incurred until technological feasibility has been establlshed Costs to maintain patents
are mcluded in general and admlmstrauve expemes

4

Advertising ;
: Ad‘vertising costs are included in selling and marketing expenses as incurred and totaled $0.5 rﬁilliod,
$0.3 million and $0.3 million for 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

e e e A - - —

Sh:ppmg and Handlmg Cosrs .
' We incurred shlppmg and handling costs in the normal-course of busmess All shipping and handlmg costs
“related to our products are charged to cost of sales as mcurred . T ' :
1
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-ENDOCARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES ' TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents ' v . - . o0 L ey

All highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less are considered to be

cash equ1va]ents Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds and various deposit accounts.
R TR

We have $0.2 million in restricted cash on a certificate of deposit which collateralizes the outstanding premium
balance on our. directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy. The required deposits steps down ratably
throughout the remaining policy period. The policy period ends April, 2007. We classify this restrlcted cash in
prepaids and other current asseis since the premiums due are included in current liabilities.

Concentrations of Credit Risk : . Gt

Financial insttuments, which potentially subject us to concentrations of creclit risk, primarily consist of cash
and cash equivalents, and accounts receivable and notes receivable. We may be exposed from time to time to credit
risk with our bank deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance limits. We have not experienced any losses in such
accounts and believe we are not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. Qur receivables
are denved pnmanly from sales of Cryocare Surgical Systems and cryoablation disposable products to medical
facilities, mecllcal groups ‘and urologists. Cryoablation procedure fees are generated from medical facilities. We
have one customer that accounted for 28.8'percent of our revenues for the year ended December 3 i, 2006. This same
customer. accountéd for 39.8’ percent of our fourth quarter 2006 revenues Our accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2006 consisted of 45.7 percent of receivables from this customer. We have no history of past
due recelvables from this customer. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and generally do not
require collateral Reserves are mamtamed for potential credit losses. There are no significant concentratrons of
credit nsk with respect to trade receivables except for the customer referenced above.

We also have a note receivable from the sale of a Timm Medical product line in 2003 and from the divestiture
of Timm Medical in 2006, which is secured. We also have a secured note receivable from a shareholder consultant to
Endocare. These are included in investments and other assets. We evaluate the creditworthiness of the debtors
periodically and provide allowances for uncollectible amounts. In the fourth quarter of 2006, we recorded a
$0.4 million chafge to write off the-shareholder riote and reduced the-carrying value of the note from the sale of
Timm-Medical by $0.3 million. See Note.7 — “Dispositions and D:scontmued Operations” and Note 14 —
“Related Pan‘y ‘Transactions”, for further discussion, . : \ . : ,

+ . . H :

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while at the same time maximize the
income we receive from our invested cash without significantly increasing the risk of loss. Our consolidated balance
sheets mclude the following ﬁnanc1al instruments: cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable,
minority’ 1nvestments accounts payable accrued llabllrues and’ common stock warrants. The carrymg amounts of
current assets "and llabllrtles approxlmate their fair values, becausle of the relativel y short penocl of time between the
ongrnatron ‘of these instruments and their expected reafization. The interest rates on the notes ‘recéivable related to
Timm Medical generally approximate market rates for secured obligations of similar terms and maturity, The fair
value of minority investments cannot be estimated since the investees are privately held early stage companies. The
common stock warrants are recorded at fair value, which is adjusted each quarter using a modified Black-Scholes
pricing rnod'el.

1 . N 1 ‘.
g . < . N LI LN T e - ) o v t

PR B T ._'-~ L . . o

Risks and Uncertainties

Our profitability depends in large part on increasing our revenue base and effectively managing costs.of sales,
customer acquisition costs and administrative overhead. We continually review our pricing and cost structure in an
effort to select the optimal-revenue.and distribution ‘models. Several factors could adversely affect revenues and
costs, such as changes in health care practices, payer reimbursement, inflation, new. technologies, competition and
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|
product liability litigation, which are beyond our control and could adversely affect our ability to accurately:predict
revenues and effectively control costs. Many purchasers of our products and services rely upon reimbursement from
third-party payers, including Medicare, Medicaid and other g0vemment or private organizations. These factors
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash ﬂows

PR Y

Rer:lassiﬁcation o ' ; : .

. : ' : I :
Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
‘ ;
Off-Balance Sheet Finavicings and Liabilities ; ' : '

Other than lease commltmems legal contingencies incurred in the normal course of business, and employment
contracts, we do not have any off- balance sheet financing arrangements olr liabilities. In addition, our policy is not to
enter into derivative instruments, futures or forward contracts. Our business is transacted solely in U.S: dollar$ and,
“while future fluctuations of the U.S. dollar may affect the price competmveness of our products, there is noknown
significant direct foreign currency exchange rate risk. Finally, we do not have any majonty-owned subsmhanes or
any interests in, or relationships w1th any material special-purpose entities that are not included in the consolidated
financial statements. . .

i

Other Accrued Liabilities : i

dther accrue:d liabilities as of December 31, 2005 and 2006 include's $3.4 million and $2.8 milliori in state and

local taxes, primarily sales and use taxes in various jurisdictions in the United States.
i
Captral Stock and Eammgs Per Share - '

In February 2004, we retired 326,222 of our common shares held in treasury, mcludmg 120,022 “shares
purchased from BioLife Solutions, Inc. (“B10L1fe "} for approximately $0.5 million, in connection ‘with settlement
of our litigation with BioLife which was concluded in February 2004. |

l
Basic net income or loss per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding for the respective periods. Diluted loss per share, calculated using the treasury stock
method, gives effect to the potential dilution that could occur upon the exércise of certain stock options and warrants
that were outstanding during the respective periods presented. For penods when we reported a net loss from
continuing operations, these potentially dilutive common shares were excluded from the diluted income or loss per
share calculation because they were anti-dilutive. .
. . I
Taxes : ) . . !
t
We recogmze deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary dlfferences between the financial reportmg basis
and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities along with net operating loss and credit carryforwards, if it is more
likely than not that the tax benefits will be realized. To the extent a deferred tax asset cannot be recognized under the
preceding criteria, allowances must be established. The impact on deferred taxes of changes in tax rates and laws, if
any, are applied to the years during which temporary differences are expected to be settled and reflected in the
financial statements in the period of enactment. :

’

i
1

l

t

: : !

Stock-Based Compensation : ]

|
As of December 31, 2006, we have five stock-based employee compensation plans and one non-employee
director stock-based compensation plan. Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for stock-based compensation for
those plans under the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 257) as permitted by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based
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. Compensation. Compensation expense recorded under APB 25 has not been significant since we generally. grant
\ options with an exercise price equal to the fair value of our common stock on the date of grant. .- - :

EfféctiveJ anuary 1, 2006 we adopted SFAS No 123 (rev1sed 2004) Share Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”)
using the modified prospective transition method. Among other iterns, SFAS No. 123R eliminates the use of the
intrinsic value method of accounting under APB 25 and requires companies to recognize in the financial statements
the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant’ date fair
value of those awards. Under. the modified prospective method, we recognize compensation cost in the financial
statements beginning with the effective date based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123R for all share-based
payments granted, modified or settled after January 1, 2006, and based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123 for all
unvested awards granted prior to the effective date.,

We ‘will continue to use the Black-Scholes standard option pncmg mode] and ‘the smgle option award approach
,to measure the fair value of the stock options granted to_employees. In C()n_]Ul'lCtIOl] with the  adoption’ of
SFAS No. 123R we mod1f"1ed certam assumptions and estimation methodologies for inputs to the Black- Schotes
valuatlon calculauons in accordance with the requ1rements of SFAS No. 123R and Staff Accountmg Bulletin (SAB)
No. 107 Share-Based Paymenr These changes pnman]y 1nclude the followmg

a. We increased the expected term from five years to 6.25 years using the “shortcut ‘method” under
SAB 107 (an expected term based on the mid point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term). The use of the short cut method is permitted through December 31, 2007. We will convert to company-
specific experience on or before J anuary 1, 2008. The options have a maximum contractual term of 10 years
and vest pro-rata over four years, whlch is the requisite service penod

b. While we continue to use historical volauhty (based on daily tradlng pnces) to estimate the fa1r value
of opuons granted, we have mcreased the period over which volatility is measured from three years to

" ‘September 30, 2002 Form 10-Q, temporary suspension of tradmg, dehstmg of Bur shares from NASDAQ, and
an investigation commenced by the SEC. These changes resulted in a'net ‘decrease in volatility from previous
estimates. Average volatility for options granted in 2004, 2005 and during the year ended December 31, 2006
was approximately 89.0 percent, 90.3 percent and 69.5 percent, respectively. We did not incorporate implied

..« . ,volatility since there are no actively traded optlon cOntracts on our common stock and sufficient, data for an
. accurate measure of implied volatility were not available. o et

c. Prior to January 1, 2006, we accourited for forfeitures as théy occurred. Compensation expensé related
to unvested forfeited options was reversed in the period‘the employee was terminated. Upon adoption’ of
SFAS No. 123R, we have estimated an average forfeiture rate of approximately 25.0 percent based on
historical experience from 2001 through December 31, 2006. Stock-based compensation expense recorded in
the 2006 periods is net of expected forfeitures. We will periodically assess the forfelture rate. Changes in
estimates will be recorded in the period of adjustment 1f any.

-~ We have no unamortized deferred compensation relating to outstandm g option grants since we generally award
stock options to our'employees with exercise prices equal to the fair ‘value of the underlying common stock on the
‘date of grant. Due to our continuing losses, we do' not recognize deferred tax assets related to our stock-based
compensation and we have not recorded benefits for tax deductions in &xcess of recognized compensation costs
(required to be recorded as financing cash flows) due to the uncertainty of when we will generate taxable income to
realize such benefits. . :

- As.a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R, our loss from continuing operations and net loss for the year ended
December 31, 2006 was $2:6 million ($0.09 per basi¢ and diluted share) greater than if we had continued to account
for stock-based compensation under APB 25 and its related interpretations. Of the $2:6 million recorded during the
year ended December 31, 2006 $56,000, was expensed as cost of goods sold, 50.1 million was included in research
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and development expenses, $0.6 million in selling and marketing expenses‘and-$l.8 million in general and
administration expenses. As of December 31, 2006, there was $3.4 mjllion (net of estimated forfeitures) of total
unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested stock-based compensatlon arrangements granted under the
'stock optlon plans. That cost is expected to be amortized on a straight- lmle basis over a weighted average penod of
1.2 years less any stock optlons forfeited prior to Vesting. As of December 31, 2006, stock compensanon cost
capltallzed as mvemory was 1nsngmficant IS boe o

L . , ! ) ' '

Pnor to January 1 2006 we accoumed for stock- based employee compensation plans in accordance with
APB 25 and followed the pro forma disclosure requirements set forth in SFAS No. 123, The following table
illustrates the effect on'net loss and loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 as if we had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 10 stock-basﬁed employee compensation. The amounts
in the table below include stock-based compensation expense related to Timm Medical which was not significant
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts): '

' Ca s’ 1 T .'_ ' l

' December 31, December 31,

e A - ! " A - L 2005
Net loss, as reported(zl) ..... .. B l e $'(3'7,6l9) $(l3",_679)
Add: Stock-based employee 'cc:)mp'ensation expense included in -reponed ' o 7 '

net loss forall awards(b) .......... ... .. ............. ‘. - 136 ' 43
Less: Total stock-based employee compensatlon expense delerrmned T )

under fair value based method for all awards... . .. e . (3,875 . (3,696)
Net loss, as adjusted. . . .. ... .. ... e o 313 80739
Basic and diluted loss per sharl_e: I h o 7

Asreported . ..., . bt L... $ (155 - § (047) .

-Asadjusted....-.‘..'.....':‘...-.- ..... P, o8 (170 8 (060).

The fair value of each option grant is esnmated on the date of grant

using the _Bldelt_-Seholes Ioption_ pricing
model with the followmg assumpnons

[

2004 2005 . 2006 .

l
. ! ‘ | :
. Stock volatility ... ... ..... e e ST I 089 09 - 070
. Risk-free interest rate........ e e e e l T 3.6% ', 4.0% L 4.6%
Expectedlife inyears....... ce .|’._ ............. e l Syears 5 ye‘ars', 6.25 years

Stock dividend yield. . . v o\ oeennnn. e e S — -

) (a) In the past, we had issued stock options and warrants‘to consultants for services performed. Compensation
expense for the fair value of these options was determined by the Black Scholes option-pricing model and was
charged to operations over the service period or as performance goals were achieved. Such expense was
included in net loss as reported. |

[
(b) Since we issue options with exercise prices equal to or ‘exceeding the fair values of the underlying- common

stock, no compensation expense was recorded for options issued to employees. The recorded expense generally
related to compensation charges upon modlﬁcatlon of vestmg terms cashless éxercises, and other non-rouune

transactlons i ' I R , . ) 1 ‘ S T :

R}

Weighted average expected vo]atlhty for stock options granted in 2004 and 2005 was'based.on dally Lradmg
prices from April 2003 and an expected term of five years. The risk free tnterest rate refiects the yield on zero
coupon.U.S, treasuries at the date of grant, based on the median time the options are expected to be outstanding. No
expected dividend yield is used because we have not historically paid dwndends and do not mlend to pay dividends
in the foreseeable future. - .. ey, ' o |

|
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4. Recent Accounting Pronouncements
' .

Irt June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes {FIN 48) to create a
single model to address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income
taxes, by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in
the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition, measurement, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is éffective for fiscal years beginning afier
December 15, 2006. We will adopt FIN 48 as of Janvary 1, 2007, as required. The cumulative effect of adopting
FIN 48 will be recorded in retained earnings. We are in the process of determining the effect if any, the adoption of
FIN 48 will have on our financial position and results of operations.

, . B

FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 00-19-2, Accounting for Registration-Payment Arrangements, was issued in
December 2006 1o addresses an issuer’s accounting for a registration payment arrangement. The FSP specifies that
the contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise transfer consiceration under a registration payment
arrangement should be separately recognized and measured in accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for
Contingencies. For registration payment arrangements and financial instruments subject to those arrangements that
were entered into prior to the issuance of this FSP and that continue to be outstanding at the adoption date, this
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and interim periods within those fiscal
years. As more fully described under Note 6 — “Private Placement of Common Stock and Warrants”, we issued
warrants in conjunction with common shares in a March 2005 private placemept. Under a related registration rights
agreement, we were required to file a registration statement to cover the resale of the shares and the shares
underlying the warrants within 30 days of closing and to have the registration statement declared effective within
90 days of closing. We were subject to liquidation damages when the filing and the effectiveness daie occurred after
the required time period and incurred penalties of $0.6 million in 2005. The registration obligation remains
outstanding until the warrants are exercised or expired and additional liquidation damages may be incurred if the
effectiveness of the registration statement lapses. We currently accounts for the registration payment arrangement
and warrants as one instrument classified as a derivative (a non-current liability) under EITF No. 00-19, Accounting
Jor Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company's Own Stock. Upon adoption
of this FSP on January 1, 2007, the warrants will be reclassified to equity without regard to the contingent obligation
to transfer consideration under the registration payment arrangement. The amount that would have been recognized
for the warrants at the original issuance date ($5.7 million) will be reclassified to equity. The difference between the
$5.7 million and the carrying value of the warrant liability as of December 31, 2006 ($1.3 million) will be recorded
as a cumulative-effect adjustment to reduce opening retained earnings on January 1, 2007. Thereafter, accruals for
liquidated damages, if any, will be recorded when they are probable and reasonably estimable. -

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging 1ssues Task Force}, the
AICPA, and the SEC did not, or are not believed by management to, have a material impact on our present or future
consolidated financial statements. : v,

5. Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other lnmnglble Aasers, goodwill and indefinite-lived lntangsble assets
are not amortized but instead are reviewed annually for impairment and on an interim basis if events or changes in
circumstances between annual tests indicate that an asset might be impaired. Goodwill is tested for impairment by
comparing its fair value to its carrying value under a two-step process. The first step requires us to compare the fair
value of its reporting units to the carrying value of the net assets of the respective reporting units, including
goodwill. Our management is primarily responsible for estimating fair value for impairment purposes. Management
may consider a number of factors, including valuations or appraisals, when estimating fair value. If the fair value of
the reporting unil is less than the carrying value, goodwill of the reporting unit is potentially impaired and we then
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l .
complete step two_to measure the 1mpa1rment loss, if any. The second step requires the calculation of the implied
fair value of goodwill by deducting the fair value of all tangible and 1nlang|ble net assets of the reperting unit from
the fair value of the reporting unit. If the implied fair value of goodwill is less then the carrying amount of goodwill,
an impairment loss is recogmzed equaled to the difference. '

. In accordance with SFAS No 142, we completed our annual goodwdl |mpd:rment test on Oc[ober L, 2004 and
2005 for:all of our reporting.units. We assessed the fair values of each reporting unit based on a wexghted
combination of (i) the guideline company method that utilizes revenue multiples for comparable publicly-traded
companies, and (i1} a discounted cash flow model that utilizes future net cIash flows, the timing of these cash flows,
and a discount rate {or weighted average cost of capital which considers the cost of equlty and cost of debt financing
expected by a typical market participant) representing the time value of money and the inherent risk and uncertainty
of the future cash flows. We then determined the *“implied fair value” of the goodwill and amortizable intangibles.
Based on this analysis, we recorded:

a) A third quarter of 2004 impairment charge of $5.9 million to reduce the carrying value of Timm
Medical’s goodwill ($3.1 million) and developed technology ($2.1 million) to fair value and an additional charge
of-approximately $0.7 million for the estimated cost to sell Timm Medical. The charge is included in the net loss
from discontinued operations. The interim impairment analysis in the thtrd quarter of 2004 was required based on
our decision to actively market Timm Medical 1o potential buyers in July 2004, as well as declining revenues,
turnover in sales force, and below average growth as compared to general industry trends. Based on the purchase
price received by us from the sale of Timm Medical completed in Feb'ruary 2006 (see Note 7 ~— “Dispositions
and Discontinued Operations™), lhere was no further impairment as of December 31 2005.

l

b) A third quarter of 2004 impairment charge of $9.9 million to; wrne off the carrying value of goodwill
($9.8 million) and covenant not to compete (30.t million) with respect to the pending divestiture of the mobile
prostate treatment businesses (the Partnerships). We originally acqulred the Partnerships in September 2002.
The goodwill primarily related to the distribution network provided by the Partnerships, which-allowed us to
further penetrate desired markets. Since investors in the mobile treatment businesses are comprised of
urclogists, the Partnerships facﬂnated the continued promotion of cryosurgery as the preferred treatment for
prostate cancer. In addition, upon our purchase of the Partnerships, the seller (USMD) exited the cryosurgical
operations and terminated its exclusive distribution agreement with us, allowmg us to access a previously
restricted market. After we sold the Partnershlps in December 2004, we still expected to, and did, retain access

.to the service and dlstrlbunon network through our exrstmg contracts and continue to benefit from the strategic
value of a non-exclusive dlsmbuuon arrangement with the buyer. However, since this economic benefit could
not be quantified with reasonable accuracy, we recorded the $9.9 million charge to write off the excess of the
carrying value of-the Pannershlps net assets over the preliminary purchase offer, less selling costs. See
Note 7 — ‘D:sposmons and Discontinued Operataons for the loss recorded upon final sale in the fourth
quarter of 2004, - o & “ l :

As of December,3 l 2006 after Tlmm Medical was sold in February 2006 there was no remalmng goodwn]l or
indefinite life.intangibles.

6. Private Placement of Common Stock and Warrants '

!
|
!
!

Fuston Caprml Equrly Purchase Agreemem

On October 25, 2006, we entered into an agreement with Fusion Capltal Fund ll LLC (“Fuswn Capnal”)
pursuant to Wthh we have the right to sell to Fusion Capital up to $16.0 mllllon worth of common stock, at our
election, over a'two year period at prices determined based upon the market pnce of our common stock at the time of
each sale, without any fixed discount. Common stock may be sold in $100, 000 increments every fourth business
day, with additional $150,000 increments available every third business day if the market price of our common
stock is $1.50 or higher. This $150,000 increment can be further mcreased atgraduated levels up to $1.0 m1]]10n if
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the market price increases from $1.50 to $6.00. If the price of the stock is below $1.00 per share, the obligation for
Fusion Caplta] to buy any shares of stock is autom.mcally suspended. Under the terms of the agreement, we issued
437,957 shares of common stock to Fusion Capital for.no consideration-as a commitment fee. '

Under a related registration rights agreement before Fusion Capital is obligated to purchase shares, we were
required to file a registration statement covering the sdle of up to 8,473,957 common shares within 20 days of signing
thé agreement. The Form $-1 was filed in November 2006 and declared effective on Décember 1, 2006, We are
required to maintain effectiveness of the registration statement until the earlier of the date that Fusion Capital may sell
the shares without restriction pursuant to Rule 144(k) or the date that Fusion Capital has sold all purchased shares and
no available unpurchased shares remain under the agreement: Upon occurrence of ¢ ertain events of default as defined,
including lapse of effectiveness of the registration statement for 10 or more consecutive business days or for 30 or
more business days within a 365-day period, suspension of trading for 3 business days, delisting of the shares from the
principal market on which they are traded, failure by our stock transfer agent to issue shares within 5 business days, or
other material breaches, Fusion Capital may terminate the stock purchase agreement. We have the right to terminate
the agreemem at any time. , ’

In December 2006, we sold 30,242 shares for $50,000. Through February 28, 2007, we sold an additional
536,736 shares for $1.0 million. We aré obligated to pay a transaction fee equal to 6.0 percent of the stock proceeds
to an investment advisory firm under a pre-existing capital advisory agreement. '

1]

* March 2005 Private Placement

On March 11, 2005, we completed a private placement of 5,635,378 shares of our common stock and
detachable warrants to purchase 3,944,748 common shares at an offering price of $2.77 per share, for aggregate
gross proceeds of $15.6 million. Transaction costs were $1.0 million, resulting in net proceeds of $14.6 million. Of
the total warrants, 1,972,374 have an mma] exemlse price of $3.50 (Series A warrants) per share and 1,972, 374 have
an initial exercise price of $4.00 (Series B warrants) per share.

" The warrants have an anti-dilution clause that is triggered upon issuance of a certain number of shares of our
common stock that reduces the effective exercise price of the warrants to preserve the ownership of the warrant
holders. As a resuit of the issuance of 504,199 shares fo Fusion capital in 2006, described above, the exercise price
of the Series A Warrants decreased to $3.46 to effectwe]y provide holders an additional 24,967 shares. The Series B
Warrants' exercise pnce decreased to $3.95 to effectlvely provrde the holders another 22,802 shares. Additionally,
through February 28, 2007 we issued an additional 536, 1736 shares to Fusion Capital, which decreased the Series A
Warrant exercise price to $3.41 to effectively provide tiolders an additional 25,607 shares and the Series B Warrant
exercise price decreased to $3.90 effectively provndmg the Series B Warrant holders an additional 29, 255 shares.

The warrants initially are exermsable at any time umll March 11, 2010 for cash only. The warrants may be
exercised on a cashless exercise basrs in limited circumstances after the first anniversary of the closmg date if there
is not an effective registration statenient covering the resale of the shares underlying the wa:rams Each warrant is
callable by us at a price of $0.01 per share underlying such warrant if our stock trades above certain dollar thresholds
(86.50 for the Series A warrants and $7.50 for Series B warrants) for 20 consecutive days commencing on any date
after the effectiveness of the registration statement, provided that (a) we provide 30-day advanced written notice
(Notice Period), (b) we simultanecusly call all warrants on the same terms and (c) all common shares issuable are
registered. Holders may exercise their warrants during the Notice Périod and warrants which remain unexercised

‘will be redeemed at $0.01 per share. . . i

_Upon exercise we will pay transaction fees, equal to six percent of the warrant proceeds under an ex'isting
capital advisory agreement.

Pursuant to the terms of the registration rights agreement, we filed with the SEC a registration statement on
‘Form S-2 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, covering the resale of all of the common stock purchased -

F-20




e — e —

ENDOCARE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES. TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
|

and the common stock underlying the issued warrants., The S-2 regrstrauon statement was declared effective
September 28, 2005. We subsequently filed a post effective amendment on Form:S-3, which was declared effective
on March 28, 2006. As a, result of;the delay in obtaining effectiveness of the original registration, statement the

‘warrant expiration.date was extended 10 May 1, 2010 pursuam to, the terms of the warrants. ., .. |
The reg1stratron rights agreement further. provtdes that ifa regrstratlon statement is not ﬁled within 30 days of
closing or does not become effective within 90 days thereafter, then in add_ltron to any other rights the holders may
have, we will be required to pay each-holder an amount in cash, as liquidated damages, equal to one percent per
month of the aggregate purchase price paid by such holder. We incurred $0.6 million of total liquidated damages
through September 28, 2005, when the S-2 registration statement was declared effective. Liquidated damages are
included in general and administrative expenses. We could incur similar hquldated damages in the future if holders
are inable to make sales of their shares under the registration agreemem if, for- example we fail to keep the
reglstratron statement effective as requrred by SEC rules or if future amendments to the' reglstratlon statement are
not declared effecuve in a ‘timely manner v
Since the llqmdated damages- u'nder the registration rights agreement could in some cases exceed a reasonable
discount for dehvenng unregistered shares, the warrants have been classified as a liability until the earlier of the date
the warrants are exercised in full or expire. In accordance with EITF 00-19, Accounting for-Derivative Financial
Instruments Indexed To, and Potentially Settled In, a Company’s Own Stock, we have allocated a portion of the
offering proceeds to the warrants based on their fair value. EITF 00-19 alsor requires that we revalue the warrants asa
derivative instrument periodically to compute the value in connection w1th changes in the underlying stock price
and other assumonns with the change in value recorded as interest expense We determined the fair value of the
warrants as follows as of December 31, 2006: on e : _

P . v

|
« First, the Black-Scholes option-pricing model was used with the following assumptions: an expected life
equal to the remaining contractual term of the warrants (3.25 years) no dividends; a risk free rate of
'4.73 percent whlch equals the yleld on Treasury bonds at clonstant (or fixed) matunty equal to the remaining
contractual ' term of the’ warrants and volauhty ‘of 53.53 percent Under these assumptlons the Black-
Scholes optron—pncmg model ylelded a value of $0.38 for cach'of the Senes A warrants and $0.32 for each of
the Senes’B warrants for an aggregate value of $1.4 ‘million; | , 1
. ‘Second smce the wan'ants are hmlted in the' amount of realizable proﬁt to the holders as a result of the call
. prov1s1on described above we reduced the value of thé warrants to account for the probability that the stock
. pnlce will reach or exceed $6. 50 and $7. 5(} respectrvely (i.e. the pnces above which we have the right to call
" the Senes Adnd Series B warrants, effecuvely compellmg the holders to exercise their warrams) We used a
statistical formula to calculate the probablllty that our stock price \lv1ll reach or ‘exceed $6.50 and $7.50,
respectively. Based on this formula, we calculated that, for the Serles A warrants, the’ probab1lrty ‘that the .
- stock price of $6.50 will be reached or exceeded is approximately 0. 28 percent. Similarly, we calculated that,
.~ for the_Series B -warrants, the -probability that the stock price of $7{ 50 will be reached. or exceeded is
approximately 0.04 percent. Based on these probabilities, the valuatlon of each of-the Series A warrants is
.calculated at $0.38 (which equals one minus 0.28 percent, multiplied by $0.38) and the valuation of each of
+ the Series B warrants is calculated at $0.32 (which equals one minus 0.04 percent, multlphed by $0 32) This
- yields an aggregate value of the warrants equal t0.$1.4 million; and-

1 . Y be- T |

.« Third, we further reduced the value of the warrants on the assumption that our stock price on the day, that the
4+, warrants are exercised will be, affected by dilution as a result of the1 additional stock introduced into the
« .- market; Given that there are approxrmately 30.7 million shares outstandmg, we calculated that the exercise

.+ of the warrants will result in dilution of approximately 6.2 percent. Usmg the dilution figure of 6.2 petcent,
. we reduced the value of each of the Series A warrants to $0.36 and the Series B warrants to $0.31, This yields
-an aggregate. value of the warrants .equal to $1.3 miltion.

f
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! As a result of this fair value calculation, we recorded negative interest expense of $3.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 (as compared to a reduction of $0.7 million in 2005), which represents the change in the
fair value of the warrants from December 31, 2005. The decrease in the warranty liability is primarily a result of the
decrease in the share price from $2.74 at December 31, 2005 to $1.77 at December 31, 2006, decrease in the overall
volatility of our common shares and the continual lapse of the remaining contractual term. The $3.7 million
includes a $0.8 million benefit ($0.03 per basic and diluted share) benefit from the reduction in ‘the fair value of the
warrants as previously calculated at December 31, 2005 due to changes in the methodology we used to measure
volatility in conjunction with the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, Share Based Payment as further discussed' in
Note 3 — “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies " — Stock-Based Compensation above. This reduction was
a change in estimate and was recorded in 2006 hrst quarter operatlons . R

Under EITF 00- 19, the warrant liability will not be classnﬁed into stockholders cqulty unul the earller of the
warrant exercise or expiration date. Until that time, the warrant liability is recorded at fair value based on the
methodology described above. We do not expect that the warrants will be exercised within the next 12 months based
on the current trading prices of our common stock and has classified the warrants as a non-current liability at
December 31, 2005 and 2006. Changes in fair value during each period is recorded as interest expense. As discussed
in Note 4 — “Recent Accounting Pronouncements”, upon the adoption of FSP No. 00-19-2, Accounting_ for
Registration Payment Arrangements, on January 1, 2007, the warrant liability will be reclassified to stockholders’

equity. . | ‘ Co .

One current member and one former member of our management team made’ personal investments totaling
$0.7 million in the aggregate, and a member of the board of directors invested $0.3 million in the 2005 private placement.

7. Dispositions and Discontinued Operations
Timm Medical — 2005 . : . R oy

We acquired Timm Medical in February 2002. During 2003 certzun non-core product lines of T1mm ‘Medical
were divested (see below). [n July 2004, we began to actively market Timm Mcdlcal for sale in conjunctlon with a
fund-raising initiative. We reported Timm Medical as an asset ‘held for sale effective July 2004 and recorded an
impairment charge totaling $5.9 million to reduce the carrying value of Timm Medica! to fair. va]ue less costs to
sell. Following the completion of the $15.6 million private placement in March 2005 (See "Note' 6 — “Private
Placement of Common Stock and Warrants™) we reclassified Timm Medical as held and used in the first quarter of
2005 as we were no longer seeking a buyer and had ceased all marketmg efforts. As a result of this change in plan,
‘included in net income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2005 is, $0.4 million.in
depreciation and amortization expense for fixed assets and 1ntang1bles for the perlod from July 31, 2004 to

-March 31, 2005.and $0.6 million income as a Tesult of the elimination of the estlmated costs to, sell Wthh were

prev1ously reported as a component of the 2004 lmpalrrnent charge. ’

- 1n late 2005 we received substantive expressmn of interest from Plethora-Solutions Holdings plc (Plethora) a
company listed on the London Stock Exchange, to acquire Timm' Medical and the parties entered into’a Stock
Purchase' Agreement on January 13, 2006. The transaction closed on February 10, 2006. We have not received
significant direct cash flows from Timm Medical ard have not had significant continuing involvement in its

" operations since the sale: In accordance with SFAS No.- 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-

Lived Assets, the assets and liabilities of- Timm Medical were classified as -discontinued operations in the
consolidated financial statements for each year presented. The assets and liabitities of Timm Medical as of
December 31, 2005 were classified as current. Sale proceeds (net of $0.6 million of transaction costs) totaled
$8.9 million which resulted in a 'gam on sale of $0.5 million recorded in the first quarter of 2006. The gross proceéds
of $9.5 million included cash of $8.1 million and a two-year, five percent promissory note ‘secured by the assets of
Timm Medical for $1.4 million. The note is convertible into Plethora’s ordinary shares at any time. 1f Plethora’s
shares trade above a specified amount for 20 consecutive days, Plethora has the option to reqmre conversion, We are
currently in negotiations with Plethora to accelerate the payment of the note by no later thanJune of 2007 for a lump
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N | .
sum reduced amount. The final settlement is subject -to approval by the Board of Directors.. Based on these
negotiations we have reserved $0.3 million of the note balance in the fourth quarter of 2006. Net cash proceeds from

the divestiture were $7.5 million (after $0.6 million in transaction costs and $0.04 million in cash of Timm Medical
as of the dlsposmon date).

4 . . L

. We agreed to retain certain asseis and l'iabili;ies of Timm Medié:al, inc]uding all tax liabilities totaling
$1.1 million, obligations and rights to a $2.7 million note receivable from the sale of Timm Medical’s urinary
incontinence product line in 2003, certain litigation to which Timm Medi‘?al is a party and ownership of Urohealth
BV (Timm Medical’s wholly-owned subsidiary with insignificant operations). Assets and liabilities we retained and
their related revenues and expenses are excluded from discontinued operatlons The stock-purchase agreement
requires an indemnification escrow of $1.4 million (proceeds from the note receivable under certain circumstances
in conjunction with the note’s payment terms) to indermnify Plethora agdlmt certain claims and liabilities.

Assets and liabilities of cllscontmued operations as of February 10, 2006 and December 31, 2005 included the
followmg

‘ Feb 10,  Dec 31,
. ) i ‘ 2006 2005
- Assets: PR e S ‘ . T :
Cash, inventories and other current assets ... .......... e e “$1,041  $1,216
- |
Property and equipment, net . . ... .. .. e B 75
Goodwill, net . .. ....... I . AT ... 4,552 4,552
L} .
Intangibles, net. . .......... e, e P I 3,680 3,716
Otherassets . ............. e e ; ........... 65 65
Total assels . ............. L e L $9.409  $9,624
Liabilities: : ’ 5
Accounts payable and olher current liabilities ... ... ... e i e 502 % 942
Other accrued liabilities . . . . e e o I .......... 486 519
Total liabilities . . ., .......... e NI e 988 1,461

Netassets...,.._...'..l..'..'...'...._‘ ..................... e $8,421  $8,163

Revenues for Timm Medical were $8.5 million, $9.3 million and $l 0 mllllO]‘l in 2004, 2005 and 2006,
respectively. The operations of T1mm Medical are classnﬁed as discontinued operations as a result of the sale of
Timm Medical in 2006. The 2004 loss from Timm Medical included a $5I9, million impairment charge to write
down goodwill and intangible assets. Income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2006
includes a $0.5 million gain on disposal and is net of $0.2 million in _taxe';s.

'
H
1

Cryosirgical Products for Cardiac;Applicarions S 4 ‘ i

On April 14, 2003, we sold our cardiac-related product manufacturmg operations and licensed the related
intellectual property to CryoCath Technologles In¢, (CryoCath) for $10.0:million, CryoCath was the exclusive
distributor for cryoprobes and consoles in connection with the SurgiFrost™ system, a cryoablation system designed
to treat cardiac arrhythmias. We transferred all of our manufacturing asset:;. and inventory related to the cardiac
product line to CryoCath, including technical know-how, vendor lists, prolduction equipment and inventory. In
addition, CryoCath received an exclusive worldwide perpetual license for cardiac uses to our proprietary argon gas
based technology associated with the product and makes payments to us linder a nine-year descending royalty
stream based on net sales of products incorporating the licensed technology. We also agreed to a 12-year worldwide
covenant nol to compete in the cardiac field. Upon the consummation of the sale, we terminated our pre-existing
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distribution agreement with CryoCath. We are required to attend quarterly and-annual technical update meetings
through-2014. Since the technology was internally developed and the tangible assets sold had minimal value, the
sale resulted in a 2003 second quarter gain of $10.0 million. The royalty streain decreases from 10 percent to
3 percent of net sales from the SurgiFrosttm system during the period 2004 to 2012, The royalty payments are
recorded in the periods earned. We have collected $7.5 million of the total sale proceeds in 2003 and the remaining
$2.5 million in January 2004. Royalty income was $0 6 mJ]llon $0 9 rmlllon aml $0.6 mllhon in 2004 2005 and
2006, respectlvely

' . i " ! . LA

Urmary lncommence and Umdynam:cs ' . ot R S
On October 15, 2003, Timm Medical agreed to sell the manufacturing assets related to its urodynam1cs and
urinary incontinence product lines to SRS Medical Corp (“SRS”) for a $2.7 million note. These assets include
certain patents and trademarks related to the urodyna:mcs and urinary'incontinence proclucts inventory, customer
lists and technical know-how. The note bears interest at 7.5 percent and is secured by the assets sold. As aménded in
March 2004, the note requires quarterly payments of $45,000 beginning March 31, 2004, increasing to $60,000 for
the quarter ended December 31, 2005. Amounts which remain outstanding at December 31, 2005 are payable at
least $60,000 per quarter until the outstanding prmc1pal and accrued interest are paid in full. The carrying values of
the urodynamics and urinary incontinence-related assets were $1.3 million on the date of sale. Management
concluded that collection of the note from SRS was not reasonably assured. As a result, a loss of $1.3 million was
recorded in the fourth quarter of 2003 equal to the carrying value of the assets sold and collections on the note, if
any, will be reported as gain in the period received. Collections during 2004, 2005 and 2006 were $0.2 million and
$0.3 million and $0.2 million respectively and have been applied to accrued interest. As of December 31, 2005 the
note was transferred from Timm Medical to Endocare prior to the sale of Timm Medical.
The combined revenues, costs of revenues and gross profit related to the divested product lines were
$5.4 million, $2.3 million and $3.1 million, respectively, for 2004 and are included in income (loss) from
discontinued operations.

i

Incremental selling, general and administrative expenses attributable to these product lines were not
significant. . o

Mobile Prostate Treatment Businesses (Partnerships)

On December 30, 2004, we entered into a Partnership Interest Purch'tse Agreement (the “Purchase Agree-
ment”) with Advanced Medical Partners, Inc. (“AMP]”) a customer of and third-party service provider to us.
Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, we agreed to 'sell to AMPI our interésts in nine partnerships and our minority
investment in U.S. Therapies, LLC (a national urology services company) acquired in June 2001 for $0.9 million.
As a result of the sale, we recorded a loss on divestiture of $0.7 million in the 2004 fourth quarter. The loss
comprises $0.9 million in proceeds less selling costs of approximately $63,000 and $1.5 million of the net tangible
assets sold. The proceeds were received in February 2005. After the sale, we continue to pay the Partnerships,
similar to other service providers, the contracted fee for mobile support services. As such, the Partnerships are not
presented as discontinued operations. The remalmng mobxle ‘treatment businesses retained by us have ceased
operations or are pending dissclution.

|
8. Stock-Based Compensatlon Plans C

As of December 31 2006, we have five. stock based employee compensation plans and one non-employee
director stock-based compensation plan. i ' o ’
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The following tables summarize our option activities: '

! 1
=N

I3

Year Ended December 31 et
2004 2005 . 2006
" ''  Weighted-Average’ Weighted-Average " " " Weighted-Average
Number of  Exercise Price Number of  Exercise Price . Number of - Exercise Price -
Options Per Option Options Per Option Options Per Option
Outstanding, beginning of ' . ‘n , .
year. ... ........ oo, 5,118,752 ' $5.06 5,361,682 l$4.72 © 5,621,240 $4 27
Granted . .. ... ... S 1,397, 500 294 1,549,250 5 319 1, 1‘16,250' ': o2 8“1 i
Cancelled/forfelled ...... (804,570) . 5.32 (1,094,463) | 5.34 (742,459) 7 3.69 .
‘ Exercnsed ...... e ., (350,000) 026 . (195,229) l 210 .. (85833) ,. 126,
Outstanding, end of : X ‘ l ‘ Pl e
VEAr . i .. i, 5,361,682 472 . 5621240 4 427 ‘5,909,198 413
w .l . V N _i ’ i - P TYY
‘ : : ¢ Options Outstanding ' o . .o
. . g Weighted-Average . i . Options Exercisable
’ " Number . ' Remaining " ) T Number ' 7' Weighted-
Range Of Outstanding at Contractual Life " Weighted-Average Exercisable at Average
Exercise Price , December 31, 2006 (Number of Years) Exercise Price December 31, 2006~ Exercise Price |
$ 1.80- 222 ... 760,500 8.21 n $ 2.15 : Coeo232917 e 08 2011
2,25 - '2.25 Co 625,000 » '6.17 . 2251 ¢ '. 585,938 Y © 225
236- 275 ... 604833 735 2.67"\| 0390709 265
2.80- 3.00 ... 700995 ° 8.52 2.88 244921, 2.91
3.04‘- 331 ... 646,750 8.82 324 : 58,707 3.20
3.35--4.15 .. . 704,521 ' 7.70 ' 379 ' 396,051 ¢ ' 3.9l
4.16- 420 ... 40917 6.81 4.18 t 34,958 C 418
427- 427 ... . 1,000,000 | 6.96 . 427 © 0 615000 . 427
.4.69-13.42 ... 614,632 4.72 = 8.04 | ' 588,799 8.19
13.42.-21.23 ... - 211,050 o 4.84 16.18 | . 211,050 - 1818
b 5,909,198 C125 ' $ 4.10 ! 3,419,050 ‘_$ 484
b Aa A . E - .

" The welghted average fair value of our options at the grant date was aépprommately $2 22 in 2004 $2.25in
2005, and $1.90 in 2006, The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the dlfference between the exercise price of
the underlying awards and the quoted pnce of our common stock for those awards that have an exercise price
currently below the quoted price. In each’of the years ended December 31 2004, 2005 and 2006, the aggregate
intrinsic value of options exercised under the stock option plans was $0.9 million, $0.3 million and $0. 1 ‘million,
respectively. Cash received from option exercises under all'stock-based payment arrangemenls for the years ended
December 31, 2004 2005 and 2006 was $92 000, $t 16 000 and $108,000, respectlvely o

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2006 was zero. The
weighted average remaining contractual life on options outstanding and exerc1sable as of December 31, 2006 was
7.25 years and 6.33 years respecnvely i

Employment related taxes payable assocnated with the exercise of employee stock opnons and loan\ forgiveness

at December 31, 2005 and 2006 were $1.0 million and $0.1 million; respectlvely (mcluded in accrued.
compensation). : . . '

.lo' . i.
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9, Equity Incentive Plans
Share-based payments

As of December 31, 2006, we had options and deferred stock units outstanding under five employee and one
non-employee director stock-based compensation plans, as follows: .

2004 Stock Incentive Plan. The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan adopted in September 2004 authorizes the Board
or one or more committees designated by the Board (the “Plan Administrator”) to grant options and rights to
purchase common stock to employees, directors and consultants. Options may be either “incentive stock options™ as
defined in Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, non-statutory stock options or other’
equity instruments. The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan replaced the 1995 Stock Plan and 1995 Director Plan described -
below. The exercise price is equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant (or 110 percent
of such fair market value, in the case of options granted to any participant who owns stock representing more than
10 percent of our combined voting power). Options generally vest 25 percent on the one-year anniversary date, with
the remaining 75 percent vesting monthly over the following three years and are exercisable for 10 years. On the
first trading day of each calendar year beginning in 2005, shares available for issuance will automaticatly increase
by three percent of the total number of outstanding cornmon shares at the end of the preceding calendar year, upto a
maximum of 1,000,000 shares. In addition, the maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued under
the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan will be increased by any shares (up to a maximum of 2,800,000 shares) awarded
under the 1995 Stock Plan and 1995 Director Plan that are forfeited, expire or are cancelled. Options become fully
vested if an employee is terminated without cause within 12 months of a change in control as defined. Upon a
corporate transaction as defined, options not assumed or replaced will vest immediately. Options assumed or
replaced will vest if the employee is terminated without cause within 12 months. As of December 31, 2006, there
were outstanding under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan options to purchase 2,704,833 shares of our common stock
and 2,051,079 options were available for grant.

1995 Stock Plan. The 1995 Stock Plan authorized the Board or one or more committees designated by the
Board (such committee, the “Committee”) to grant options and rights to purchase: common stock to employees and
certain consultants and distributors. Options granted under the 1995 Stock Plan may be either “incentive stock
options” as defined in Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, non-statutory stock options or
other equity instruments, as determined by the Board or the Committee. The exercise price of options granted under
the 1995 Stock Plan was required to equal the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Options
generally vest 25 percent on the one-year anniversary date, with the remaining 75 percent vesting monthly over the
following three years. Options are exercisable for 10 years. The 1995 Stock Plan was replaced by the 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan on September 10,2004. As of December 31, 2006, there were ovtstanding under the 1995 Stock Plan
options to purchase 1,494,504 shares of our common stock and no options were available for grant.

1995 Director Option Plan. The 1995 Director Option Plan (the “Director Plan”) provided automatic, non-
discretionary grants of options to our non-employee directors (“*Outside Directors’). Upon election, each director
receives an initial option grant to purchase 20,000 shares of common stock which vest over two years and an annual
option grant to purchase 5,000 common shares which becomes exercisable after one year. The exercise price of
options granted to Qutside Directors was required to be the fair market value of our common stock on the date of
grant, Options granted 1o Outside Directors have 10-year terms, subject to an Cutside Director’s continued service
as a director. The 1995 Director Option Plan was replaced by the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan on September 10, 2004
As of December 31, 2006, there were outstanding under the 1995 Director Option Plan options to purchase
65,000 shares of Endocare’s common stock and no options were available for grant.

2002 Supplemental Stock Plan. We adopted the 2002 Supplemental Stock Plan (2002 Plan™) effective
June 25, 2002. Under the 2002 Plan, non-statutory options may be granted to employees, consultants and outside
directors with an exercise price equal to at least 85 percent of the fair market value per share of cur common stock on
the date of grant. The 2002 Plan expires June 24, 2012, unless earlier terminated in accordance with plan provisions..
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The 2002 Plan also.terminates. automaucally upon certam-extraordmary e\;ents suchtas the sale’ of substantially,all
or.our assets; amerger in which we are.not the:surviving entity, or.acquisition of 50 percent or more of the: beneﬁc:al
ownership in our.common stock by,pther parties. Upon suchan event all op‘ttons become fully. exercisable. Through
December 31, 2006, there were opt:ons to purchase 140,000 shares of our common stock outstandmg under the
2002Plan.iOn’February;22: 2007, ourJBoard of;Directors . termmatedlthe’2002 Plan:yAs: atresults;;no; addtuona]
opttons _may,. beygrantedkdnderﬂme 2002 Flan. The termination, of ithe: 2002 ' Plan; does Inot affect ,they140,000

outstandmg optto'ns referred lo, above AL ;‘] 0 .'um::;lu una ¢S nct' irn i r i rsrnmrn 5l) r Froesrt
LA

ti n reri toe J L S et areey 'arl A I

Emp[oyee Deferred Srock Umt Program On l\:/fay 18, 200? we adopted lhe’t Employee Deferred Stock Ulmt
Program” and the.“Non-employee Drrector Deferred Stock "Unit* Progrdm W Under the¥termstol- the ‘employee
program, certam elrgtble employees have the ‘optton t0 elect to recelve all or 2 poruon of their annual mcentlve
award ( (at AThinimum of 25 percent) 1n THeférred stock umts in 11eu 'S casht T In addmon each partfaﬁating employee
will also rece1ve an additional pren‘num in'stock ata percentage detérmined, iby the Co’r'r'tbensatton Coffimittes"of our -
Board That percentage premtum for 2006 is 20 percent Each umt entttles the holder to receive one common share
at a'specified future date’ Irrevocable deferral L BCHONS e Mhde durlng A desngnated'p'é'nod no‘later iRAF une 230 of
éach? yearq The uliits’ Vést upon’ the‘determtnatton Sf'the* ificentive award 3 chtevedland the numbcr of stock umts :
earned. This determination is made i in the first quarter of the following ﬁscal yeatyThe stock pnce to'"detennme the -
number of shares to be issued is the fatr market value of the stock on the date on which the deferred stock untts are .
granted. 'In ‘2006, the ‘date of grant was June 23; 2006, on which date the closmg stock pnce was $2 70.
Compensation expense related to the bonus incentive award program is reclorded pro rata durmg ‘the: performance
year based on the estimated incentives achieved, whether payable in cash orjin-stock units. The portlon -ofi mcentlve
award’ payable m'stock lns s recorded"’asladdtttonal pard m-capttal’x'l‘he'esttmated “valizé of'the .ificentives is:
perlod1cally adjusted based'on’ current!expectauons regarding the:levéls oﬁach:evement JAS'of December:31 ’t2006‘1
51,197 shares)were expected‘td'bé issuedtunder: the plan; tv 't 3% brang o hasyieb o rigis 5T Q08100
't ~wmlad' ai 1 apngiyaes tezl tlur\t 10 oian b 6210 g1 0 b Giez ol g us Sl Doy sl
1w - Non= emplayee Dtrectars Deferre:i Stock. Umt Program. .jUnder the dtrectors pla‘n, members.of the board,of
dtrectors can, choose to have all or,a portton ofl thetr dlrector fees pald in fully vested deferred stock umts (at a
rntmmum of 25 perc%nt) commencmg J uly l |2;006 Th'e/date of‘ grant aJnid s}hg{e‘pnce used to deterr't}llt}.ejhs lﬂurnber:
of deferred stock umts is seton the fifth business. day ‘affer the end of the quarter in whtch the services are rendered .
U W TTEE I TV L 4G e W e i Q000 0 da L Llee o A, A0E
Addltlonally, to cover taxes directors may choose to have up 10 50 percent of thelr deferred stock umts pald in, cash
19 |24 BNl > aiie NOMEND AU s 10 1Rt € AT DTS
ar the date the underlymg ‘common shares A to be issued bised'on the share price ¢ at the t1me Dunng 2006, .
éféEdSr'ts were made;m June Futdre rannual deferred elecuBF{é“\?}m be made in December for the followinélyear 1
ol ey pi b v 13 1€ p 3 . aerlt P e
Deferredlstock umts are granted eachfquaner ‘based ‘on the dtrector fees eamed 1n “the' pnor quarter “hnd’ the fair
market vatue of the stock on the date of grant. The first grant Was ‘miadé in October 2006 167 the September 30, 12006
quarter. Directors’ fees, whether payable in cash or in stock units, are expensed when incurred. The maximum -
number of deferred stock units that can be settled in cash at the option of the Holder is recorded asa ltablltty
(included in deferred compensatlon) and adjusted each quarter to current fzur'va]ue until settlement Scels: The fatr
value of the pdrtron of the deferred stock umts issuable in shares are fixed at the date of grant and are expensed in the
quarter the ‘services’ are recelved’ ‘Af Deléibér'3 1,2006, 84,647 fu]ly Vested deferred stock Units valued At $152,000
have béen issued under the plan, of Wl‘llCh $74,000 was recorded as a ltabtlrty : " W l o '"_‘ ’;‘"0?
\., g o L]
Common shares underlymg the vested stock units in the emp]oyee and dtrector plans are issued at the earlier of ‘-
the payout date spec1ﬁed by the parttcrpant (which is at least two years from the appltcable electtOn deadlme) a

change in‘conirol event as defined, ‘or the: month following the participant’ s death. ;

qeol)e @0y 2. ..., l ................................. e lm..be-l

(Option Arrangemems Cutside of, Plans , In addition 1o the option plans described above, on March:3;,2003,:
we gr;anted opt1ons to purchase 750, 000 shares of common stock to our then- Pres1dent and Chief Operatil‘ng‘Ofﬁcer N
The options weré granted 4t $2.25: per share, 250,000 of the options' were ava:lable for accelerated vesting based on
the attainment of certain milestones and objectives or five years, whichever came first. Twenty-five percent of the
remaining-500,000 options- vestlomthe‘ﬁrstzanmversary withthe balance ratablyrover: thiee. yéars: /Iit. Septémber -
20006, the former officer.forfeited .250, 000fof unvestedlopttons upomseparattonlfrom Endocare ‘Puirsuant!to-thé
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' 'l © [ifidrmal Reverué Codé (IRC) Sect1ons~382‘and'383 limiit the annual utrllzatton "of net. operatmg loss and tax
credit'carryforwards existing prior to a change in control. Based upon prior ‘Squity transacuon dctivityy gome orall'of
. our ex1st1ng net operatmg loss and tax credit carryforwards may be subject to annual limitations under IRC
| Sections 382-and 383. We have not perfonned an analysrs to determine whether such change in control has occurred
for tax- reportmg purposes and if s0, the”specific limitations that may reqult',' .m‘muh (,,u L wer tos prat ,Q

I
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Collahoratwe and Other Agreements L. L Eur breawi Jldriac Tt )
. . Y :
Sal Medi c;-?l T PR settare o buamirsib 1o 4, 2 0 sy
anams edical, Inc. .
bdpr gl T | S Sae e TSI 117 ol B TR L S s R e A T s T EAPRR

. lln’October 19997 we entered into a strategic,alliance with Sanarus:Medical; Inc: (Sanarus)y a privately held
medicalidevice company. We received, 200,041 Sertes A voling, convemble preferred shares for .$0.3 million and a

...................................

...................

right lo develop, manufacture and sell‘products uﬂung certam Sanarus technology for use in, the d1agnosrs

Loras o -ﬁ"m.‘JN RHD 1L PLEIIRIA e JHE ity
_prevention and treatment of prostate, k:dney ind liver dtseases dtsorders and COndlthIlb, and (m) our. grant o
St ARSI LG B DT A0 B SOV LA G A TRt
Sanarus of an e:'t%l}uswe (eveu as to Endocare) worldiwrde 1rrevocable ful]y pald up nght o t_levelop, mar}u‘l:arc‘ture
TN |
and sell products using. certal_n of our technology Tor 4ee in "the dlagnosrs preventlon and treatment ‘of gynecologrcal :
5 3 D teaty BI0 SHDTUUH ol 3G L 1 BRE Ca et Jednt |-.ab NG ] i
S bieast diseases, disorders and cohdition ]’ ~
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ln Ju'n'e1 2001-~we provtded'a bndge loan’ to‘Sanarus in- the amount of $0. 3 m1|l10n and'recerved a-warrant: to |
.purchase 36, 210 shares ‘of Series B vonng preferred siock - The loan & was repald in July 2001 i[n Apr11—2003 Endocare
TAnd Gther inVEstors Sentered'into ifsecond bndge loan}ﬁnancmg i WHich'Safaros’ 1squed Tous a convemble promtssory
note inthe aggregate amount of $0.6 million and alwarrant 1o piirchase equity sharés in-Sanarus with ‘ai dggregate
exercise | price of | up,to $0 3 mllllon Upon completron of an, equnty ﬁnancmg by Sanarus m October 2003 the bndge

0 A B IAIL b LV A BN U TR

ioan and warrant were canceled in exchange for 908, 025 shares of Series C votmg preferrecl stock-and a warrant to" '
TN L) S Rt g HYBCUIEECEST Y Y ALY JE T |

purchase 308,823 Series C shares at $0.68 per.share. ’As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, ‘our voling interest in Sanarus:

was app.{rtsmmately.tlsl’percen;t“ and.5.2 percent, reppectlvely, on an as-converted fully diluted basis.
CHA

Our forrner Chlef Exécutive Officer and Chairman of the Board was a member of Sanarus’s Board of Directors
through Odtobér 2272003 £ Thetotal investment. 1r|1 Sanarus of. $0.9.million a$'of’ December 313:2005:and 2006 is
included in investments andother assets.;The mvestment is recorded at cost since we do, not' -exercise|significant

influence_over the;operanons,‘of Sanarus_ e J ....... e scaswolle robeu'ss ol aassrsal
l

(@ (18) 198, T L R T T [REEREE ._‘r?xﬂ_ljltillg

CryoFluor Therapeutics180) ... oo e e e i - .‘f*.:‘.w'T,‘r‘i'

! Effectrve December 217 2004 Endocare and CryoFluor Therapeutics{* Lrc r(“CryoFluor”) entered into a
Servrces Agreement and First Amendment to CryoFluor s Operating Agreement Under the Servtces Agreement
r'v'ﬁe '\'ﬁrll provrde 19 CryoFluor certam’lproduct‘desrgn andldevelopment servlccs “which consist of both preclmlcal
stage servicesand’ cllmcal jstage servrces“ m exchange for 945 ;000'LLE! umls- In' 2006‘the agreement was amended
to'reducé the total fiimber of umts lssuable 0] Endocare ¢ forii 945; 000 to 898 500 finitsAS amended in exchange ‘for
Yihg preclmtcal stage services? CryoFluor 1§'§'t'1"ed 500,000 oWnership {nits’to Fntld&i‘r‘e ‘on’ December 21 12004 Wthh
'are’"sub]ect to- vestmg as descnbed below “In ex'change forlthe clrmcal stage servrces sothe Servides: Agreement
pr0v1des that CryoFluor ‘Shall iSsue to Endocare an vadditiorial 398,500 ownershrp units on ‘April'5, 2006 (the Secorid

“Trinché' Date) E4ch 'oWaérship’ it KASSAR AECHbEd’ value*of‘$ll00r“" B3 U d o, "-de"U‘BW"l {10
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The ownership units are subject to vesting as follows: (i) 50,000 of. {he units yested on December 21, 2004
(ii) 39,850 units upon the Second Tranche Date; (iii) 450,000 units upon completlon of the preclinical services and
CryoFluor’s acceptance of our report relating to the preclinical services; ar’id (iv}) the remaining 358,650 units upon
completion of the clinical services and CryoFluor’s acceptance of our report relating to the clinical services. In the
event of a termination of the Services Agreement for any reason, all ownership units that have not vested as of [he
termination date will be forfeited. As'of December 31, 2006, we comp!eted the preclinical services and have vested
in 500,000 units. The vested and unvested units held by Endocare consntute 18.8 percent of CryoFluor’s
outstanding ownership interests as of such date. i .

L .o

oo 1

Pursuant to the First Amendmem to the Operating Agreement, we were admitted as a member of CryoFluor on
December 21, 2004. Each other member of CryoFluor granted to us a hmlted right of first negotiation with respect
to the sale of ownership units'held by such member. In addition, CryoFluor granted to us a limited right of first
negotiation with respect to the sale, assignment, license or other transfer of lhe technology owned by CryoFluor that
is the subject of the development program under the Services Agreement; .

Since CryoFluor is a deve]opmem stage company and the fair value of our contracted services could not be
accurately determined, we have recorded a valuation allowance against the% ascribed value of its minority interest
investment in CryoFluor. We accounted for our investment in CryoFluor using the equity method.

.CryoDynam;'cs, LLC — Research & Development Agreemer;l '

On November 8, 2005, we eitered into a commercialization '}agreemem (the “Agreement”) with
CryoDynamics, LLC to design and develop a cryosurgical system utilizing nitrogen gas. The parties will jointly
own all inventions made or conceived by CryoDynamics in performing the %—\greemem (Development Inventions).
To assist CryoDynamics in its research and development efforts, we will;advance CryoDynamics $42,500 per
month, effective October 1, 2003 until such time as either party enters 1nlo a license agreement based upon the
nitrogen system with an independent third party that results in CryoDyndmlcs receiving an amount sufficient to
repay the advances and fund CryoDynamics’ monthly operating expenses of $42,500.

~ Under the Agreement, CryoDynamics granted 1o us an exclusive, worldw1de license {with the right to
sublicense) to the Deve]opment Inventions and pre-existing technology in all medical fields of use. We also have
granted to CryoDynamics an exclusive, worldwide licensé (with the nght;to sublicense) to'such Development
Inventions in specified fields of use. Royalties and license fees will be determined in accordance with the
Agreement. The Agreement also provides for a right of first refusal should CryoDynarmcs intend to accept an offer
from any potential buyer for the sale of all or part of CryoDynamics’s buemess

The Agreement will continie untl the later of -(a) December 31, 2015 -or (b) expifation of the panies"
obllgauons to pay royalues or unnl lhc Agreement is terminated because of breach, insolvency or bankruplcy

ot
‘

Since repaymem of amounts advanced under the agreement is contmgem upon the successful developmem
commerc:ahzauon and llcensmg of the technology and is not reasonably assured, these advances are expensed as
incurred. We recorded $0.1 million and $0.5 million of research and developmem costs for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2006, rcspeclwely in connection. with the IAgreeme_nl

v -
.

e ' ' . o B

Pafenr Licensing, Royalry and Dwmbmmn Agreements ) }

We have entered into other patenl llcensmg and royalty agreements with thlrd pames some of whom also have
consulting agreements with us and are owners of or affiliated with entities Wthh have purchaqed products from us.
These agreements generally provide for purchase consideration in the form of cash, common shares, warrants or
options and royalties based on a percentage of sales related to the ]lcensed techno]ogy, subject to minimum amounts
per year. The patents and llcensmg nghts acquired are recorded based on the falr value of the conSIderatlon paid.
Options and warrants issued are valued using the Black-Scholes option prlcmg model. These assets are amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives. Royalty payments are expensed as incurred,

v
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. We have entered into additional distribution agreements with third parties. These agreements govern all terms
of sale; includinig shipping terms, pricing, discounts and minimum purchase quotas, if applicable. Pricing is fixed
and determinable and the distributor’s contractual obligation to pay is not contingent on other events, such as final
sale to an ‘end-user. We generally do not grant aright of return except for defective products in accordance with our
warranty poli¢y, and in’some cases for unsold inventory within a limited time period upon the termination of the
distribution agreement. - A : :

12. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases ...

We lease office space and equipment under operating leases, which expire at various dates through 2010. Some
of these Jeases contain renewal options and rent escalation clauses. Future minimum lease payments by year and in
the aggregate under all non-cancelable operating leases consist of the following (in thousands}:

Year ending December 31, 2007. . ... ... i § 587
2008 ... ... U SR 529
2009 .. ... .. e 546
2000 ..o LR AU 123
1 3 1 R —
N T s A —
$1,785

Employment and Severance Agreements

We have has entered info employment agreements with certain executives which provide for annual base
salaries and cash incentive payments of up to 85 percent of base salary subject to attainment of corporale goals and
objectives pursuant to incentive compensation programs approved by our board of directors, and stock options. The
agreements provide for severance payments if the executive is terminated other than for cause or terminates for
good reason as defined, The options vest over specified time periods with accelerated vesting upon attainment of
performance targets in certain instances.. ..

Former Officers -

{5\5 described in further detail below under “Legal Matters” our former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Board (former CEO) and former Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer (former CFO) both of
whom ceased to be employed by us in 2003, are defendents in a civil lawsuit filed by the SEC and are being
investigated by the DO relating to our historical financial reporting issues and related matters. The former CEO and
the former CFO have each agreed to repay us, se{ferancé and related amounts ($800,000 in the case of the former
CEO and approximately $600,000 in the'ca_se of the former CFO) upon either (i) his conviction in a court of law, or
entering into a plea of guilt or no contest 1o, any crime directly relating to his activities on behalf of Endocare during
his employment, or (it), successful prosecution of an enforcement action by the SEC against him,

On October 2, 2006, we executed a General Release of All Claims with our then President and Chief Operating
Officer (the “former President™) upon his separation effective October 2, 2006. We agreed to pay the former
President his base salary of $0.3 million per year via semi-monthly salary continuation payments for a period of
12 months and continuation of his health-benefits pursuant to COBRA for one vear. The former President held
800,000 options from various grants, of which 437,500 options had vested prior to the separation date. He forfeited
300,000 unvested options upon separation but is entitled to continue vesting in the remaining 62,500 unvested
options for one year pursuant to the original grant terms. These options will be fully vested by March 2007. The
expense related to the unvested options retained by the employee (net of reversal of stock-based compensation
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expense on the forfeited options) was included in the $0.3 mililion severan'ce charge recorded in the third quarter of
2006 The 500,000 options remain outstanding at December 31, 2006 ar}d are exercisable at $2.25 per share.

On August 27, 2004, we executed'a General Release of All Claims with our then Chief Financial Officer which
was effective as of August 10, 2004. Pursuant to'the terms of the General Releaqe we agreed to pay her current base
salary of $0.2 million per year via semi-monthly salary continuation payments for a period of 12 months and
continuation of her health benefits pursuant to COBRA for one year. We also agreed to permit our then Chief
Financial Officer to continue to vest in ail stock options held at the separanon date through July 31, 2005. We
recorded stock-based compensation expense of $0.1 million. In 2004 andi2005 our then Chief Financial Officer
exercised options to purchase 15,625 and 130,208 shares, respectively. The remammg vested opuons expired
unexercised. |

Emp!oyee Benef t Plans i e . 'i . .

r
v

We have has a 40](k) savings plan covering substanually all employees The Plan currently provides for a
dlSCI‘C[lOIldry match of amounts contributed by each participant as approved by the Compensation Commmee of the
Board of Directors. No matching conmhutmns were made in 2004 2005 ‘ot 2006

Legal Marrers -

. We are a party to lawsuits in the normal course of our business. nganon and governmental investigation can
be expensive and disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the tesults of complex legal proceedings are
- difficult to predict. Significant judgmems or settlements in connection with, [he legal proceedings described below
may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, resalts of operations and cash flows. Other
than. as descnbed below, we are not a party to any legal proceedings that we believe to be material.

4

Govemmen!al hwe'sn’gan’ons ' . P

Asreported in the Form 8-K that we filed onJ uly 20, 2(}06 we execuled aconsent to entry of judgment in favor
of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™) on July 14, 2006 and entered into a non-prosecution
agreement with the Department of Justice (the “DOJ”) on July 18, 2006. ’I'hese two agreements effectively resolve
with respect to us the investigations begun by the SEC and by the DOJ in January 2003, regardmg allegations that
we and certain of our former officers and former directors and one current employee issued, caused to be issued,
false and misteading statements regardmg our financial results for 2001 and 2002 and related matters. Under the
terms of the consent Judgment with the SEC (i) we paid a total of the $750, 000 in civil penalties and disgorgement;
and-(2) we agreed to a stipulated Judglmem enjoining future violations of securities laws. On April 7, 2006, we
entered into an escrow agreement with Morrison & Foerster LLP our outmde'counsel pursuant to which we placed
the $750,000 anthIpated settleinent in escrow with Morrison & Foerster LLP at the request of the SEC staff The
funds were released from the escrow to the SEC in August 2006. A liability for the monetary penalty was accruéd in
2004. The investigations and legal proceedings related to certain former ofﬁcers and former directors remain
ongoing and are not affected by our settlements with the SEC and DOJ. We remam contractually obligated to pay
legal fees for and otherwise indemnify these former officers and former dlrectors On August 9, 2006 the SEC filed
civi] fraud charges in-federal district court against two forrher officers. Our directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance may fund certain losses, including defense costs, related to these matters: At December 31, 2006, we have
$1.0 million in remaining available coverage under the applicable excess direct;ors and officers’ liability policy. This
policy reimburses 75 percent of the first $2.25 million in eligible costs to a maXimum of approximately $1.7 miflion,
zero percent of the next $500,000 and 57.3 percent of the next $1 million to a maximum of $575,000. This coverage
will be exhausted in its entirety after we incur $2.0 million in additional costs.
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Historical option granting practices « ~ . +."
H r

Given the recent announcements by numérous companies and the SEC’s current focus on stock option plan
administration, our Audit Committee requested that management conduct an internal review of our historical stock
option practices, the timing of stock option grants and related accounting and documentation. Based on this review,
management identified several stock obtion g'rangs made between 1997 and 2()(52. for which the actual measurement
dates appeared to differ from the recorded grant dates. M_anagemen_t' analyzed the potential accounting impact,
assuming that the mt;asurement'datgs. for these option grants differ from the recorded grant dates, and concluded that
the financial impact did not necessitate adjus{menl{ld or restatement of our previously-issued financial reports in
accordance with Staff Accquqting Bulletin No. 99, Mate}‘iqlity, and No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements When Quantifving Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements. Management reported the
results of its review to our Audit Committee and Board of Directors at their regularly scheduled meetings on-July 26,
2006. Following these meetings, we contacted the SEC and the DOJ and reported our findings. On August 1, 2006,
we met with the SEC staff to discuss our findings and later received a subpoena from the SEC requesting additional
option-related information. We have responded to this subpoena and will continue to fully cooperate with the SEC
and’DOJ and- with their ongoing investigations related to certain of our former officers and former directors.

After receiving the subpoer;a from the SEC, management identified certain stock option grants made in 2003 for
which the actual measurement dates may differ from the recorded grant dates. However, similar to the grants between
1997 and 2002 previously identified, management concluded that the financial impact of the 2003 grants, individually
and in the aggregate, did not necessitate adjustment to or restatement of our previously-issued financial reports.

« Shareholder Class.Action and Derivate Lawsuits - 11~

~ In November ’2(:)02,“ \;{_E; were na:m‘ed as a|defepd‘ant,’t0gether' with certain former officers, in a class-action
lawsuit filed in the United Statés District Court for the Central District of California. This ‘action, which was
consolidated with other similar complaints on October 31, 2003, alleged that the defendants violated sections of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by purportedly issuing false and misleading statements regarding our revenues and
expenses in press releases and SEC filings. On November 8, 2004, we executed a settlement agreement with the lead
plaintiffs and their counsel. In exchange for a release of all claims, Endocare and certain individuals paid a total of
$8.95 million in cash, which was funded by our directors’ and officers’ liability insurance carriers prior to
December 31, 2004. On February 7, 2005, the Court issued a finat order approving the agreement and dismissing the
class:action lawsuit. . .., ' L L e

"* On December 6, 2002, Frederick Venables filed a purported derivative action against us and'certain former
officers and a former director in Califérnia based uan allegations that the defendants issued false and misleading
statements regarding Endocare’s revenues and expenses in press releases and SEC filings. On December 6, 2004,
we executed a settlement agreerhent with the plaintiff and his counsel and the derivative lawsuit was dismissed on
December 8, 2004, Under the agreement, in exchange for the plaintiff’s relcase of all claims, we paid a total of
$0.5 million in cash prior to December 31, 2004. The agreement also required us to maintain various corporate
governance measures for a period of at least two years, unless a modification is necessary in the good faith business
judgment of our Board of Directors. = o o ' ’

- -The settlements referenced above, the related legal and defense costs and cost under our ongeing indem-
nification obligations to certain formeér officers and former directors were covered under four directors’ and
officers’ liability'insurance policies in effect at that time, with limits of $5 million each and aggregate coverage of
$20 million. The primary carriér reimbursed our defense costs up to'the limits of its $5 million policy. The three
excess carriers, representing $15 million of the $20 million of coverage, filed arbitration complaints seeking
rescission of the policies. In December 2004 and February 2003, we reached settlement with two of the three excess
carriers to reimburse us for current and future legal defense and litigation settlement costs. On December 1, 2005,
we entered into a settlement agreement with. the remaining excess carrier pursuant 10 which we paid the carrier
$1.0 million in full settlement of any claims. Under the settlement agreement, we also granted'a mutual release to
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: 1'
the carrier. As of December 31, 2006, we have $1.0 million in remaining available coverage through the third excess
carrier for legal costs under our continuing indemnification obligations to odr former officers and former directors
who remain under investigation and subject w© legal proceedings by the SEC and DOI.
CEE | - 4 - . . -
Lawsuit Wik KPMGLLP T P T ! e

-

On October 26, 2006, we ﬁled a lawsuit with the Supenor Court of Lhe State of California for the County of
Orange against our former independent auditor, KPMG LLP, for professmnal negligence and breach of contract,
seeking damages in an amount to be determined at trial. Previously, we had entered into a Mediation and Tolling
Agreement with KPMG pursuant to which KPMG agreed that the statute of llpmauons would be tolled to provide an
oppommity for mediation between the parties. We engaged in mediation wi}h KPMG on September 27, 2006 but
the parties ‘were unable to reach settlement. Accordingly, we proceeded with,the ﬁlmg of the lawsuit. In response to
our claims against KPMG, KPMG ﬁled a cross-complaint against us and certain former officers. Under the cross-
complaint, KPMG makes claims agamst us for breach of contract, v1olauons of the federat racketeermg statute and
conspiracy to violate the federal racketeering statute, seeking damages in an amount to be determined at trial. We
are not able to predict the outcome of this lawsuit. _ |

o, } . | e ' I
Other nganon . _ ) . | .
In January 2006, we entered into a settlement and release agreement wuh certain partles agamsl whom we had
a claim from a judgment awarded to us in prior years. We received $162, 500 in the settlement of this claims, which
was recorded as a reduction of general and administrative expenses in theif irst quarter of 2006

In addition, we are, in the normal course of business, subject to various other legal matters, which management
believes will not individually or collectively have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or cash flows
-of a future period. The results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, and we cannot provide

-assurance. that the outcome of various legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on our. business,
consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash -flows. As-} of December 31, 2006 we have not
established a liability for contingencies in the consolidated balance sheets since the likelihood of loss and: the
potential liability cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. Managemel;n’s evaluation of the likelihood of -an
<unfavorable outcome with respect to these actions could change in the future. We have purchased directors™ and
officers’. liability and other insurance which may fund certain losses,including defense costs, related to the above
litigation matters. These recoveries will be recorded when the amounts are determined to be recoverable from the
msurance cartiers. _ ) _ ;

Frorn time to time, we have received correspondence alleging mfnngement of propnetm'y rights of third
parties. No assurance can be given that any relevant claims of third parties would not be upheld as valid and
enforceable, and therefore that we could be prevented from practicing the subject matter claimed or would be
required to obtain licenses from the owners of any such proprietary nghts 10 avoid mfnngement

o K L

13 Line of Credit : g-

'

~ On October 26, 2005, we enteréd into a one-year credit facility wnr_h Silicon Valley Bank (Bank), whlch
provides up to $4 million in borrowings in the form of term loans (not to exceed $500,000) and a revolving line of
credit for working capital purposes. The agreement was amended in February April and December 2006 and was
extended to February 28, 2007. The credit facility permits the borrowings up to the lesser of $4.0 million or amounts
available under a borrowing base formula based on eligible accounts recex'vable and inventory. As amended, the

borrowing base is (i) 85 percent of eligible accounts receivable, plus (ii).the lesser of 30 percent of the value of,
eligible inventory or $500,000. Borrowings are secured by all of our assets, including all receivable collections
which are held in trust for the Bank. Interest is payable monthly at prime rate plus 1.5 percent. The agreement
" requires a one-time commitment fee of $40,000 paid on effective date and aq annual facility fee equal to 0.5 percent
of the unused portion of the facility. A termination fee will also be assessed ifithe credit facility is terminated prior to

1
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_expiration. We borrowed and repaid $250,000 on the line of credit in 2006. As of February 28, 2007, we had
. $1.9 million outstanding on the line of credit. .

As a condition to each advance under the credit facility, all representations and warranties by us rust be
materially true and no event of default has occurred or is continuing. In addition, the lender, in its good faith
business judgment, must determine that no material adverse change has occurred. A material adverse change occurs
when there is a material impairment in the priority of the lender’s lien in the collateral or its value, a material adverse
change in our business, operations or condition, a material impairment of the prospect of repayment or if the Bank
‘determines, in its good faith reasonable judgment, that there is a reasonable likelihood that we will fail to comply
with one or more financial covenant in the next financial reporting period.

o The Loan and Security Agreement contains ‘'various financial and operating covenants that impose limitations
on our ability, among other things, to incur additional indebtedness, merge or consolidate, sell assets except in the
_'drdinaryacqurse'of business, make certain investments, enter into leases and pay dividends without the consent of
the Bank. The credit facility also includes a subjective acceleration clause and a requirement to maintain a lock box
with the lender to which all collections are deposited. Under the subjective acceleration clause, the lender may
declare default and terminate the credit facility if it determines that a material adverse charge has occurred. If the
aggregate outstanding advances plus reserves placed by the Bank against the loan availability exceeds 50 percent of
the receivable borrowing base component as defined, or if a default occurs, all current and future lock box proceeds
will be applied against the outstanding borrowings. The credit facility also contains cross-default provisions and a
minimum tangible net worth requirement measured on a monthly basis. Tangible net worth must be equal or greater
than the sum of a base amount ($2.5 million at December 31, 2006, $1.5 million at January 31,2007 and $1.0 million
at February 28, 2007) plus 25 percent of all consideration received from issuing equity securities and subordinated
“debt and 25 percent of positive consolidated net income in each quarter.

. We were ‘not in compliance with the minimum tangible net worth covenant for the months September to
November 2006. On December 22, 2006, we signed an amendment to the Loan and Security Agreement. Among
other. things, the amendment (i) modifies the borrowing base to increase the eligible accounts receivable from
80 percent to 85 percent and modifies the definition of accounts that are ineligible under the borrowing base
calculation; (ii) modifies the loan margin as defined to 1.50 percent, and (iii) waives non-compliance with the
minimum tangible net worth requirement at September 30, 2006, October 31, 2006 and November 30, 2006, as well
as modifies the terms of the covenant. At December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with all covenants and had no
_borrowings outstanding under the line of credit.

On February 23, 2007, the credit agreement was amended to further modify the minimum tangible net worth
provision and to extend the maturity date to February 27, 2008.

14.' Related Party Transactions

‘ 4

In February 2002, we purchased the patents to certain cryosurgical technologies and a covenant not to compete
from a cryosurgeon inventor for 100,000 shares of our common stock valued at $1.4 million, of which $1.1 million
(75,000 shares) was allocated to the patent to be amortized over 15 years and the remaining $0.3 million
(25,000 shares) was allocated to the covenant to be amortized over five years.

The agreement also requires the seller to perform certain consulting services-over 15 years for the consid-
eration received. No consideration was allocated to the consulting agreement since its value could not be accurately
,measured. In January 2003, we extended a $344,000 loan to the selier to assist with the payment of related federal
_ income taxes arising from the 2002 asset sale. The loan was secured by the shares issued, bore interest at 1.8 percent
and was originally due in January 2005. In 2004 and 2006, we extended the maturity date to January 2006 and
January 2007, respectively. The outstanding balance of the note has been charged to bad debt as of December 31,
2006 and included in general and adminisirative expenses. The accrued interest income in the amount of $25,000
was reversed in the fourth quarter of 2006.
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15. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudlted) X :
The following is a summary of the quanerly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 (in thousands, except per share data). ' i
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, .  September 30, December 31,
_ o . 2006 2006 2006 2006
Revenues from continuing operations. . . . . . . $-7,262 $ 6,§08 $ 6,700 $ 7,120
Cost of revenues from continuing 1 o o
Tooperations . ................ oL $ 3,766 $ 3,256 $ 2,677 - $ 2644
' '
Loss from continuing operations . ......... $(5,174) 3 (708)  $(2,149) . $(3,045)
Netloss ........ I S ' ' R S $(4,929) $ (708) $(2,149) $(2,979)
. ! N
Loss from continuing operations per share of o N
common stock — basic and diluted . ... .. $ (0.17) $ (0.02) $ (0.07) $ (0.10)
Net loss per share of commen stock — basic _ | ‘ ’
anddiluted ................ . .. ..... $ (0.16) $ (0.02) $ (007 $ (0.10)
Weighted average shares of common stock ! ' K
outstanding — basic and diluted . ... ... .. 30,143 301 §6 30,175 T 30,532
Quarter Ended  Quarter Ended  Quarter Ended  Quarter Ended
! March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
. 2005 2005, 2005 2005
Revenues from contmumg operations: . . . ... $ 6,867 $ 6,919 $ 7,008 ° $ 7480
Cost of revenues from continuing ‘ E
operations . .............. .. . ..., $ 4,186 $ 3924 $ 3,809 $ 3818
. ' l
Loss from continving operations . ......... $(5,219) $(4,522) $(2,997) $(2,100)
Net 1058 - ... ovveeii it $(4,506) $(4,196)  $(2.460) $(2,51D)
Loss from continuing operations per share of ' ‘ _ _
common stock — basic and diluted . . .. .. - $ 017 $ (0.15) $ (0.10) $ (.07
Net loss per share of common stock -— basic |
anddiluted .. ................ e $ (0.15) $ (0.14) $ (0.08) $ (0.08)
Weighted average shares of common stock F '
outstanding — basic and diluted . . .. . . . .. 29988 30,044 30,069 30,081
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AT helfollowinglgraphicompares]the]performanceloflourjcommonlstockloverthelfive]precedingifiscalfyearsitolthelweightedlaverage
mnaﬁmeﬂmﬂ:ﬂﬁﬁnm NASDAQYS{OCK indexfandfafseltz

peengroup d} byJusawelfirstiincluded|the)selilconstructed] peerjerouplint2002becausewelwere]
linformed]that:2001fwould|belthe]lastiyeanthe JP Eb Biotechnologylindexiwould be]
lavailable§T heleraphlassumes]s 100 waslinvestedat]thelcloseloRtradinglon|Decembe k3192001 in[ouricommon]stockland]inleach]
otktheYindicesfandfthatfalifdividendsEwereYreinvested TheNASDAQ mmmmm@
performance equily fSecuritiesfoffcompanies]tradedJonkT ey NASDAG]National [Marketl(now] knownJasyT heNAS DAQ]GIobal
Market)§Thelselficonstructed/peeqgroupsconsists mmmmmmm
STientificy Theragenics RCOrporation JandlUrolog ginG i) ncluded [nfthicYpeefercup]because]it]

shouldfnot]

Jilily}2006 91 he)stockholdedreturnYshown]on]the] [beYconsidercdlindicativeyotlfuture]
stockholdeqreturns¥andlweldonotmakejorendorselany]predictionslofifuturelstockholderreturnss

-

:

| .
Among Endocare, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite|Index And A Peer Group
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12/01 12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06
=—{ = Endocare, Inc. == A== NASDAQ Composite sese4Onse-Peer group
12/01 12/02 12/03 1|2/04 12/05 12/06
Endocare, Inc. 100.00 19.19 22.36 13.94 15.28 9.87
NASDAQ Composite | 100.00 71.97 107.18 117.07 120.50 137.02
Peer Group 100.00 58.84 76.79 117.60 93.26 92.05
* $100 invested on 12/31/01 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
\ Fiscal year ending December 31. /

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
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